Directors’ Report

Dear Members,

INCRED FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT FY 2020-2021

Your directors are delighted to present to you the Twenty Ninth Annual Report of the Company
together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021.

The summarised financial results and performance highlights of the Company are given below:

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(INR In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Standalone Consolidated
2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20
Income from Operations 38,537.82 32,374.28 38,549.52 32,362.32
Other Income 647.09 782.37 698.13 904.34
Total Income 39,184.91 33,156.65 39,247.65 33,265.65
Expenses 37,102.07 30,752.25 37,879.20 30,900.67
Depreciation & Amortization 841.79 1,099.89 1,015.98 1,160.68
Total Expenses 37,943.86 31,852.14 38,895.18 32,061.36
Profit before exceptional
items and tax 1,241.06 1,304.51 352.47 1,205.30
Exceptional Items - 645.76 - 491.55
Profit after exceptional
items and before tax 1,241.06 658.75 352.47 712.75
Tax Expense 217.61 383.34 135.43 197.44
Profit After Tax 1,023.44 27541 217.04 516.31
Transfer to Special Reserve
under Section 45-IC of The 204.69 89.04 204.69 89.04
RBI Act, 1934

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS

Your Company offers personal loan, education loan and unsecured business loan, secured school
finance, supply chain finance and lending to FIs / Escrow backed lending under SME
segment. Currently, the business is spread in 17 major cities across 9 states in India including Mumbai,
Pune, Delhi, Surat, Ahmedabad, Rajkot, Jaipur, Bangalore, Hyderabad, Chennai, Madurai, Coimbatore,
Kolkata, Vijayawada, Vadodara, and Thane through its 21 offices with an employee base of
~600 employees spread across various functions. The Company has loan assets of INR 2,634 crs as of
March 31, 2021. The net NPA of the Company is about 1.71% as of March 31, 2021. Your Company has
a strong capital base of circa INR 1,046 crs . The Debt Equity ratio of the Company stands at 1.64x as
on March 31, 2021. Your Company has a diversified portfolio comprising consumer loans (46%) and
MSME Business loans (54%).
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Overview of the FY 2020-21:

e The Company’s revenue was INR 391.85 crs and profit after tax increased to INR 10.23 crs
during the year as against INR 2.75 crs in previous year;

e Assets under management grew to INR 2,553.60 crs as against INR 2,048.49 crs in previous
year;

e Gross and Net NPAs were 3.43% and 1.71%;

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (CRAR)

The Company maintains a healthy CRAR of 37.20 % which is much higher than the prescribed
minimum CRAR of 15% as per prudential norms. Following are the details of Tier I & II Capital of the
Company as on March 31, 2020:

CRAR- Tier I Capital : 36.54%
CRAR- Tier II Capital : 0.66%
CAPITAL AND DEBT RAISE

During the Financial Year 2020-21, the Company has allotted 91,209 equity shares pursuant to the
Company’s ESOP Scheme.

Further, the Company has raised INR 1292.5 Crs out of which INR 622 Crs were raised through
issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures of which INR 450 Crs is under the Targeted Long-Term Repo
Operation (TLTRO) Scheme and Partial Credit Guarantee Scheme (PCGS). Further, your Company,
raised INR 650.50 Crs through term loan and working capital from various banks and INR 20 Crs
through the issuance of Commercial paper.

The Company intends to use the capital raised through the raise to boost its balance sheet lending, as
well as in making further investments in technology initiatives to drive analytics and risk management
capabilities.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report, for the year under review is presented as
Annexure A which forms part of this report.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your Company has two subsidiaries viz. InCred Management & Technology Services Private Limited
and Booth Fintech Private Limited as on March 31, 2021.

2|Page

124



INCRED FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT FY 2020-2021

As on March 31, 2021, the Company had one Associate Company i.e. mValu Technology Services
Private Limited. The Company does not have any joint ventures within the meaning of Section 2(6) of
the Companies Act, 2013 as on March 31, 2021.

During the year under the review, InCred Housing Finance Private Limited merged into InCred
Financial Services Limited pursuant to order passed by the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench on March 11, 2021 and effectively InCred Housing Finance Private Limited ceased to be the
subsidiary of the Company.

Further, InCred.Al Limited was incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company with effect
from April 5, 2021.

The statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate
Companies/ pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, in Form AOC 1, is provided as Annexure B.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has prepared consolidated
financial statements comprising of the balance sheet, statement of profit & loss and the cash flow
statements of the Company which shall be laid before the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company. The audited consolidated financial statements together with Auditors’ Report form part of
the Annual Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION AFTER
BALANCE SHEET DATE

There have been no material changes or commitments which affect the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between end of the financial year to which the financial statements
relate and the date of this Report.

IMPACT OF COVID -19 PANDEMIC

The detailed disclosure on the material impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the Company is forming part
of the Financial Statements of the Company. You may refer to Note no. 28 A of the Standalone Financial
Statements for the same.

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Company continued to carry on its business as Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Finance Company
within the framework given by RBI for NBFCs.

DIVIDEND

In order to conserve the internal resources of the Company for future prospect and growth, the Board
of Directors of your Company has not recommended to give any dividend on the equity shares of the
Company for the financial year under review.
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Your Company being an NBFC, has transferred a sum of INR 204.69 lakhs to the statutory reserve as
required under section 45-1C of RBI Act, 1935.

DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board is in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, (“Act”) and the rules framed thereunder, guideline(s) issued by the Reserve Bank of India
(“RBI”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”), as applicable.

As on the date of this report, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of 6 directors
comprising of two Wholetime Directors, two Independent Directors and two Non-executive Non
Independent Directors.

Following changes with respect to the Board took place during the year under review:
Cessation:

During the year under review, due to other professional commitments Dr. Parvinder Singh Pasricha
resigned from the office of Independent director with effect from September 3, 2020.

Subsequent to the year under review, Mr. Deepak Narang, Independent Director has resigned with
effect from June 11, 2021, due to his pre-occupation with other assignments along with his
engagement in other personal work.

Further, Mr. Girish Nadkarni, appointed as the Nominee Director of M/s. Investcorp Private Equity
Fund II (“Investcorp”) pursuant to the provisions of the Shareholders Agreement entered between the
Company, promoter, and investors ceased to be a director with effect from June 13, 2021 on account
of reduction in shareholding of Investcorp below 6% of the paid-up capital of the Company, the
threshold of shareholding that enables investors to appoint directors on the Board of the Company in
terms of Shareholders Agreement dated April 11, 2019..

The Board places on record its sincere appreciation for the valuable contribution and guidance
provided by Dr. Parvinder Singh Pasricha, Mr. Deepak Narang and Mr. Girish Nadkarni during their
association with the Company towards establishing and building the Company into a well-respected
and highly profitable credit institution.

Appointment:

During the year under review, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee,
the Board of Directors of the Company on November 30, 2020, has appointed
Mr. Debashish Dutta Gupta as Independent Director for a period of 5 years with effect from December
1, 2020, not liable to retire by rotation subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Company has received the requisite notice from the member in writing proposing the
appointment of Mr. Debashish Dutta Gupta.
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A brief profile of Mr. Debashish Dutta Gupta has been included in the notice convening the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors, have submitted a declaration of independence, as required pursuant to
section 149(7) of the Act, stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in section
149(6).

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the Act and the
rules made thereunder for appointment as Independent Director and confirm that they are
independent of the management.

DIRECTORS RETIRING BY ROTATION

In terms of Section 152(6) of the Act read with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Vivek
Bansal (DIN: 07835456), Director being longest in office, shall retire by rotation and being eligible has
offered himself for reappointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. A brief
profile of Mr. Vivek Bansal has been included in the notice convening the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

DIRECTORS DECLARATION AND DISCLOSURES

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the provisions of the Act, the Listing
Regulations, and the RBI Directions, none of the Directors on the Board of your Company are
disqualified from being appointed or to continue as Directors.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Ms. Nikita Hule resigned as the Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f
August 31, 2020, and Mr. Gajendra Thakur was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company
w.e.f. September 1, 2020.

As per Section 203 of the Act read with the rules made thereunder, the following employees were the
whole-time key managerial personnel of the Company as on March 31, 2021:

1. Mr. Bhupinder Singh, Whole Time Director & Chief Executive Officer
2. Mr. Vivek Bansal, Whole Time Director & Chief Financial Officer
3. Mr. Gajendra Thakur, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of your Company met four times during the financial year on June 11, 2020,
August 31, 2020, November 6, 2020 and February 17, 2021.
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The Company has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and
General Meetings for the financial year under review. The details of the board meetings held are
annexed to this report as Annexure C.

The Meeting of the independent directors was held on March 30, 2021.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors, hereby declare that to the best
of our knowledge and belief:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

(b) We have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period.

(c) We have had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(d) We have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis and

(e) We have had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

(f) We had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

STATUTORY COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The composition of the Audit Committee is in conformity with provisions the of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules issued thereunder. The members of the Audit Committee are
financially literate, have ability to read and understand financial statements and have experience in
financial management. The present composition of Audit Committee is as follows:

1. Mrs. Rupa Vora, Chairperson and Independent Director
2. Mr. Antonius Bruijninckx, Non-Executive Director
3. Mr. Debashish Dutta Gupta, Independent Director

Consequent to the resignation of Mr. Deepak Narang w.e.f June 11, 2021, the Audit Committee was
reconstituted on June 13, 2021, to comprise of the members mentioned above.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013.
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The Audit Committee met four times during the financial year i.e. on June 11, 2020, August 31, 2020,
November 6, 2020 and February 17, 2021. During the period under review, all the recommendations
made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board of Directors.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The present composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows:
Mrs. Rupa Vora, Independent Director

Mr. Debashish Dutta Gupta, Independent Director

Mr. Bhupinder Singh, Wholetime Director & CEO
Mr. Vivek Anand PS, Non-Executive Director

W=

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are in accordance with the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Consequent to the resignation of Mr. Deepak Narang w.e.f. June 11, 2021, and Mr. Girish Nadkarni
w.e.f. June 13, 2021, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was reconstituted on June 13,
2021, to comprise of the members mentioned above.

The Committee met three times in the financial year i.e. on June 11, 2020, August 31, 2020, and
November 6, 2020.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee in compliance with the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules
framed thereunder that looks into the complaints of aggrieved women employees, if any, and is
instrumental in:

e promoting gender equality and justice and the universally recognized human right to work
with dignity
e prevention of sexual harassment of women at the workplace.

There were no complaints reported in this regard in the Company during the financial year under
review.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, your Board has constituted a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) committee to support the Company in achieving the CSR objectives of the
Company. The CSR committee of the Board of Directors comprises of the following:

1. Mr. Bhupinder Singh, Member
2. Mrs. Rupa Vora, Member
3. Mr. Vivek Bansal, Member
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The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are in accordance with the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Corporate Social Responsibility committee met twice in the financial year i.e. on August 31, 2020
and March 24, 2021.

The Company’s CSR policy is committed towards CSR activities as envisaged in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013. In terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 as amended (“CSR Rules”) and in accordance with CSR
Policy, during the year, the Company has spent INR 20,05,000 towards CSR projects/ programs. The
CSR Policy adopted by your Company is also available on the website of the Company at https://www.
Incred.com. The Annual Report on CSR activities as required under Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is attached to this report as Annexure D.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The policy also covers the criteria for determining qualifications and other attributes for appointment
of directors including independent directors. The salient features of the Policy are given below. The
Policy is also available on the website of the Company https://www.incred.com

> Objective and Purpose of the Policy

i. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, competencies, positive attributes
and independence for the appointment of a director and to recommend their
appointment/removal;

ii. Tolay outthe remuneration principles for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
employees.

» A person to be appointed as Director, KMP should possess adequate qualification, expertise and
experience for the position he / she is considered for appointment. A Whole-Time KMP of the
Company shall not hold office in more than one Company except in its subsidiary company at the
same time.

» The Company may appoint or re-appoint a person as Managing Director/Manager/Whole-time
Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. An Independent Director shall hold office
for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-
appointment for another term up to five consecutive years.

» The remuneration should be reasonable and sufficient to justify the position and responsibility
and to retain the Directors. The relationship of remuneration to performance should be clear and
meet appropriate performance benchmarks.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises of Mr. Bhupinder Singh, Wholetime Director & CEO, Mr.
Vivek Bansal, Wholetime Director & CFO, Mr. Saurabh Jhalaria, Head - SME and Mr. Prithvi
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Chandrasekhar, Head - Risk. The role, terms of reference and power of the Risk Management
Committee are in conformity with the requirements RBI Master Directions. The Risk Management
committee met twice in the financial year i.e. on October 27, 2020 and March 15, 2021.

Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)

The ALCO comprises of Mr. Bhupinder Singh, Wholetime Director & CEO, Mr. Vivek Bansal, Wholetime
Director & CFO and Mr. Saurabh Jhalaria, Head - SME. The role, terms of reference and power of the
ALCO are in conformity with the requirements of the provisions of RBI Master Direction. The ALCO
met three times in the financial year i.e. on May 25, 2020, November 6, 2020 and January 27, 2021.

IT Strategy Committee

The IT Strategy Committee comprises of Mr. Rupa Vora, Chairperson & Independent Director Mr.
Bhupinder Singh, Wholetime Director & CEO, Mr. Vivek Bansal, Wholetime Director & CFO, Mr.
Antonius Bruijninckx, Director & Member and Mr. Rahul Bhargava, Member. The role, terms of
reference and power of the IT Strategy Committee are in conformity with the requirements of the
Master Direction - Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector issued by the RBI. The IT
Strategy Committee met twice in the financial year i.e. on July 8, 2020 and January 27, 2021.

EVALUATION OF BOARD

The Board acknowledges its intention to establish and follow “best practices” in board governance to
fulfil its fiduciary obligation to the Company. The Board is committed to assessing its own performance
as a Board to identify its strengths and areas in which it may improve its functioning.

The Company has laid down an Evaluation Policy for Board Evaluation, approved by the Board of
Directors setting the criteria based on which the Board has carried out an annual performance
evaluation of its own performance, the individual directors as well as the evaluation of its various
Committees. The evaluation was conducted based on a structured questionnaire which comprises
performance criteria such as performance of duties and obligations, independence of judgement, level
of engagement and participation, their contribution in enhancing the Board’s overall effectiveness, etc.
The Board has expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION & PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

In terms of Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Employees of the Company have been provided in Annexure E to this
report.

In terms of Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the statement relating to particulars of
employees of the Company is available for inspection by the Members at the registered office of the
Company during business hours on working days. A copy of this statement may be obtained by the
Members by writing to the Company Secretary of the Company. The Board hereby confirms that the
remuneration paid to the Directors is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Company believes that its success is largely determined by the quality of its workforce and their
commitment towards achieving the goals of the Company. To enable the employees of the Company
to participate in the future growth and success of the Company, the Company has implemented InCred
Financial Services Employee Incentive Scheme - 2018.

In terms of Section 62 of the Actread with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014, the disclosures for FY ended on March 31, 2021, is annexed in Annexure F to this report.

AUDITORS

M/s. BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Registration No. 101248W), the
Statutory Auditors of the Company were appointed in the twenty Sixth Annual General
Meeting of the Company with effect from the conclusion of that Meeting to hold the office as
the auditors for a term of 5 (Five) years from the conclusion of the Twenty Sixth Annual
General Meeting until the conclusion of the thirty first Annual General Meeting at such
remuneration as was mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and
the said Auditors. However, since M/s. BSR & Co. LLP, have already completed the tenure of 3 years,
they are no longer eligible to continue as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in accordance with
the guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India vide their circular dated April 27, 2021 issued Guidelines
for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks
(excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs).

Subject to approval of the members, , the Board of Directors of the Company has recommended the
appointment of M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP (FRN: 101049W/E300004) as the statutory
auditors of the Company pursuant to section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013. Members’ attention is
drawn to a Resolution proposing the appointment of M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP as the
statutory auditors of the Company which is included in item no. 4 of the notice of the AGM.

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the Statutory
Auditor in their Audit Report. The Notes to the financial statements referred in the Auditors Report
are self-explanatory .. The Auditors’ Report is enclosed with the financial statements in the Annual
Report.

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any instances of fraud in the
Company committed by officers or employees of the Company to the Audit Committee.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed
M/s. Ashish Karodia & Co. to undertake the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year
2020-21. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed to this report as Annexure G and does not contain
any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks, or disclaimers.

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

Name of Debenture Trustee - Axis Trustee Services Limited

10|Page

132



INCRED FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT FY 2020-2021

Contact person - Chief Operating Officer

Address - Ground Floor, Axis House, Wadia International Centre, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worlj,
Mumbai - 400 025

Tel. Nos - +91 22 6226 0054

Email addresses -debenturetrustee@axistrustee.com

Website - www.axistrustee.com

Name of Debenture Trustee - Catalyst Trusteeship Limited*

Contact person - Manager

Address - Windsor, 6th floor, Office No.604, C.S.T Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai - 400098
Tel. Nos - 022-49220548

Email addresses - compliancectl-mumbai@ctltrustee.com

Website - https://www.catalysttrustee.com/

*Catalyst Trusteeship Limited was appointed as the Trustee w.e.f. June 22, 2020
SHIFTING OF REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY.

During the year under review, the Board of directors had approved the shifting of the Registered Office
of the Company within local limits from 1502 -A, The Capital, C-70, G Block, Bandra
Kurla Complex, Mumbai 400 051 to Unit No. 1203, 12th floor, B Wing, The Capital, Plot No. C - 70,
G Block, Bandra - Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400 051 with effect from August 1, 2020.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required under Section 92(3) of the Act and the rules made thereunder and amended from time to
time, the extract of Annual Return of the Company in the prescribed Form MGT-7 is available on the
website of the Company at www.incred.com.

CREDIT RATING

During the period under review, your Company has received credit rating from CARE for its borrowing
program as under:

Facilities Rating

Long term Bank facilities

CRISIL A (Stable) / CARE A (Negative)

Non- Convertible Debentures

CRISIL A(Stable) / CARE A (Negative)

Secured Redeemable Principal
Protected -Market Linked Non-
Convertible Debenture (PP-ML-NCD)

CRISIL PP-MLD Ar (Stable) /
CARE PP-MLD A (Negative)

Commercial Paper

CRISIL A1 / CARE A1

Short term bank facilities

CRISIL A1
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In March 2021, CRISIL Ratings has assigned Long Term rating of “CRISIL A” with ‘Stable’ outlook for
the Non-Convertible Debentures and “CRISIL PP-MLD A r” with ‘Stable’ outlook for the Principal
protected Market Linked Debentures issuances by the company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Since the Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company, the disclosures regarding particulars of the
loans given, guarantee given and security provided is exempt under the provisions of Section 186(11)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 (4) of the Act the details of investments made by
the Company are provided under Notes forming part of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2021.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company has entered transactions with its subsidiaries in normal course of business and on an
arm’s length basis. The particulars of such contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to
Section 188(1), as prescribed in Form AOC - 2 under Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, are specified in the Annexure H annexed to this report.

The Board of Directors of your Company has formulated a policy on related party transactions, which
is displayed on the web site of the Company at www.incred.com.This policy deals with review of the
related party transactions and regulates all transactions between the Company and its Related Parties.

The details pertaining to as required as per clause 53 (F) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the financial year is provided
in Annexure I of this Report.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is in the financial services industry. In view of the nature of activities which are being
carried on by the Company, the maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act is not applicable on the Company and hence such
accounts and records are not maintained.

SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS OF REGULATORS/COURTS/TRIBUNALS

No significant or material orders were passed by the regulator or court or tribunal which impacts the
going concern status and the Company’s operations in future.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

There were no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors, vis- a-vis the
company during the financial year 2020-2021 therefore there are no disclosures to be provided
herein.

Details of remuneration/ sitting fees paid to directors has been presented in Annexure E.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Considering that the Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company, the particulars regarding
conservation of energy and technology absorption as required to be disclosed pursuant to Section
134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
not relevant to its activities.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company has incurred INR 38.35 lakhs expenditure in foreign exchange but not earned any
Foreign Exchange during the year of review.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Your Company has a Board approved Risk Management Policy which has laid down a framework for
identifying, assessing, measuring various elements of risk involved in the business and formulation of
procedures and systems for mitigating such risks. Risk Management Committee of the Company has
overall responsibility for overseeing the risk management activities of the Company. Your Company
has established procedures to periodically place risk management reports before the Risk
Management Committee.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and implemented
by the Company are adequate. During the year under review, no material or serious observation has
been received from the Statutory Auditors of the Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such
controls. Your Statutory Auditors, M/s. BSR & Co. LLP, have issued unqualified report on Internal
Financial Control.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and explanations obtained
by us and based on the report(s) of Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year under
review, the Directors are of the view that the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements of the Company were adequate and operating efficiently.

VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
established vigil mechanism for directors, employees, and other external stakeholders to report
genuine concerns. Vigil Mechanism forms part of Whistle Blower Policy, which has been approved by
the Board of Directors and is displayed on the web site of the Company at https://www.incred.com.

DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any public deposits during the year under review and shall not accept
any deposits from the public without obtaining prior approval of the RBI. Further, your Company being
an NBFC, disclosure requirements under Chapter V of the Act read with Rule 8(5)(v) and 8(5)(vi) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to your Company.
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RBI COMPLIANCE

The Company has complied with the RBI regulations as applicable to it as a Non-Deposit taking Non-
Banking Finance Company. The Company being a Non-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Finance
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year under review and shall not
accept any deposits from the public without obtaining prior approval of the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI).

FEMA COMPLIANCE

With respect to the foreign direct investments and downstream investments made by the Company
during the financial year under review, the Board hereby confirms that the Company has complied
with all the provisions and requirements as applicable under the Master Direction - Foreign
Investment in India issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

In terms of provisions of Section 118 of the Companies Act, 2013 your Company is in compliance with
Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors and Secretarial Standards on General
Meeting issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board acknowledges with gratitude the cooperation and assistance provided to your Company by
all the regulatory authorities. The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation to the contribution
made by employees of the Company during the year under review. Your Directors thank the
customers, clients, vendors, lenders and other business associates for their continued support and are
thankful to the Shareholders for their patronage.

For InCred Financial Services Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Bhupinder Singh Vivek Bansal

Whole Time Director and CEO Whole Time Director and CFO
DIN: 07342318 DIN: 07835456

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 23,2021
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ANNEXURE A
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Company is a non-deposit taking Non-banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and is engaged in the business of lending.

InCred has diversified lending portfolio across retail and SME customers with presence in all major
cities of India. It offers variety of financial services products to its customers. InCred has 3 subsidiaries
namely, InCred Management and Technology Services Private Limited, Booth Fintech Private Limited
and InCred.Ai Limited.

Macroeconomic and Industry Overview - COVID and Lockdown changed the world!

We are living through one of the toughest times of our lives. While health wise, the COVID-19 pandemic
has affected 4.7 million people across most countries of the world, global economy is facing one of its
worst periods ever and has virtually come to a grinding halt. The most affluent countries are not
spared by this highly contagious virus. Even India, relatively less affected on percentage of population
terms, is crippled by loss of commercial activities. Lockdowns have caused over 50% reduction in of
the world’s gross domestic product (GDP). The challenge is that nobody seems know whether we are
at the start, middle or end of crisis.

In India too, millions of unemployed daily wage workers and their families trying to walk back to their
villages hundreds of kilometres away; has uncovered the weak social security infrastructure. While
the number of infected people is going up every day, the Government of India has now started opening
up the economy in parts. Containment zones in cities and metropolises continue to remain locked
down. Efforts are being made to carefully open up economic activities across most parts of the country
with adequate social distancing, use of masks and other stringent health protocols. Even so, returning
to the pre-COVID-19 normal seems distant. The efforts of government and policy makers are facing
low Consumer confidence, inadequate public transport infrastructure and new health protocol driven
working conditions to accommodate growing need of people to get back to routine life.

There appears to be consensus among economists and business community that real GDP growth may
see one of the steepest falls in GDP growth in last few decades. Frankly speaking, we do not know.
What we can say quite clearly is that not just us in India, but across much of the world, FY2021 will be
the most difficult year that we have seen for a very long time. Good news is that this time around, the
Central banks and Governments across the world have unleashed massive fiscal measures to protect
economic activity including some of the most aggressive monetary and regulatory measures. The
Government of India announced measures aggregating to approximately 10% of nominal GDP. The
package includes additional liquidity to sectors like NBFC and MSME, government guarantees on
lending by banks, greater allocation to social spending schemes like MNREGA, direct bank transfers,
free foodgrains for the poor, etc. Earlier, RBI had lowered the benchmark repo rate to its lowest ever
level of 4.0%. Also, the RBI announced a moratorium of from April 1,2020 1 to August 31, 2020, on
repayment of term loans and interest on working capital, taking the total period of applicability of the
moratorium period to 6 months. The shape of the post-pandemic recovery curve depends upon the
length of time for which economic activity is subdued, and damage caused by it. Besides special
liquidity and partial credit guarantee scheme to provide liquidity to NBFCs, HFCs, MFIs and mutual
funds, (v) 100% credit guarantee scheme for aggregate INR 3 lakh crore of emergency credit lines by
banks and NBFCs to their MSME borrowers and (vi) subordinated debt and equity support to MSMEs.
The Government has also initiated compliance relief measures across various regulatory
requirements. The RBI has also initiated several measures like reduction in policy rates, monetary
transmission, credit flows to the economy and providing relief on debt servicing. Given the extended
tenor of lockdown and severity of its impact on the economy, it is likely that the fiscal stimulus
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announced so far may not have the desirable effect on the economy at least in the short term. It
remains to be seen whether there are other fiscal measures in the offing.

The Company and its subsidiaries took immediate steps to manage this unprecedented situation, some
of the focus areas have been:

= People: Keeping safety of the employees as paramount, we provided all the IT support
required for them to work from home following strict guidelines as prescribed by government
agencies.

= Strengthening Capabilities: Risk management is culturally embedded in your company’s
DNA. So, we have used this crisis to further improve our technology, analytics and collections
capabilities. This is to ensure that the portfolio quality is maintained to the best of possibilities
and employees are motivated to maintain productivity.

= Cost & Operating Expenses Effectiveness: Prudent cost control measures for both salary and
non-salary costs have been implemented resulting in significant savings and capital
preservation.

* Conservative Liquidity Management

* Brand and Reputation Management

Your company has triggered the business continuity plans and also ensured that all the partners are
also following the health protocols and regulatory guidelines on this crisis management.

Industry Outlook:

The NBFC sector continued to play an important role in bringing the Indians on fringes to the
mainstream of credit access. NBFCs are also powering the digitisation of entire sector through use of
latest technology. This has resulted in improved financial inclusion, product innovation and superior
services especially to the unbanked population.

To ease liquidity pressure on NBFCs, the RBI had taken multiple actions including a Targeted Long-
Term Repo Operation (TLTRO) for the sector of INR 50,000 crore and a special financing window
through SIDBI, NABARD and National Housing Bank (NHB) of another INR 50,000 crore to enable
financing NBFCs.

This pandemic is also expected to result in a deterioration in the asset quality of the financial sector.
It remains to be seen how this will pan out when economic activities resume. It is certain that the
NBFCs with better equity cover and less leverage will be relatively unscathed during these tough times.
Your company is in strong position in that regard.

InCred Financial Services Limited:
Performance highlights of the Company (Standalone) for the Financial Year 2020-21:

v" Number of Employees as on March 31, 2021 was 623

v" Loans and Advances grew to INR 2,55,359.84 lakhs as against INR 2,04,849.17 lakhs in the
previous year.

Net Interest Income - INR 22,44.0.35 lakhs

Total Costs to Income ratio - 68%

Impairment - INR 8,865.37 lakhs

Profit before Tax - INR 1,241.06 lakhs

Profit after Tax - INR 1,023.44 Lakhs

ANANANAN

The Company is present in over 20 offices in 9 states across the country.
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Your Company is well capitalised with a capital-to-risk weighted asset ratio (CRAR) of 37% as at March
31, 2021.

The Company’s loan book is robust because of strong risk culture and contemporary risk management
practices driven by local expertise, advanced analytics and enabled by cutting-edge technology. I[FSL’s
net NPA at 1.68% is among the lowest in the NBFC industry.

IFSL has prudently manage its asset liability management (ALM) by raising long-term borrowings and
maintaining a judicious mix of borrowings between banks, MLDs, etc. It has a comprehensive liquidity
management framework and maintains an abundant liquidity buffer to manage liquidity risk.

Opportunities and Threats:

COVID pandemic has acted as a ‘quality separator’ between well managed NBFCs and average ones.
Over leveraged NBFCs will likely struggle in the new world, as the ones who do not have risk and
collections management competencies. For the initiated companies, there is expected to be significant
pent-up demand after the rate of growth of virus starts reducing and/or vaccine is found. At that time,
well capitalized NBFCs with technology and talented leadership will have opportunity to cherry pick
the right credit from large Indian consumer lending market.

However, temporary job & income losses during lockdown will have negative impact portfolio quality
and growth forecasts and will seriously challenge the cost to income ratios. Because of Transmission
effect, the government’s policy initiatives to ease liquidity and consumer demand will take a while to
give real push to the sector to come back to normalcy.

Risks and Concerns:

The COVID has also exposed the vulnerabilities of Credit, Operational, Liquidity and Interest rate risks
for most NBFCs. Fortunately, for your Company, early and continued investments into creating robust
risk management framework along with diversified portfolio strategy have served us very well so far.
We not only have product diversification but also geographical spread that allows to us contain the
risks within acceptable limits.

Our gross NPAs stood at 3.43% for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. Mechanism to plough
back the intelligence into regular policy upgrades have ensured that we stay ahead of curve in
maintaining the quality of portfolio.

Strong governance framework that includes various committees involving board members and senior
leadership at the highestlevel ensures that timely course correction is done whenever required. Ahead
of time investment in fraud control unit and collections has only amplified our risk structures,
processes and performance. Superior technology and advanced analytics play an important role in
getting early warning signals and have been fundamental to our approach to risk management. Daily
MIS metrices and Internal audits help us identify the outliers in expected performances across risk
areas.

Besides the macro-economic factors like COVID etc., partner risk is something that we have been
watching closely. Overall, InCred seem to be well poised to grow with best in class risk management
practices.

Business Update:

The Company caters to lower middle class to middle class Indian households for their personal finance
needs like education loans, personal loans. Correspondingly, it also offers unsecured business loans to
small businesses, secured loan to 12 Indian schools for their expansion plans, supply chain financing,
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Financial Institution lending to profitable micro finance companies and escrow backed lending
through its SME vertical.

Our guiding principle that the Company will operate in areas where we have a ‘right to play’ because
of our deep domain expertise in comprehensively understanding underlying risks in any segment has
been the most vital in our success. Additionally, our ability to originate and process large number of
applications with much better efficiencies than the competition has helped us to keep the operating
costs under control.

Personal Loans:

In our most digitized through put business, we are continuing to grow cautiously and outperforming
our benchmarks across risk, origination and operational efficiencies:

Total number of loans made as on March 31, 2021 were more than 600,000

Loan book saw growth of 66% during FY2021 stood at INR 79,355 lakhs.

Gross deployment in FY2021 were INR 87,693 lakhs.

PL business was fueled by growing customer franchise, strategic partnerships, investment in
advanced analytics and customer centric processing capabilities.

AN

Student Loans:

In this niche lending space, our experienced team has created one of the strongest brands for InCred.
Extensive knowledge about the education sector, its finer nuances like accreditations, fees structures,
entrance scores, evaluation systems, university/college/course rankings etc. give us the ability to
predict the potential employability and income for any student that we fund. The customer here is
highly qualified, demanding and has potential to be InCred customer for most of his/her financial
needs for next 30-40 years. Numbers so far are:

v Loan book stood at INR 33,076 lakhs

v' We have funded over 2,200 talented Indian students, who have gone to over 600 plus universities
across 25 countries

v Over 4,390 students applied for InCred education loan during the year

v' First batch of InCred funded students that are coming out after completing their courses are
getting salaries ranging from $ 50,000+ to $ 150,000+, endorsing our superior underwriting

v" Only 1 student is 90+ overdue

MSME Lending:
Anchor backed business loans:

v Risks are contained because of proactive monitoring of portfolio and regular evaluation of cash
flows of borrowers

v' Focus on customers and partnerships engaged in IT distribution, Consumer business,
pharmaceuticals, delivery-ecommerce platform, restaurant and food delivery platforms.

v Loan book increased from INR 23,023 lakhs to INR 27,808 lakhs i.e. growth of 20.8%

Lending to FI's and Escrow backed lending:

v Loan book grew at 86% to INR 53,524 lakhs from INR 28,737 lakhs
v Focus on companies with robust ALM practices and companies financing microfinance sector
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School Financing (secured):

Another business vertical where InCred is dominant player because of its specific expertise is lending
to 12 schools in few states of India.

v School loans AUM grew by 28% to INR 57,245 lakhs in FY 2021 from INR 44,550 crores in FY
2020

v" Predominantly spread across South and West because of the prevailing culture of education and
more transparent fees structures.

New Business Segments

Your Board of Directors at their meeting held on February 17, 2021, have approved the engagement in new
product / businesses namely Loan Against Property, Micro Finance Institution Business and certain
financial products such as Loan Against Securities, Margin funding, ESOPs funding and IPO financing.

Financial Performance and operational performance (Standalone):

e During the financial year 2020-21, the Company’s total income amounted to INR 39,184.91 lakhs,
as compared to INR 33,156.65 lakhs in 2019-20.

e The Company’s profit after tax Increased to INR 1,023.44 lakhs during financial year 2021-21
from INR 275.41 lakhs in 2019-20.

e Gross NPAs and net NPAs for the year under review stood at 3.43% and 1.68% respectively.

e (apital Adequacy Ratio (CRAR): The Company maintained a CRAR of 37% during 2020-21

e Assets under Management (AUM): The total Assets under Management (AUM) as on March 31,
2021 stood at INR 2,63,366.49 lakhs as against Rs. 2,07,690.51 lakhs as at March 31, 2020.

Outlook:

Developments during the last year have clearly separated well run NBFCs with prudent risk & ALM
managements practices from mediocre companies with ‘me too’ business models in the same space.
Quality of leadership, integrity and high standards of governance will decide the future of not only the
new players but also entrenched incumbents. With democratization of technology, brands built
through Customer experience and values-based culture will be the only sustainable competitive
advantages.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

The company’s internal control framework is designed to ensure operational efficiency in a secure
environment, accuracy and promptness in financial reporting and management information and
compliance with laws and regulations. To support the internal control system, an internal audit
process has been implemented to continuously evaluate the design, adequacy and efficacy of the
Company’s internal controls, including its systems and processes and compliance with regulations and
procedures. The Company’s internal control system is commensurate with its size, nature and
operations.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT
INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED

As on March 31, 2021, the Company had 623 employees. During financial year 2020-21. the Company
has optimised its manpower and focused on increasing per person productivity through improved
processes and development of IT systems which automated certain business processes. The Company
continued focus on hiring high quality talent across organisation with special focus on Tech and
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Analytics teams. It ensured lot more employee engagement initiatives to ensure for employees, we
strike fine balance between work demands and workplace fun.

It also ensured consistent and timely feedback and guidance from superiors for employees. It created
employee communication platforms at regular intervals with senior management so that employees
get an understanding of current business realities and priorities as well as senior management
understands employee feedback on major business initiatives as well as get an opportunity to listen
to any suggestions/areas of concern etc.

The Company continued emphasis on regulatory training requirements like KYC and POSH etc. In
addition, it introduced certain employee development initiatives. Many of those were linked to
Company values and culture besides focusing on building skills for employees. The Company tracks
employee morale and engagement monthly as it is one the key strategic priorities in shaping the
desired culture for the organisation.

It also carried out annual engagement survey to track engagement levels across teams and took
corrective actions wherever needed. The Company’s further enhanced certain features of our HRIS
system to create seamless and paperless experience for all its employees including new joinees.

The Company continued to build strong HR team and processes and consistently aligned HR policies
to ensure highest levels of governance in its people processes. The Company complied with all
regulatory requirements. The industrial relations situation remained cordial in the Company.

For InCred Financial Services Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Bhupinder Singh Vivek Bansal

Whole time Director and CEO Whole Time Director and CFO
DIN: 07342318 DIN: 07835456

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 23,2021
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ANNEXURE B

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint

ventures
Sr. No. 1 2
2 Name of the Subsidiary InCred Management and Booth Fintech Pvt Ltd
Technology Services Pvt Ltd
3 Registered Office Unit No. 1203, 12th floor, B Wing, Unit No. 1203, 12th floor, B Wing,
The Capital, Plot No. C - 70, G The Capital, Plot No. C - 70, G Block,
Block, Bandra - Kurla Complex, Bandra - Kurla Complex, Bandra
Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051 East, Mumbai - 400051
4 Nature of Business Support services Advisory and Consultancy services
company
5 No. Of Branches Nil Nil
6 Reporting period April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021
7 Reporting currency INR INR
8 Exchange rate on the last day NA NA
of the financial year
9 Share Capital 2,290.00 2.04
10 | Reserves and Surplus (1,086.77) 436.56
11 | Total assets (Fixed assets + 1,262.35 443.83
Investments + Other assets)
12 | Total liabilities (Deposits + 59.12 5.23
Borrowings + Other liabilities
+ Provisions)
13 | Investments - 391.39
14 | Turnover 63.36 5.03
15 | Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (561.31) (1.78)
16 | Provision for tax
17 | Profit/ (Loss) After Tax (561.31) (1.78)
18 | Proposed dividend - -
19 | % of shareholding 100% 100%
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Part “B”: Associates & Joint Ventures- mValu Technology Services Private Limited

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate companies
and Joint Ventures

1 | Latest audited balance sheet date
Shares of Associate/joint Ventures held by the
company on the year end
Number

2

Amount of investment in associates/ joint
venture

Extent of holding %

Description of how there are significant

March 31,2021

1,95,694 Class B CCPS
INR 391.39 lakhs (Cost)

40.96% (dilutive)

31]. Refer Note 1
influence
Reason why the associate/joint venture is not
4 ) NA
consolidated
Net worth attributable to shareholding as per
> latest audited balance sheet INR 953.24 lakhs
6 | Profit/ (loss) for the year INR (853.45 lakhs)
i | (Loss) Considered in consolidation INR (349.57 lakhs)
ii | Not considered in consolidation INR (503. 88 lakhs)
Note 1

Through Booth Fintech Private Limited (Subsidiary of InCred Financial Services Limited)

For InCred Financial Services Limited

Sd/-

Bhupinder Singh
Whole time Director and CEO

DIN:

07342318

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 23, 2021
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ANNEXURE C
Details of Board Meeting held during FY 2020-21

Quarter No. of meetings | Date of meeting(s)
held
April 2020 to June 2020 1 June 11, 2020

July 2020 to September 2020 | 1

October 2020 to December | 1
2020

January 2021 to March 2021 1

August 31, 2020
November 6, 2020

February 17, 2021

Details of General meetings

Type of meeting Date of meeting(s)

Annual General meeting 30-09-2020

Extra ordinary General meeting 20-05-2020
10-08-2020

Attendance of Board of Directors for the meetings held during the financial year 2020-21

Name of Director 11.06.2020 31.08.2020 | 06.11.2020 17.02.2021
Mr. Bhupinder Singh Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Vivek Bansal Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Debashish Dutta Gupta ** NA NA NA Yes
Mr. Girish Nadkarni# Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Rupa Vora Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Vivekanand P S Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Deepak Narang## Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Parvinder Pasricha* Yes Yes NA NA
Mr. Antonius Bruijninckx Yes Yes Yes Yes

**Mr. Debashish Dutta gupta is appointed w.e.f December 01, 2020

* Dr. Parvinder Pasricha resigned as Additional Independent Director w.e.f September 3, 2020

#Mr. Girish Nadkarni resigned as Director w.e.f. June 13, 2021
##Mr. Deepak Narang resigned as Independent Director w.e.f. June 11, 2021

Attendance for the meetings of Audit Committee held during the financial year 2020-21

Name of Director 11.06.2020 31.08.2020 06.11.2020 17.02.2021
Mr. Bhupinder Singh# Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mrs. Rupa Vora (Chairperson) Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Deepak Narang* Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Parvinder Pasricha* Yes Yes NA NA
Mr. Antonius Bruijninckx Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Debashish Dutta Gupta ** NA NA NA Yes

**Mr. Debashish Dutta Gupta is appointed w.e.f. December 1, 2020
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* Dr. Parvinder Pasricha resigned as Additional Independent Director w.e.f. September 3, 2020 and Mr. Deepak Narang resigned

as Director w.e.f June 11, 2021

# Mr. Bhupinder Singh discontinued to be the member of the Audit Committee, since the same was reconstituted on June 13, 2021
to be in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013

Attendance for the meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee held during the

financial year 2020-21

Name of Director 11.06.2020 31.08.2020 06.11.2020
Mrs. Rupa Vora Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Deepak Narang* Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Girish Nadkarni* Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Vivek Anand PS Yes Yes Yes

*Mr. Deepak Narang and Mr. Girish Nadkarni resigned as Directors w.e.f. June 11, 2021, and June 13, 2021 respectively.

Attendance for the meetings of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee held during the

financial year 2020-21

Name of Director 31.08.2020 24.03.2021

Mr. Bhupinder Singh (Chairperson) No No

Mrs. Rupa Vora Yes Yes

Mr. Vivek Bansal Yes Yes
For InCred Financial Services Limited
Sd/- Sd/-
Bhupinder Singh Vivek Bansal

Whole time Director and CEO
DIN: 07342318

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 23, 2021
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ANNEXURE D
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. The Company’s CSR mission is to contribute to the social and economic development of the
community through a series of interventions. Company’s strategy is to integrate its activities in
community development, social responsibility and environmental responsibility and encourage each
business unit or function to include these considerations into its operations. The Company, for
Corporate Social Responsibility activities, strives to promote education and ensure environmental
sustainability/ ecological balance etc.

The CSR Policy adopted by your Company is available on the website of the Company at https://www.
incred.com.

2. The CSR committee of the Board of Directors as on the date of this Board Report comprises of the
following:

SINo. | Name of Director Designation Number of CSR | Number of CSR
meeting held | meeting
during the year | attended

during the year
1. Whole Time | 2 0
Mr. Bhupinder Singh Director and
CEO
2. Mr. Vivek Bansal Whole Time | 2 2
Director and
CFO
3. Mrs. Rupa Vora Independent 2 2
Director

3. The Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board of our
Company is available on the website of the Company at https://www. incred.com.

4. Impact assessments of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule(3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014: Not applicable

5. Amount available for set off in pursuance of sub -rule(3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and the amount required for set off for the financial year:
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Sr. Financial Year Amount available for set | Amount required to be set-
No. off from preceding | off for the financial year, if
financial years (in INR) any (in INR)
1. 2020-21 Nil Nil
2. 2019-20 Nil Nil
3. 2018-19 Nil Nil
Total

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR 999.62 Lakhs

7. CSR obligation

Sr.No. | Particulars Amount (in Lakhs.)
a. Two percent of average net profits of the company as per section | 19.99
135(5)
b. Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activity | Nil
of the previous financial years
C. Amount required to be set off for the financial year Nil
Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a + 7b- 7c) 19.99

8 (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount
Spent for the
Financial Year:
(In Rs.)

Amount spent (In Rs.)

Total Amount transferred
to Unspent CSR Account as
per section 136

Amount transferred to any fund specified
under Schedule VII as per second proviso
to section 135(5

Name of the Date of
Amount | Date of Transfer | fund Amount | Transfer
20,05,000/- NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

1|2 3 4 5 6 |7 8 9 10 11
S | Na | Items Lo | Loc Pr | Amou | Amoun | Amount Mode | Mode of
r | m | from the cal | ati oj | nt tspent | transferred of Impleme
e list of Ar | on ec | alloca | inthe to unspent Imple | ntation-
N| of | activities ea | of t ted current | CSR account menta | Through
o|th |in (Y | the du | for financi | for the tion Impleme
e Schedule es | Pr ra | the alyear | projectasper | Direct | nting
pr | VIIof the /N | oje ti | proje | (inRs.) | section (Yes/ | Agency
oje | act. 0) |ct on | ct(in 135(6) (in No)
ct Rs.) Rs.)
Sta | D Name CS
te i R
s Re
t gis
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r tra
i tio
C n
t No.
1| N Promoting | Pla M 0 19.99 17,10,0 NIL Yes No
an | girls Child | gh | aha ne 00
hi | education ar | rsh ye
Ka an | tra ar
li d and
Mu | UP
mb
ai
2| K Promotin Mu | Ma 2,20,00 NIL Yes No
EC | ggirls mb | har 0
T Child ai sht
education ra
3| M Promotin Ra | Gur 75,000 NIL Yes NO
an | ggirls jlot | ajat
av | Child
Se | education
va
Sa
ng
h
To 20,05,
tal 000
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: NA
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sr | Name | Items from thelist | Local Location | Amount Mode of Mode of
. of the | of activities in Area of the spent for Implementatio | Implementation
N | Projec | schedule VII ofthe | (Yes/N | project the project n on Direct- through
o |t act o) (InRs.) (Yes/No) Implementing
Agenc
Sta | Dis Nam | CSR
te | tric e Registration
t number
1 Nil Nil Nil Nil | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(d) Amount spent in Administrative overheads : None

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable.: N.A

(f) Total amount spent for the financial year (8b + 8c + 8d + 8e): INR 20,05,000/-

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil
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9 (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the proceeding three financial years:

S | Preced | Amount transferred Amount spent Amount transferred to any Amount remaining
I. | ing to unspent CSR in the reporting | fund specified under schedule | to be spentin
N | Financi | account under financial year VII as per section 135 (6), if succeeding financial
0. | alyear | section 135(6) (inRs. | (inRs.) any. years (in Rs.)
Name of | Amount | Date of
the fund | inRs. transfer
1. | 2020-
21 Nil Nil - Nil - Nil
2. | 2019-
20 Nil 1,12,000/- - Nil - Nil
3. | 2018-
19 Nil Nil - Nil - Nil

*The unspent amount of INR 1.12 Lakhs for the Financial year 2019-20 was spent by the Company by August

2020

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of preceding financial

year(s): NA

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year. (asset - wise details).
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset (s]: NA
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: NA
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is

registered, their address etc.: NA

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and

location of the capital asset).:NA

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profits as per

section 135(5):

The Company has been able to spend the entire amount prescribed for FY 2020-21

For Incred Financial Services Limited

Sd/-

Bhupinder Singh

Whole time Director & CEO
DIN: 07342318

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 23,2021
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DISCLOSURES ON MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION
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ANNEXURE E

Details of remuneration as required under Rule 5.1 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided below:

a) Ratio of remuneration of each director to the median employees’ remuneration
for FY 2021 and percentage increase in remuneration

Name Designation Ratio of | Percentage
remuneration to the | change in
median employees’ | remuneration
remuneration

Mr. Bhupinder Singh Whole Time Director and | 80:1 (7.50%)*

CEO
Mr. Vivek Bansal Whole Time Director and | 29:1 (5%)*
CFO

Mr. Girish Nadkarni Director N.A. -N.A.

Mrs. Rupa Vora Independent Director NIL NIL

Mr. Vivek Anand Director N.A. -N.A.

Mr. Antonius | Director NIL NIL

Bruijninckx

Mr. Parvinder Singh | Independent Director NIL NIL

Pasricha

Mr. Deepak Narang Independent Director NIL NIL

Mr. Debashish Dutta | Independent Director NIL NIL

Gupta

* Effective from May 01, 2020

Sitting fees is not forming part of remuneration in aforesaid calculation

b) Percentage increase in the remuneration of key managerial personnel in FY

2021
Name Designation percentage increase in
remuneration
Ms. Nikita Hule Company Secretary (from April 1, 2020 to | 7.5%
August 31, 2020)
Mr. Gajendra Thakur Company Secretary (from September 1, 2020 | NA

till date)

c) Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in FY 20201
The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in FY 2021 stood at 9%.

d) average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other
than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with
the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration; There was no increase in managerial remuneration
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e) There were 572 permanent employees on the roll of Company as on March 31, 2021)

f) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and employees is as per the Remuneration policy of the Company.

For InCred Financial Services Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Bhupinder Singh Vivek Bansal

Whole time Director and CEO Whole Time Director and CFO
DIN: 07342318 DIN: 07835456

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 23, 2021
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ANNEXURE F

Disclosure under the Employee Incentive Scheme - 2018 pursuant to the provisions of Rule
12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 as on financial vear ended

March 31,2021

Particulars Disclosures
Number of options granted (in FY 20-21) 97,72,875
Number of options vested (in FY 20-21) 29,70,323
Number of options exercised (in FY 20-21) 91,209
Total number of shares arising as a result of 91,209

exercise of options
Number of options lapsed / cancelled (in FY 18,93,398
20-21) - includes both vested and unvested

Exercise Price INR 40/- per share

Variation of terms of options N.A.

Money realised by the exercise of options INR 36,48,360 (exercise amt)
Total number of options in force 2,00,88,392

Details of options granted to Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”)

Sr.No Name Designation Options Granted
1. Vivek Bansal Chief Financial Officer 10,00,000
2. Bhupinder Singh CEO NIL
3. Nikita Hule Chief Manager-Compliance & | 6,500
Secretarial
4. Gajendra Thakur Head - Legal, Compliance & 55,000
CS

Details of employees who received a grant of options in any one year of options amounting to
five per cent or more of options granted during that year

Sr.No | Name Designation Options Granted

1 Saurabh Jhalaria CEO - SME 15,00,000

2 Vivek Bansal Chief Financial Officer 10,00,000

3 Saumya Mittal MD - Special Situations and 10,00,000
Structured Credit

4 Prithvi Chandrasekhar Head of Risk and Analytics 6,00,000

5 Kamlesh Dangi Group Head - Human Resources | 6,00,000

6 Rahul Bhargava Chief Product and Technology 5,00,000
Officer
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Details of identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or
exceeding one percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions)
of the company at the time of grant: None

For InCred Financial Services Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Bhupinder Singh Vivek Bansal

Whole time Director and CEO Whole Time Director and CFO
DIN: 07342318 DIN: 07835456

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 23,2021
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ANNEXURE G

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no.9 of the
Companies Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
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Company Secretary

208, Trade House,
Ashish Karodia 1413, South Tukogan,

M.Com., LL.B, F.C.S. Indore (M.P.)
Cell: +91 98261 - 14533
E-mail: ashishkarodia@amail.com

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31st March, 2021

[Pursizant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Incred Financial Services Limited

CIN- U74899MH1991PLC340312
Unit Ne, 1203, 12th Floor, B Wing
The Capital Plot No. C - 70, G Blod<,

BKC Mumbai - 400051

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Incred Financial Services
Limited (hereinafter called the Company) having CIN- U74899MH1991PLC340312.
Secretarial Audit was conducted in @ manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2021, complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

Due to Covid-19 pandemic we were unable to physically visit the Company office and
Branch office and therefore, we have examined the beoks, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records received via Emails and other electronic means
maintained by Incred Financial Services Limited for the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA”) and the rules made
thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
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iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

o Not applicable to the Company during the period under scrutiny.

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015.

« The Company has closed the trading window for the year ended 31" March
2020 and half year ended 30" September 2020 as per its Code of Conduct for
Prevention of Insider Trading and fair disclosure of Unpublished Price
Sensitive information adopted by the Company.

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

o Not applicable to the Company during the period under scrutiny.

d. The Securities and Exchange Board Of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014;

« Not applicable to the Company during the period under scrutiny being debt
listed entity.

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;

During the year under review, the Company has issued secured debentures
amounting to INR 622 crores and the same have been listed.

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Requlations, 2009;

o Not applicable to the Company during the period under scrutiny.

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998;

« Not applicable to the Company during the period under scrutiny.

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for system
and mechanism framed by the Company for the compliances under the following
applicable Act (if applicable), Law & Regulations to the Company:

X

35|Page

157



INCRED FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT FY 2020-2021

INCRED FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED _ SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 2020-2021

a. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and its circulars, Master Circulars,
notifications and its Directions as prescribed for NBFCs, as informed
Jconfirmed to us.

b. Applicable Direct and Indirect Tax Laws.

c. Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements/ regulations entered into by the Company with BSE Limited;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that: -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. T7he retirement of rotation
of Directors has been done in accordance with the Articles of the Association of the
Company.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent generally for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company which
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that due to the repetitive nature of the transactions like issuance of the
debentures, we have verified the documents on sample basis during the audit process.

We further report that during the audit period, following approvals has been sought from
members having major impact:

The Members have accorded their consent to the Board of Directors at the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting held on May 20, 2020 to carry on the following businesses:

1. Borrowings by way of issuance of Secured Non-Convertible Debentures.
2. Alteration of the restated Articles Of Association of the Company.

. &
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The Members have accorded their consent to the Board of Directors at the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting held on August 10, 2020 to carry on the following businesses:
1. Approval of Grant of Stock Options under the Employee Incentive Scheme of the
Company

The Members have accorded their consent to the Board of Directors at the Annual
General Meeting held on September 30, 2020 to carry on the following businesses:
1. Appointment of Mr. Deepak Narang (DIN: 03272814) as an Independent Director
of the Company for the period of 2 years.
2. Appointment of Mr. Antonius Bruijninckx (DIN: 08589813) as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company.

Further the Board has approved the scheme of Amalgamation of Incred Housing Finance
Private Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) with the Company in year
2020 and filed the same with National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench on
October 6, 2020. The NCLT, Mumbai Bench has approved the scheme vide order no.
CP(CAA)/1094/MB/2020 in CA(CAA)/1105/MB/2020 dated March 11, 2021 from the
appointed date of April 1, 2020. In lieu of Government guidelines due to pandemic
situation in the Country, the certified copies were obtained from said NCLT and filed with
the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai after the closure of the said financial year but before
signing this report.

Note: This Report is to be read with our letter even date which is annexed as
Annexure A and forms and integral part of this report.

\ \ 3 J )
3. NG
CS Ashish Karodia
M No. 6549 CP 6375
On 23.07.2021

At Indore
UDIN: FO06542C000666516
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To,

The Members,

Incred Financial Services Limited
(CIN: U74899MH1991PLC340312)
Unit No. 1203, 12th fioor,B Wing,

The Capital Plot No. C - 70, G Block,
BKC Mumbai - 400051

Our Secretarial Audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on my audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial
records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for
my opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial
auditor, Cost auditor and other designated professionals.

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

CS Ashish Karodia

M No. 6549 CP 6375.

On 23.07.2021

At Indore

UDIN: FO06549C000666516
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ANNEXURE H
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by
the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm'’s length basis:

1. Name(s) | 2. Nature of | 3. Duration | 4. Salient | 5. 6. Date of | 7. Date on
of the | contracts/ar | of terms of | Justification | approval | which the
related rangements/ | contracts contracts for entering | by the | special
party and | transactions | /arrangem | /arrangeme | into such | board of | resolution
nature of ents/trans | nts/transact | contracts directors | was passed
relationship actions ions /arrangeme in general
including the | nts/transact meeting
value, if any ions
Not applicable since all the transactions have been entered at arm’s length with related parties.
2. Details of material contract or arrangements or transactions at arm'’s length basis:
1. Name(s) | 2. Nature of | 3. Duration of | 4. Salient 5.]Justification | 6.Date of | 7.
of the | contracts/ contracts/ terms of for entering | approval | Amount
related arrangements | arrangements | contracts into by the | paid as
party and | /transactions | /transactions |/arrangements | such contracts | board of | advance,
nature  of /transaction /arrangements | directors | if any
relationship ns including | /transactions
the value, if
any
Not applicable since all the transactions are covered within the threshold limit defined by the Company.

For InCred Financial Services Limited

Sd/-
Bhupinder Sin

gh

Whole time Director and CEO

DIN: 07342318

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 23,2021
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ANNEXURE I

Related Party Disclosures as required under Regulation 53(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) 2015

Disclosures of amounts as on March 31, 2021 and the maximum amount of loans/ advances/ Investments
outstanding during the year.

Particulars Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries
Nature of Loan Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)
Opening Balance | During the year | As on March 31,
as on April 1, | 2020-21 2021
2020
InCred Management & NA - - -
Technology Services
Private Limited
Booth Fintech Private | NA - - -
Limited
Name of Directors Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates and firms/companies in

which directors are interested

Name of Associate / | Nature of Loan Amount
Firm/Company

N.A.

For InCred Financial Services Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Bhupinder Singh Vivek Bansal

Whole time Director and CEO Whole Time Director and CFO
DIN: 07342318 DIN: 07835456

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 23, 2021
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BSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

14th Flaor, Central Wing B Wing and Morth C Wing, TE]e.phOha' +91 22:257 1000
Nesco IT Park 4, Neseo Center, Fax: +91 22 6257 1010
Western Express Highway, Goregaon {East),

Mumbai - 400 063

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of InCred Financial Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial stalements of InCred Financial Services Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the standalone balance sheel as at 31 March 2021, and the standalone
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income}, standalone statement of changes in
equity and standalone statement of cash [lows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
atoresaid stundalone financial statemenis give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as al 31 March 2021, and
profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are Turther described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for
our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention 10 Note 42 of the standalone financial statements which describes the accounting for
the Scheme of Amalgamation of between thc Company and InCred Housing Finance Limited, (wholly
owned subsidiary). The Scheme has been approved by the National Compaity Law Tribunal (‘"NCLT")
vide its order dated 11 March 2021, however due to the ongoing pandemic situation, the Company has
not received the certified true copy of the Order from the NCLT and hence the same has not been filed
by the Company with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. Pending the certified copy of the order
being filed with Registrar of Companies, the Company has given effect of the merger in its standalone
financial staiements for the year ended 31 March 2021. Though the appointed date as per the NCLT
approved Scheme is 1 April 2020, as per the requirements of Appendix C to Ind AS 103 “Busincss
Combination”, the merger has been accounted for as if it had occurred from the beginning of the
preceding period in the standalone financial statements, Accordingly, the amounts relating to the year
2020 include the impact of the business combination and the corresponding amounts for the previous
vear ended 31 March 2020, have been restated by the Company aller recognising the effect of the
amalgamation as above. The aforesaid note (Note 42) also describes the impact of the busineds
combination on the standalone financial statements, N

Ranisterad Sl

85 R & Ca, 15 partnership firnt with Registranion N, BAE1223) converted into B S % & Co. LLP Sath Flcer, Central B YWing and Merth 2 Wing, Mesea 1T Pk 4, Nasea
& Linvted Liabilivy Partnership with LLP Repistration S, AAB-51370 wii effect from October 14, 2003 Lanter Wastern Express Highwweay, Goragaon IEast, Murrba - 400063
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
InCred Financial Services Limited
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those maiters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Description of Key Audit Matler

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Impairment of loans and advances to customers
Charge (including write off); INR 8,868.53 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2021

Provision: INR 9,104.89 lakhs as at 31 March 2021

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note | (D)(7) to the Standalone Financial Statements: Impaivment of financial assets”,
“Note 1(B) (iv) ro the Standalone Financied Statements: use of estimates and judgements” and “Note 4 : Loans to
Standalone financial statementy and Note 28 A : Financial Risk Maragement - Credit Risk to the Standalone Financial

Statements”
Subjective estimate

Recognition and measurement of impairment of loans and
advances involve significant management judgement.

Under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, allowance for loan
losses 1s determined using expeeted credit loss (ECL) medel.
The Company’s impairmenl allowance is derived ffom
estimates including the historical delhubt and loss ratios. The
estimation of impatrment loss allowance on  financial
instruments involves significant judgement and estimates.
The key areas where we identified greater lovels of
management judgement and thercfore increased levels of
audit focus in the Company’s estimation of ECLs are:

Data inputs - The application of ECL model requires
scveral data inputs. This increases the risk that the data
that has been used to derive assumptions in the moedel,
which arc used for ECL calculations, may not be
complete and accurate

Medel estimations — Inherently judgmental medels are
used to estimate ECL which involves delermining
Probabilitics of Default (“PD™), Loss Given Default
(“LGD"), and Exposurcs at Default (“EAD”), The PD
and the LGD are the key drivers of ecstimation
complexity in the ECL and as a result are considered
the most significant judgmental aspect of the
Company*s modelling approach.

Eeonomic scenarios — Ind AS 109 requires lhe
Conmpany to measure FCLs on an unbiased forward-
lovking basis reflecting a range of future economic

Our key audil procedures ineluded:

Performed end to end process walkthroughs to identify
the key systems, applivalions and controls used in the
impairment loss allowance processes. We lested the
relevant manual (including  spreadsheet  controls),
general I'T and applicalion countrols over key systems
used in the impairment loss allowance process.

Assessed the design and implementation ol eontrols in
respect of the Company’s impairment allowance
process such as the timely recognition of impairment
loss. the completensss and aceuracy of reporls wsed in
the impairment allowance process and management
review processes over the caleulation of impairment
allowance and the related disclosures on credit risk
management.

Evaluating management’s controls over collation of
relevant information used for delermining estimates for
management overlays on aecoudt of COVID-19.

Testing of rcview conuofs over measwrement of
impairment allowances and disclosures in standalone
financial statements.

Testing mavagement’s controls over authorisation and
calculation of post model adjustments

Evalualed whether the methodology applied by the
Company is compliant with the requirements of the
relevant acconnting standards and confirmed that the
calculations are perfonned n accordance with the

conditions. Significant management judgement is approved  methodology,  including  checking
applied in determining the cconomic scenarios used maihematical accuracy of the workings.

and the probability weights applied to them especiully

when considering the current uncertain economic

environmenl arising from COVID-19. 1 .
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

InCred Financial Services Limited

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Description of Key Audit Matter (Continned)

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

- Qualitative adjustments — In the absence ol time tested
histerical data for certain loan products, management
has used surrogate industry cstimates or derived inpuls
using regulatory guidance. Managemeni believes that
these estimatcs address known impairment medel
limitations or emerging trends as well as risks not
captured by models. These adjusiments arc inherently
uncertain and significant management judgement s
involved in estimaling these amounts especiully in
relation o economic uncertainty as a result of COVID-
19.

- Resiructuring — the Company has restruciured loans in
the current ycar on account of COVID-19 related
regulatory wmeasures. The Company has undertaken
restructuring under RBI circulars/ guidelines for retail
as well as SME portfolio. In addition, Company has
given reliel to its eligible borrowers using the ECLGS
scheme. This has resulted in increased managcment
eslimation over determination of losses for such
restructured loans

Impact of COVID - 19

On 11 March 2020 the World Health Organisation declared
the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) outhreak to b a
pandemic.

We have identified the impact and uncertainty related to the
COVID-19 pandemic as a key element and consideration [or
tecognition and measurement of impairment on leans, The
underlying {orccasts and assumptions used in the estimates
of impairment loss allowance are subject to unceriainties
which are often ovutside the control of the Company. The
extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the
Company’s current eslimate of impairment loss allowances
is dependent on future developments, the severity and
duration of the pandemic, which are highly uncerlain at this
point, Given the size of loan portfolio relative to the balance
sheet und the impact of impairment allowance on the
standalone financial statements, we have considered this as a
key audit matier.

[hsclosures

The disclosures regarding the Company’s applicaticn of Ind
AS 109 are key to explaining the key judgemcnts and
matcrial inputs to the Ind AS 109 ECL resulls.

< Sample testing over key inputs, data and assumptions
impacting LCL  calculations to  assess  the
completeness, accuracy and relevance of data and
reasonableness  of periods considered, economic
forecasts, weights, and model assumptions applied.

«  Testing the "Governance Framework® aver validation,
implementation and model moniloring in line with the
RBI guidance.

»  Test of details over calculation of impairment
allowance for assessing the completeness, accuracy
and relevance of data,

*  Model caleulations testing through re-performance
where possible.

*  The appropriateness of management’s judgments was
also  independently reconsidered in respect of
caleulation methodologies, segmentation, cconomic
Factors, the period of historical loss rates used and the
valvation ol recovery nsscts and collateral,

* Assessed whetlier the disclosurcs on key judgemenis,
assumptions and guantilative data with respect o
nmpuirment foss allowance in the stimdalone financial
statements are appropriate and suflicient.

Involvement ol specialisis - we involved financial risk

madelling specialists for the following:

*  Evaluating the appropriateness ot the Company’s Ind
AS 109 impairment methodologies and reasonableness
of assumptions used.

*  The reasonableness of il Company’s considerations
ol (he impact of the cwrrent economic environment dus
to COVID-19 on the impaiment loss allowance
determination.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter
Infermatien technology
I'l' systems and controls

The Company™ key financial accounting and reporting
processes are highly dependent on the awtomaled controls in
information systems, such that there exists a risk that gaps in
the IT control environment could result in the financial
aceounting and reperting records being materially misstated,
Amongst its muitiple IT systems, we scoped in systems that
are key for the overall financial reporting,

We have identified ‘Information Technology systems’ as a
key audif matter because of the high level of automation,
large transaction volume, the increasing challenge to protect
the Company’s systems, controls over data integrity and the
risks associated with remote access of key applications by a
large population of employees at the vear end.

We have focused on user aceess management, chanpe
management, segregation of duties, system reconciliation
conbrols and system application controls over key fingncial
accounting and reporting systems,

How the matter was addressed in our andit

Our audit procedures Lo assess (he IT sysfem access
managament ingluded the following:

General I'l controls / user access management

We tested a sample of key controls operating over the
information technology in relation to financial
accounting and reporting systems, including system
access and system change management, program
development and compuler operations.

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls over user access management which
includes granling access right, new user creation,
removal of user rights and preventative controls
designed to enforce sepregation of duties,

For a selected group of key confrols over financial
and reporting systent, we independently perfonmed
procedures o delenming that these controls remaincd
unchanged during the vear or were changed following
the standard change management process.

Evaluating the design, implementation and operating
cifectiveness ol the significant accounts-related IT
automated controls which are relevant 1o the aceuracy
of system caleulation, eompleteness and accuracy of
the repurl generaled from the system and the
consistency of dala transmission,

QOther areas that were independently assessed included
password policies, syslem configurations, system
interface  controls, conitrols  over changes to
applications and databases and thal business users,
developers and production support did not have
access to change applications, the operating system or
databases in the production enviromment.

Performed inquiry for data security controls in the
context of a large popululion of staff working from
remote location at the year end,

Performed inquiry of enhanced cyber security
measures put in place in the context of a cyber
security incident taken place ai the Company

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the standalonc financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
(Comtinued)

Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is 4 material misstatement therein, we arc
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance,

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other cemprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application ol appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financia! controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsiblc for
assessing the Company’s ability to continuc as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends 1o liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altermative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain rcasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free [rom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuc an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually

or in the aggregate, they could rcasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of usep
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements,
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We zlso:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obiain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control,

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial stalements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by Management and
Board of Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as & going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
allentjon in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate thc overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achicves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the andit of the standalone financial statcments of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in owr auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica‘cy
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” o statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

0)

<)

d)

¢)

1)

We have sought and obfained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have heen kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the
standalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31 March 2021 taken on rccord by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference o
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separale Report in “Annexure B”,

(B)  Wilh respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.

il

iii.

v,

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position — Refer Note 33 to the standalone financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term centracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses — Refer Note 33 to the standalone
financial statements;

Therc were no amounts which were required to be translerred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

The disclosures in the standalone financial statements regarding holdings as well as
dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30
December 2016 have not been made in these standalone financial statements singe
they do not perlain to the financial year ended 31 March 2021. M
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(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and accerding to the information and explanations given (o us and as per the
special resolution passed by the Company at its extra ordinary general meetings held on 26
March 2019 and 31 May 2019 the managerial remuneration paid/provided for by the
Company during the current year is in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V {o the Act. The Ministry of Corporate
Aftairs has not prescribed other details under Scction 197 (16) of the Act which are
required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountarnts
Finm's Registration No. 101248 W/W-100022

Pranav Gune

Pariner
Mumbai Membership No. 121058
07 May 2021 UDIN: 21121058 AAAAAS4R9B
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‘Annexure A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the
standalone financial statements of InCred Financial Services Limited

The Annexure referred to in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of InCred Financial

Services Limited (the “Company™) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021, we report that:

M

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details fixed assets and situation of fixed assets.

()] The Company has a regular program of physical verification of fixed assets in a phased
manner, over three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed
assets were physically verified by the management during the year. According to the
information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are
held in the name of the Company.

The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC), engaged in the business of lending.
Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, to companics, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the regisier maintaincd under section 189 of the Act. Thus, paragraph 3(iii) of the
Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company has not granted any
loans, made investments or provided guarantees under section 185 of the Act and has complied
with the provisions of scction 186(1) of the Act. The Company being a NBFC, nothing
contained in Section 186 is applicable, except subsection (1) of that section.

According to the information and explanations given fo us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Section 73 to Section 76 or any other relevanl provisions of the Act and the rules
framed there under apply. Thus, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company. Thus, paragraph
3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax,
goods and service tax and other matorial statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authoritics. As explained
to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of excise duty, wealth tax, sales
tax and cess. According o the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income-tax, service tax, goods and
services tax and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2021 fhr
perlod of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(Continued)

(viif)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(b) According to the information and explanations given fo us, there have been no dues of
provident fund, employees” state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, cess and
other material statutory dues which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank or debenture holders,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans taken by the Company
have been applied for the purposes for which those are ralsed. The Company has not raised any
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt instruments) during
the year.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
explanation and information given to us, no material fraud by the company or on the Company
by its officers or employces has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and as per the
special resolution passed by the Company at its extra ordinary general meelings held on 26
March 2019 and 31 May 2019, the managerial remuneration paid/provided for by the company
during the current year is in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V 10 the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company. 'Thus, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicablc.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the detaiis have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the
provision of clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Thus, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has obtained registration under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 and it has obtained its Certificate of Registration dated 8 January 1991.

ForBS R & Co. LLP

Chartered Aceountants

Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022
7,

Pranav Gune

Mumbai Partner
07 May 2021 Membership Ne: 121058

UDIN: 21121058 AAAAAS4898
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the standalone financial
statements of InCred Financial Services Limited for the year ended 31
March 2021.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph (2(A)(f)) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
InCred Financial Services Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference 1o standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal conirol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and thc Board of Directors arc responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial contrels with reference to
standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
pelicies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Audiiors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accerdance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included
obiaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal copir
based on the assesscd risk.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the standalone financial
statements of InCred Financial Services Limited for the year ended 31
March 2021. (Continued)

Auditor’'s Responsibility (Continued)

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due 10 fraud or ervor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that (ransactions are recorded as necessary to permil
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial
staternents, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in condifions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deferiorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Pranav Gune

Partner
Mumbai Membership No: 121058
07 May 2021 UDIN: 21121058AAAAAS4898
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Standalone Financial Statements
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

[Rs. in lakhs)

. (Restated)*

ASSETS

{1} Financial assets

{a}  Cash and cash equivalents 2 1,323.38 3,772.83
{b}  Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 3 588.45 735.88
[¢)  Loans 4 2,05,359.84 2,04,849.17
{d] Investments 5 12,670.66 3,113.50
{e}  Other financial assets 6 1,821.28 1,6503.39
{2} Non-flnancial assets
{a)  Current tax assets [Net of provision for tax} 720.61 862.36
{bl Deferred tax assets (Net of deferred tax liabilities) 7 1,857.30 363.22
{c} Property, plant and equipment g 3,276.35 2,975.07
{d}  Capital work-in-progress 14.49 125.06
{e] Otherintangible assets 4 222.49 299.97
{fi Other non-financial assets 10 1,285,55 1,046.22
Total assets 2,79,140.50 2,20,433.67
LIABILITIES AND ECQUITY
LEABILITIES
{1} Firancial liabilitfas
(5}  Dabl securilics 11 73,8202 42,105.62
{b)  Borrowings {other than debt securitias) 12 93,422.08 70,321.28
{r)  Otherfinancial liabilities 13 4,231.88 3,342.57
(2} Nondinancial liabilities
{4} Provisions 14 164,48 152,91
(b} Other non-financial liahilities 15 2,90%,26 2,078.21
EQUITY
{a) Equity share capital 16 (A 3gE24.42 38,615.30
(b} Otherequity 16 {R) (5,900.30 63,812.28
Total lizbilities and equity 2,75,140.50 2,20,433.67
*Refer Note Mo 42 "Scheme of Amalgamation and arrangerment”
Significant atcounting policies and key actaunting estimates and judgments 1

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of the standalone financial statements

Az per our report of even date

FarB5R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAIFirm Registration MNo.: 101248W/\W-100022

e

i

PEFaY Gune
Parlner
Membership No: 121058

Place: Mumbai
Date: 7 May 2021

Forand an behalf of the Buard of Directors of
InCred Flnancial Services Limited
CIM: UZ48590H 199 1PLC3A0312

WA ‘U\,:}: f_70

Bhuplnder Singh
Whale Time Divector and CEO
Db 07342318

Yivek Bansal
Witole Tirme Director and CFO
DIré: CrB3n4560

Gajendra Thakur
Compariy Secretary

Place: fAuenkbiai
Date: 7 May 2021



InCred Financial Services Limited

Standalane Finantial Statements
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Rs. In lakhs)

¥ear ended -

Revenue From aperations

{i} Inerest Income 17 37,711,775 31,103.32
{li} Fees and commission incoms 18 557.16 205,55
i) Met gain/{less) on fair value changes 14 158,91 46501
{1} Total revenue from operations 38,537.82 32,374.28
() Cther income 0 64702 782.37
{0} Yoral neame {1+ 1) 39,184,591 33,156,658
Expeinsesy
(i} Finance costs 21 15,271.40 11,605.69
(i) Impairment on financial instrumente 2 2,865.37 563474
[} Employee henefits expenses 23 9,156.57 3,240,568
(v} Depreciation, amartizatian and impairment BES 24172 1,093.89
[v] Others experises 24 3,805.92 4214
{Iv) Total expenses 37,943.86 31,852.14
¥} Profit before tak and exceptional iterms (N1 - Iy} 1,241-06 1,304.51
V1) Exceptlonal items 41 F45.76
[V} Profit before tax and after exceptional itam (v - vI) 1,241.06 552,75
{¥M) Tax Expense. 25
{1) Current Tax 1,%35.14 52743
{2) Deferred Tax 1317.52) [144.05)
{I¥) Profit for the year [VII-vII) 1,023.44 21541
IX] Other tomprehensive income
(Al [{] items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
[a) Remmeasurements of the defined berefit plans [26.28) 28.03
{b) Equlty instryments through othar comprehensive income - 302
[ii) tncome tax relating to iterms that will nat be retlassified to profit or lnss 5,62 [0.32)
Subtotal |A) {19.67) 2873
(B) {i] items that will be reclassiiled to profit or loss
{a) Debt instruments through other comprehensive incarne o897 -
{ii} Income tax relating to items that wili not be reclassificd to profit of loss {29.35) -
Subtotal |B) £3.03 -
Other comprehensive income / |loss) (& + B) 69,35 28.73
{%1} Total comprehensive income for the year (X + X} 1.0%2,79 i04.14
[XN] Eamings per equity share 26
Basic (Rs.) a7 007
Ollyted (Rs.] .26 .07

*Refer MNote No 42 "Scherna of Amal, tion and arr "
Significant aceounting policies and key accaunting estimates and Judgments

The accompanying notes fozin an integral part of the standatone financial statements
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InCred Fingncial Services Limited

Standalone Financlal Statements
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars N  Yearended T . .| & ... Yearended °

. : o ~March 31, 2021 .. - Karch 31,2020 [Restated)t ..
Cash flow from operating activities
Frofit before tax 1,241.06 §58.759
Adjustments ro recontile net profit to net cash genarated from / (used in) operating activities
Depreciation and amugrtisation B41.79 1,092.58%
Met {gain}/loss on fair value changes [268.91) 465,01}
Interestincome [37,711.75) (31,103.32)
Finance cost 15,119.25 11,453,091
Impairment [oss B,Bh5.37 5634.73
Prevision for diminution In the value of investments B 645,76
Share based expense 1,027.93 583,88
Advertiserment expense 28.02 30.61
Retlrement benzfit expenses (21.29) 32.28
Interest expense an lease lability 152.16 151,78
Reversal of rent expense {292.95) {401.71)
Operating profit before working capital changes {11,019.42) [11,678.45)
Working capital adjustments
[Increasa) in Laans [59,179.73) {35,416.46)
(Increase) f deersase In other financial assets {130.88) {453.33)
{Increase) in other non financial assets {267.35) {320.79)
Inerease In other financial labilities 1,030.10 2,340.72
Increase f {decrease) in provisions 12.79 {27.84}
Increase in gther non financial liabllities 227.04 195,92
Cash generated from operations {68, 727.45) {45,270.23)
Interest received on loans 37,515.45 30,228.32
Interest paid an borrowings [17,429.54) {10,658.87)
Income taxes pald {fnet) [970.03) [470.41)
Net cash (used in) operating activities {48,611.37] {26,280.19)
Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of praperty, plant and equlpraent [876.19) {2,755.54)
Purchase of intangibles assets [189.42) 107.54)
Capital work-in-progress 130,57 1125.06)
Purchase ofinvestmeants {1,56,146.83) {1,08,350.45)
Praceeds fram sale of investmeants 1,46,947.67 1,07,268,75
Investment in t2rm depasits earmarked with banks {96,580.25) {5,814.26)
Praceeds from maturity of term deposits earmarked with hanks 96,724.72 5,348.80
Net cash {used in) / generatad from Investing activities [10,009.79) {4,535.30)
Cash flow from financing activities
Issue of equity shares (including securities premiurm) 36.48 42,361.30
Securityissue expenses - {595.77)
Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securitias) 72,665.00 55,330.32
Proceeds from issuwe of debt securities 62,173.39 12,511.62
Repayment of barrowings (other than debt securities) {48,668.11) {5%,279.10]
Redemption of debt securities {28,044.83) {18,807.23]
Net cash generated from flnancing activities 58,161.93 32,530.05
Wet increase / {decrease}in cash and cash equivalents [1,459.23) 1,714.56
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 813.54 {90102}
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {545.639) 813.54

Nates:

{al The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' a5 sat aut in the Indian Accounting Standard {Ind A3-7) - Slatement of Cash Flow
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{b) Cash and cash equivalents comprisas of

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particalars E I N o Co T Asat A Lo
. B G T T . o . . .. March 31, 2021 " * March 31, 2020 [Restated)*
Cashon hand 2.84 792
Balances with banks
- Lurrent Ascounts 1,320.54 2,764,491
Deposit with Gank with maturity less than 3 maonths - -
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 2) 1,523,328 377283
Less: Bank overdraft and cash credit [Refer note 12} [1,5569.07) [2,962.25)
Add: Impairment loss allowance an deposits with bank - 2,96
Cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement [645.69]) 513.54
*Refar Note No 42 "Scheme of Amalgarnation and arrangement”
Significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates and judgments 1

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of the standalfone fnancial statements

As per our report of even date

Far B SR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors af
Chartared Accountants InCred Financial Servlces Limited
ICAl Firm Registration Mo.; 101248W/W-100022 CIM: U74899 MHI991PLE3A0312
1 fr“f\/ l it E
—— Y r ,
Pranav Gune Bhupinder Singh Vivek Bansal
Fartngr Whafe Time Director and CE0 Whale Time Divector ond €F 0
Membership Mo: 121058 Dirg: 07342318 DIM: 07235456

Place: iMumbai

Date: 7 May 2021 ('%/}/ECJ

Giajendra Thalur
Company Secrctary

HMace: rumbiat
Date: 7 May 2021
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(1) Significant Accounting Policies

A. Corporate Information

Incred Financial Services Limited (the ‘Company') was incorporated in India on 8 January
1991, under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956,

The Company has received a Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of [ndia {('RBI'"},
on 30th August 2000 to commence/carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial Institution
('NBFC") withcut accepting public deposits. The company qualifies to be a NBFC -
Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Company as per "Master - Direction -~ Non-
Banking Financial Company - Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank]) Directions 2016".

The registered office of the Company is Unit No. 1203, 12th floor, B Wing, The Capital, Plot No.
C - 70, G Block, Bandra - Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai — 400051 (erstwhile - 1502-4,
The Capital, C-70, G Block, Bandra Kurla Cemplex, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400051)

B. Basis of preparation

i.  Statement of compliance

The Standalone financial statement of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) as applicable to NBFCs
subject to RBI norms and regulations.

The Company’s financial statements were anthorized for issue by the Company’'s
Board of Directors on May 07, 2021.

il.  Functional and presentation currency

The Standalone financial statement are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR"), which is also
the Company's functional currency. All the amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest
lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

iii. Basis of measurement

The Standalone financial statement have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for the following items:

a, Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value

k. Net defined benefit asset / liability - plan assets are measured at fair value less
present value of defined benefit obligation; and

¢. Share-based payments - measured at fair value

iv.  Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of Standalone financial statement in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates,
judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported

mounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at t,

181




date of financial statements, reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period. Actual results may defer from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions in
the accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Significant judgements

ii.

iil,

jv.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined henefit plan is determined on the basis of
actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in
salary escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable
maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations. Due to complexities involved
in the valuation and its long term nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
period. Further details are disclosed in Note 30.

Recognition of deferred tax assets / liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the futurc tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and unutilised business loss and depreciation carry forward and
tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable income will be available against which the deductibie temporary
differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry forward and unused tax credits
could be utilised. Further details are disclosed in Note 7.

Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment
of the probability of an outflow of resources and on past experience and
circumstances known at the reporting date. The actual cutflow of resources at a
future date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions.

Discounting of long-term financial assets / liabilities

All financial assets / liabilities are required to be measured at fair value on initial
recognition, In case of financial assets / liabilities which are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost, interest is accrued using the effective
interest method.

Fair valuation of employee share options

The fair valuation of the employee share options is based on the Black-Scholes option
pricing model used for valuation of options. Key assumptions and inputs for fair value
made with respect to expected volatility includes share price, expected dividends and
discount rate, under the Black-Scholes option pricing model. These assumptions /
inputs and models are disclosed in Note 31.
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vi. Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on its financial
assets measured at amortised cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses
whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit- impaired. A financial
asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

vii. Leases

The Company has recognized the lease liability at the present value of the future lease
payments over the lease term discounted at the incremental berrewing rate,

C. Presentation of financial statements

The Standalone financial statement of the Company are presented as per Schedule I
(‘Division III') of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘'MCA’). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared
and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7, Staternent of Cash Flows. The
disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule 111 to the Act, are presented
by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes
required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards and RBI regulations
to the extent applicable,

D. Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

1. Measurement of fair values

The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values for financial instruments.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement
of fair values. The management has the overall responsibility for overseeing all
significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly
to the Chief Financial Officer.

The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. If third party information, such as broler quotes or pricing services, is
used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained
from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such
valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair values of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company
uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows.

* Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

= Level 2:inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)
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Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company
uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair
value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then
the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the
end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred,

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit and loss ('FVTPL’), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets:
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost;

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVQCI)

- Fair value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL")

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if
and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial
assets. The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised
cost (net of any write down for impairment), unless the asset is designated at FVTPL:

i.  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is te hold
assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
ii. the Contractual terms of the financial asset give risc on specified dates to cash

flows that are sclely payments of principal and interest {'SPPI") on the principal
amount outstanding,
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Financial assets measured at Fair value through other comprehensive Income
(‘FVOCT)

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

a. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

b. the contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (‘SPPI’) on the principal amount
ocutstanding.

Financial assets measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (‘'FVTPL")

A financial asset which is not classified in above category is subsequently measured
at FVTPL. Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are recognized
entirely in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

The assets classified in the aforementioned categories are subsequently measured as
follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairmentlosses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest income under the EIR
method, foreign gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCL On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in QCI are reclassified to Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments designated at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as
income in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest or dividend income, are recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss.
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iii.

iv,

V.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A
financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is
designated as on initial recognition.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables,
net of directly attributable and incremental transaction cost.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs profit and loss.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade payables and other financial
liabilities.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive
to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which the company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does
not retain contrel of the asset.

[f the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its
halance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the
balance sheet when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the
recognised amounts and it is intended to either settle on net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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3. Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the company comprise convertible
debentures in INR that can be converted to equity shares at the option of the holder,

when the number of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with the changes
in the fair value.

The liability compenent of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised at
the fair value of a similar liabitity that does not have an equity conversion option. The
equity component is initially recognised at the difference between the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whele and the fair value of the liability
component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability
and equity compenents in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial
instrument is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component of a compound financial instrument is not remeasured
subsequently.

Interest related to financial liability is recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss. In case of conversion at maturity, financial liability is reclassified to equity
and no gain or loss is recognised.

4. Share capital

Ordinary and preference shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares and share options are recognised
as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

5. Investmentin subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost less impairment if any in the standalone
financial statement.

6. Business Combination

Business combinations of entities under common control are accounted using the
“pooling of interests” method and assets and liabilities are reflecied at the
predecessor carrying values and the only adjustments that are made are to harmonise
accounting policies. The figures for the previous periods are restated as if the business
combination had occurred at the beginning of the preceding periodirrespective of the
actual date of the combination.

7. Impairment of financial assets

Overview of the Expected Credit Losses (‘ECL’) principles

- The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt
financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with financial guarantee contracts, in this
section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to
impairment under Ind AS 109.

- The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the

asset (the lifetime expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increﬂ'ggﬁg?ﬁ?
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in creditrisk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months'
expected credit loss)

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of
Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or
a collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial
instruments. The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the
end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk
of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. The Company
does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower level. Based on
the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as
described below:

Stage 1

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or that has low credit risl at the reporting date and that are not credit
impaired upon origination are classified under this stage. The company classifies all
standard advances and advances upto 30 days default under this category.

Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit impaired are classified under this stage. 30 Days Past
Due is considered as significant increase in credit risk.

Stage 3

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are
classified in this stage. For exposures that have become creditimpaired, a lifetime ECL
is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount, 20
Days Past Due is considered as default for classifying a financial instrument as credit
impaired.

Credit-impaired financial assets:

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost and debt financial assets carried at FYOCI are credit-impaired. A
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred,

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable
data:

a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

b) Abreach of contract such as a default or past due event;

¢) Therestructuring of aloan or advance by the company on terms that the company
would not consider otherwise;

d) ltis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reprganisation; or
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€] The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties.

The mechanics of ECL:

The Company calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure
the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash
shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are,
as follows:

Probability of Default - The Probability of Defaultis an estimate of the likelihood of
default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over
the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in
the portfolio, The concept of PD is further explained in Note 28.

Exposure at Default - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a
future default date. The concept of EAD is further explained in Note 28.

Loss Given Default - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the
case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive,
including from the realisation of any collateral. it is usually expressed as a percentage
of the EAD. The concept of LGD is further explained in Note 28.

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic
developments occurring in the economy and marketitoperates in. On a periodic basis,
the Company analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like
GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation
etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal
data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always
reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the
methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.

Write-offs

The Company writes off Retail secured and unsecured loans outstanding for more
than 540 days and 450 days respectively. However, Small and Medium Enterprises
(SME) Secured and Unsecured Loans, are writen off on a case-to-case basis subject to
540 days and 450 days respectively, based on the probability of recoverability. Any

subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the statement of profit and
loss.
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8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as
they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

9. Share-based payment arrangements

a. The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date
when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model.

b. That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based
payment reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest,

¢ When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense
recognised is the expense had the terms not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award
is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair
value of the award is expensed immediately through the Standalone Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

d. The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in
the computation of diluted earnings per share.

10.Lease Accounting

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lcase as per the
requirements of Ind AS 116. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing
the lease term {including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease,
together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option.

The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-canceilable period
of alease

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes right - of - use
("ROU") asset and a corresponding lease liability for al] lease arrangements in which
it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term
leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company

recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis oy,
the term of the lease.
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The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the
future lease payments. The lease payments are discounied using the incremental
borrowing rates.

11.Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to
an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income ('OCI'}.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income
or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to
income taxes. [t is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

a) has alegally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b) intends to realise the asset or settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

ii  temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit and loss; and

iii  Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates to
the extent that the Company is able to contrel the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probabie that the related tax benefit will be realised. Such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future taxable profits improves. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has
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become probable that future taxahble profits will be available against which they can
be used.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
{and tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the reporting
date. Taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity or OCI is recognised in
equity or OCL

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities; and

b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

12. Property, plant and equipment

fi.

iii.

Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumutated impairment losses,

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

(i) its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes,
after deducting trade discounts and rebates,

(ii) any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the
item to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management, are recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised
in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on written down value basis as per the useful life given under
Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, and is generally recognised in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from
(upto) the date which the asset is ready for use (disposed of).

The useful life as per Schedule Il are as follows:

Asset_ Usefulife as per Schedule 1l -
Buildings 30 years

Furniture & fixtures 10 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computers and printers 3 years

Vehicles 8 vears

Assets costing less than INR 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year in which they are
purchased.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and
consequent advice, the management believes thatits estimated useful life as given
above best represent the period over which management expects to use the these
assets.

13.Intangible assets

i. Recognition and measurement

iii.

Intangible assets (computer software) are stated at cost of acquisition less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an intangible asset
comprises its purchase price including any import duties and other taxes (cther than
those subsequently recoverable from the faxing authorities), and any directly
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any
trade discounts and rebates.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset is capitalised only when itincreases the
future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditures are recognised in the Statement Profit and Loss as incurred,

Amortisation
Amportisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful life using the straight-line method, and is

included in depreciation, amortisation and impairment in the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss.

The intangible assets are amortised over the estimated useful life of 3 years.

Amortisation methods, useful life and residual values are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate.
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14. Impairment of non-financial assets

15.

The carrying values of assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of the asset is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to seil. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for such
excess amount.

In respect of assets (except goodwill) for which impairment loss has been recognised
in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any
indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. Such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Standalone Statement
of Profit and Loss, to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Revenue from operations

Recognition of interest and fee income or expense

Dividend income is recognised on the date on which the Company's right to receive
the payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the
amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-
impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset isno
longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross
basis.

Fee and commission income:

Under Ind AS, corporate guarantee issued on behalf of subsidiaries without any
commission has been measured at fair value with corresponding impact adjusted with
investment in the respective subsidiary. Consequently, guarantee commission for the
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16.

17

ii.

ifi.

iv.

18.

charges such as cheque bounce charges, foreclosure charges, etc. are recognised only
on receipt basis.

Finance Cost

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest
rate on respective financial instruments measured at amortised cost.

. Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided
by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Contribution to provident fund and ESIC

Corapany's contribution paid/payable during the year to provident fund and ESIC is
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Company's liability towards gratuity scheme is determined by independent
actuaries, using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government honds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of
the defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in ernployee benefit expense inthe
Statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains / losses, return
on plan assets excluding interest income are recognised immediately in the balance
sheet with correspending debit or credit to Other Comprehensive Income {QCI).
Remeasurements are not reclassified to Statement of profitand loss in the subsequent
period.

Compensated absence

The Company does not have a policy of encashment of unavailed leaves for its
employees and are not permitted to carry forward the leaves. Hence there is no
liability towards compensated absence.

Foreign currency

Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated in to the functional currency of the
Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if
the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency fransactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional

currency, using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. At each closing date,
foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing exchange rate.
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19,

20.

21

22,

Exchange differences that arise on settlernent of monetary items or on reporting at
each balance sheet date of the Company’s monetary items at the closing rate are
recagnized as income and expenses in the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of transactions. Nan-
monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency shall he
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Exchange differences are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss)
after tax for the year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit / {loss) after tax
for the year attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

Statement of Cash flows

Cash flows are repaorted using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals
of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows, The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Segment Reporting

The Company is considered to have two operating segments ‘Consumer Retail’ and
‘SME." As per Ind AS-108 ‘Operating segments’, if a financial report contains both the
consolidated financial statements of a parent as well as the parent’s separate financial
statements, segment information is required only in the consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, information required to be presented under Ind AS-108
'Operating segments’ will be given in the Consolidated Financial Information.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of
the discount is recognised as finance cost.

196




b.

C.

Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be
derived from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future
obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of
continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company
recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation that may, but will probably not, require an cutflow of resources,
When there is a possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the
likelihocd of outflow of resources is remote, no disclosure is made.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent
assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit
will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the
change occurs.

Provisions, contingent assets, contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed at
each reporting date.

23. Exceptional items

When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are
of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the
performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such items is
disclosed separately as exceptional items.

24. Standards issued but not yef effective

There are neither new standards nor amendments to existing standards which are
effective for the annual period beginning from 01 April 2021.
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InCred Financial Services Limited

Nates to the Standalone Financial Statements

2. Cash and cash equivalents

(Rs. in lakhs)
i Asat

Particulars {--March 31,2020

o o (Restated) ..

Cash on hand 2,34 7.92
Balances with banks {of the nature of cash and cash

eguivalent) 1,320.54 3,764.91

Total 1,323.38 3,772.83

3, Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

(Rs. in lakhs}

iculars, R | March31,2020 .
Particulars. ¥ March31,2021 | harch 31,2020 .
o : : i o #. 7{Restated) ;...
Earmarked balances with banks * S88.46 738.84
Expected credit Loss - {2.96)
Total 588.46 735.88
* Farmuarked for borrowings, bank guarantee and securitised transaction.
4. Loans
{Rs. in lakhs)
e G . “Asat o
e {1 - Asat: - Miich
Partl_culafrs. March 31,0001 | | arc :'3:._1,_2:020 :
. . e o {Restated)

| Anvortised cost

Amortised cost ..

[A].[ij Terﬁ loans

2,46,338.20 1,88,335.79
(i} Loans repayable en demand 18,126.53 11,852.47
Total - Gross (A) 2,64,464.73 2,10,188.26
Less: Impairment oss allowance {9,104.89) (5,339.09)
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance (A} 2,55,350.84 2,04,849.17
(B} (i) Secured by tangible assets 92,266.30 84,293.71
{ii) Secured by intangible assets 37,712.37 16,265.02
(i) Covered by Bank / Government guarantees 5,786.74 -
{ili) Unsecured 1,27,699.32 1,09,625.52
Total - Gross (B) 2,64,464.73 2,10,188.26
Less: Impairment loss allowance {9,104.89] (5,339.09)

Total - Net of impairment loss allowance (B)

2,55,359.89

2,04,849.17

{C} Loans in India
{1} Public sectors

2,64,464,73

tii) Others 2,10,188.26
Total - Gross (C) 2,64,464.73 2,10,188.26
Less: Impairment loss allowance {9,104.89) {5,339.09)
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance {C) 2,55,359.34 2,04,849.17
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InCred Financial Services Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statemenis

9. Other intangible assets

{Rs. in 1akhs}
. o Computer -, .
Particulars - = s LRI
L -software.
Year ended March 31, 2020 (Restated) _
At cost at the beginning of the year 465.16
Additions during the year 107.54
Gross carrying value as March 31, 2020 {Restated) 572.70
Accumulated amortisation:
Accumulated amortisation as at the beginning of the year 58.72
Amaortisation for the year 214.01
Accumulated amaortisation as at March 31, 2020 {Restated) 272.73
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2020 {Restated) 259.97
Year ended March 31, 2021
At cost at the beginning of the year 572.70
Additions during the year 189.42
Gross carrying value as March 31, 2021 762.12
Accumulated amortisation:
Accumulated amertisation as at the beginning of the year 27273
Amortisation for the year 266.89
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2021 539.62
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2021 222.50

10. Other non-financial assets

{Rs. in lakhs)

o i orcAsat v

. Particulars T o Wiarch 31,2020

. _ L C " (Restated)

Prepaid expenses . 254.71
Advances recoverable in kind {Unsecured, considered good) 201.49 7767
[GST receivable 723.79 713.84
Total 1,285.55 1,046.22
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11. Debt Securities

[Rs. ir lakhs)
CAzAL o

Partioulars Ma!ch H‘f ZB;D

P - {Reslated]-

. hrnortlsed cost | -0 Amortised cost
Debentures 73,327.02 42,105.62
Total 73,817.02 42,105.62
Debt securities in India 73,827.02 42,106,632

Debt securities outs ide India - -
Total 73,827.02 A2,105.62

Terms ard conditi

[Rs. In lakhs)

Matugity datd

Sr No|Particulars tiature ofsecuiit\f - Terms of ri:;pa'yment ]
. A R A : ’ : {Restated} . ;|
1|500, 5% Secured Rated listed Redeemable MNon- Put Hate - Septamber 0, 2098; Put price - Rs. 11,65,327 each 20-fep-18 - ROGR.OR
Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1000000 each Call date - Septembar 20, 201%9; Call price - Rs. 11,656,327 each
{ealtable) Maturity date - fune 22, 2020; Maturity price - Rs. 12,560,382 each
2|i500, 10075% Sectured Rateq Listed Redeemablg L Hore Convertible Debentures issued by the Fedeemable al par ak the end of 825 days from W date of allatment, T2 lune20 15,047 .83
Mon-Convertiole Debentures of Ag. 10,00,000 each [sompamy are securod by way of a first pari- Coupon be be paid annual b,
pasdu charge over the pecelvables of the
3|750, 10.25% Secured Rated Llisted Aedeemable|Company bo the extant thery moet L stlpulaled |Redesinable 3k par at the endd of 1096 days from the daze of allotment. 20 pra2l B.213.51 R208.85
Nen Convertible Dobontures of Rs, 10,00,000 each | security cover {"Hy pothecated Heceivables™] Couppn to be paid annually.
created putsuant to the deed of hypothecation
411000, 9.50% Secured Rated Listed Redeermable| executed by the Company in favoir of the Redeemable at par at the end of 545 days [rom Lhe data of allotiment 20-Dec-21 10,687.20
Mon-Canvertible bebentures of MR 10,00,000 each| Debenture Trustee. Coupah ta be paid apaually and oo maturity
2. Addltionally secured by way af a pari- passu
5[50, 9.75% Secured Raled Listed Rodeemable Mone| charg o with elhor debenturo holders over the  |Redeemable at par at the end af 1095 days frem the date of alletment. 22:lun-23 5 265,58
Convertible Delentures of INR 10,060,000 vech Identiflad immuvabile proparty owned by the Coupontno be paid annually.
Company.
G[1000, 9.75% Secured Rated Listed Redesaable Fedeemat’e at par at the end af 1055 days from Lhe date af aliotment, AB-Juen-73 10,649.35
Mon-Convertible Debartures af IR 14, 00,000 each Coupon Lo be paid annualby.
71500, 9.50% Secured Rated Listed Redeemahle Non- Pedeemable ot par at the end of S48 days from the date of allotient. 28-Jan- 22 5,050,233
CorwerLible Oebentures of IR 10,00,000 sach Hon- Conuertible Dehentures |ssued by the Coupan to be pad serl-aanyally,
company are securad by way of a first parl-
8500, 5.40% Secured Rated Listed Redeemabie Hon-| 2% charge aver the retelrablas of the. Redeemable at par at the end of 539 days froem the date of Allotment. 13-Feb-22 527722 -
Coryertiblc Oebenturos of INR 10,00,000 each Cempany to the extent they meet the stipufated (Coupon to be paid annually and an maturity.
sacurity cover |"Hypathecated frecelvables')
rreaked pursuant to the desd of hypathecallon
91754, $.400% Seeured Ratel Listed Radeemable Mon| opor rag by the Company in favour of the Redeemable at par at the end af 549 days from the date of allotment. 14-dlar-x2 7.451.67 -
Convertible Debenturas of INA 10,00,000 sach Haheniure Trusten Coupan Lt ko paid semi-annually.
10250, 9.10% Secured Rated Listed Redeemable Nane| oo L e issued by Kie {Redeemable at par at the endd of 547 doys from the dale af allotment. d-Jun-21 2,502.29
Canverhble Bobontures of INA 10 00,000 each company are secured by way of a first exclusive Caupan to be pad quarterly,
charge over the specific book-debts f loan
recelvables of the Company | "Hypothecated
Receivables”) orcated pursuant to the deed of
by pethetation executed by the Company In
fawour of the Debenture Trusies.
11[156, Secured Redzemahls Princlpal Protected - Redeematle with agreed coupon at the end of ¢51 days fram the date of| 18-fan-21 1,621,598
Mlarket Linked Man-Convertible Dabenture of INK Zilatmient,
10,00,000
12|182, Secured Redesemahb e Principal Protectad - Redemmable witn agreed coupen at the end of 428 days [rem Lhe date of 03-Fele21 - 196773
Market Linked Nan-Cenvertible Debenture of [N, ] ;
10,00,000
134158, Secured Reduq:l_n b Principal Protected - Hon- Comvertible Market. Linkod Debantures Redesmable with agreed coupar ot the end of 730 deys [ram the date of FU-5ep-2l 14404 1,4583.72
tdarket binked Non-Convettibla Dobanture ot INR | alietment.
issued by the compary are sucured by way of a
10,00.000 first parl passu charge cver the recelvables of
12348, Secured Redegrmalyle Pelncipal Frotected - the Company to the extent they meet the Redesmahle with agreed eoupon at 1he end of 152 dags from the date of) 14-Crec-21 397760 355381
hlarket Linked Mon-Convertihle ebenturs of |INK . . u alletraent,
1000000 stipulatad security cavet (Y Ilppothecated
et Recai <"} ereated porsnant to the deed of
14502, Sccured Redeemable Principe| Pratected - N Redeematble with agreed roupon at the end of 729 days from the date of 18-Feb-22 5,630.14 390271
Market Linked Mon-Conwertible Debentare of iR hypothecation executed by the Company bn allotment.
fawaur of the Debentura Tiustee.
10, 03,000
15|550, Secured Redecmabla Princlpal Protected - Redaemahle witn agresd coupon at the end af 311 days from the date of O3tdar-i3 5,744 54
Market Linkedd Wor -Convertible Dabenture of INR allotment,
147, D000
161150, Secuied Aedeernable Principal Protected - Fedeemable with agreed coupan at the end of 310 czys from the date of| 26-Jul-23 148792 -
Hiarket Linked Non«Conwetible Debenture of INR [aliotment.
10,00,000
Total 73,527.02 £2,105.52
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12, Borrowings {ather than debt securitles)

{Rz. Inlakhs)
Asat Asdt
M } i March 31, 2020
Particulars Wareh 31, ml " iRestabed
. Amartlied cost- penardlsed cost
(2} Term laans
(il from banks 62 A64.E5 8Q,599.91
(il from other parties 16,328.37 15,145.11
(k] Inter corporate borrowln gs from related parties F20d-1¢ -
fel Inter corporaie beerowings from ather partizs 1,600.25 -
[tH Loans repayeble on demand
{ibtirém nanks 545591 4,476 .26
filkfrom ather parties - -
{e| Commercial Papers 1,959,72 -
Talasl 93,422.08 70,321.28
B E*in India 93,422.04 0221.28
IBmmw s oulside India - -
Total 93,421,038 70.321.28
Tenmsa pd itk (R b Bakhs)
{Particulars . Natwra of mcurity’
e : . H {Restaied -
Bommwings
a] Banks Teerm Lown fromn Riskks ape secured by way of & frst[Leans are repayable in masthiy or guartetly lostellrents with ariginal G2 AGES £0,599.91
pari passu charge over all the recefvables; both|lenurs ranging fram 3 to 60 mea ths.
present and future of tha Company; T¢ the eulent Rate of Interest {"ROI") rangio 2 from £.32% p.a. 10 11,002 .4
they meet 1he requireraent of each lender's asset)
cover stipulated 1o respect of the outslanding|
Eacilitiag.
b] Othars Term Loan Irom Others are secured By way of aLoans are repayable in monthly o quarterly installrments vath onginal 16,338 37 15,014.28
first parl passn chaige gver all the receivables; bathitenura ranging from 33 to 33 months,
present and future of the Company; o 1ha txienl| RO ranging from 10.35% poa. ta 145k pa.
they meel the requiremant of each lepdar's szet
cover stipulated in respect of the oputsianding
farilivies,
Pass Through Certiticate Borrowings are secured by| Baged on the waterfall mechanism, the proceeds raaliswf feom thel - 13073
way of charge on Fixed deposits and receivable| receivailes shall ke ulilized for the purpese of repayment of borrowings.
fram the poal principal, R ranging fram 10.35% p.a. to 12.45% pa.
Loans repayakle en demand Werhlag Capltal Demand Loans ["WCOL"] and Cash| WCEL and CC Pacilities are repaable ¢n démand, Interest is payabie on | 5,456.0% 1 4TE26
[WCDL end CC) Credit ("CE") frorn Banks are secured by way of al manthly bz
first parl pagow charge cver all the recevables; hoth| ROl ranging from 8.10% p.a. te 11.00% p.a.
presedtt and future of the Company; to the exten
they meel the requrement of gach lender's assel
cover stipulated I respect of the owtstanding)
facilities.
Imter cprporate bamowings from 7etated parties Unsecurad The beaure 1 6 meaths. takerest 1s aayable an a manthly basis 6,202.16 -
|Rafer Mole 29| Rl - 0.50% p.a.
Intex corporate boriowings fram other partias Unsecured The tenure is L rnonth. Inler2st s payable om maturity, T000. 25
R - 10,0003 .3,
Cammerslal Bapar Unsecured Pssiemd al o diseannt and pedesrnable a3 par. The tenure is 364 days with 1,954, 32
eaupon of LUK pa.
Total 03,432.08 0, 32128

204




InCred Financial Services Limited

MNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements

13, Other financial liabilities

{Rs. in lakhs)

Particularg:i. . A 5t-;-
o sat | March31, 2020
SR : | Marh 33,2021 | T oo ctated)
Lease liability (Refer Note 32) 1,927.82 1,878.95
Advances from customers 2,273.22 1,432.21
Sundry Creditors 18.59 16.19
Security deposits 10.57 10.57
Employee expenses pavable 0.01 0.69
Others 1.67 3.5
Total 4,231.88 3,342.57
14. Provislons
{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars - cemi i | paat L
_ . Asat :

o - . ..|..Mafch 31, 2020
March 31, 2021 - :

{Restated)

Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 30)

153.59

158.48

Expected credit loss provision on undrawn
commitments 11.00 4.82
Total 169.48 153.41
15. Other non-financial liabilities

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Lo S e s VPR 2% .

: - ) ' EoAsat

1| -Marchi3g, 20217

:'?'{Rést_at:ed;}_-_ .

Statutory dues payable

516.18

658.23
Provision for expenses 2,3%9.08 1,415.98
Total 2,905.26 2,078.21
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16 (A} Eguity share capltal {Rs. in lakhs}
i s : - As at March 31,302t - G- ¢ Ag-at March 21, 2020-{Restated) i+ 77
particulars e . .. Number - . Ambunt T Mumber” . Amount;
Autherised Capital
Equity sharas of Rs. 10/- each 2,00,00,00,000 2,00,000.00 2,00,00,00,000 2,00,000.00
Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 8,00,00,000 £,000.00 8,00,00,000 8,000.00
Total 2,08,00,00,000 2,08,000.00 2,08,00,00,000 2,08,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up 30,77,27,936 30,772.75 30,76,36,727 30,763.67
Preference shares of Rs, 10/- each fully paid 7,.85,16,289 7,851.63 7,85,16,285 7.851.63
Total 38,62,44,225% 38,624.92 32,61,53,016 38,615.30

Terms frights attached to equity shares

The cermpany has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share fully paid up. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
The tarmpany declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend If and when propesed by the Board of Directors will be subjoct to the approval of
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General lMeeling, except in case of interim dividend.

In the event of liguidation of the campany, the halders of the aquity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of alf
preferential amounts, The distribution will be in propariion to the number af equity shares held by the shareholders,

Terms/frights aitached to preference shares

Each Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Share ("CCCPS") shall be 3 0.001% coupon preference share denominated in Indian Rupees and shall be
fully and cumulatively campulsorily canvertible within 3 period of 19 years from the date of their issue.

Each holder of CCCPS shall have such rights to attend and vote at general meetings as prescribed by the Companies Act and other pplicable laws from time to
timeand as specified under the Articles of Association. Further to tha aforesald, for the purpase of vollng, the holder of the CCCPS shall be deemed to have
conwerted all its CCCPS inte Equity Shares and shall have voting rights on every resolution placed befare the Company on the basis of its shareholding in the
Company an as “as converted” basis or Fully Diluted Basis, 1.e., assuming the conversion of all the CCCRS held by itinto Equity Shares.

Equity shares held by holding company
CQut of the equity shares Issued by the company, shares held by its holding company :

[Rs. in lakhs)
A A T : As at March 31, 2021 : R E -As 3t March 31,2020 { Kestated): B
. Name of sharehalder Y ——— - - £ =
: AR No, of sharesheld” | 7 " Amount " Ngi, of shares held .. .. ciAmeount. G
Bee finance Limited {Mauritius), the halding company 23,03,73,125 32,037.31 23,03,73,135 23,037.31
Total 23,03,73,125 23,037.31 23,03,73,125 23,037.31

Details of shareholder{s} holding more than 5% of shares in the company :

Nane (:;Iifiihi;:rehol d:a: _ . As atiMarch 31, 2021 - R _ ‘Asat M'afr¢h' 31 5'2029_ [Heﬁta't_ed]i?
R : - . No.ofsharesheld ] . ~ % Holding!" " j i Nojofsharesheld i |} . % Holdlng

Bae finance Limited {Mauritius), the holding company 23,03,73,125 59.64% 23,03,73,125 59,66%
Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij vaor
Ontwikkelingslanden NV, 450,365,765 12.66% 4,50,36,765 11.66%
Daks Asset Management Private Limited (formerly
knewn as "Alpha Capital Advisors Private Limited 2/C
PRS"} 2,61,31,606 6.17%] 2,63,04,302 B.81%
Investcarp Private Equity Fund I (formetly known as
IDFC Private Equity V) 14241228 3.69%| 2,87 82735 7 .45%)
Total 31,57,82,724 81.76% 32,04,96,027 £5.59%
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Aggregata number of shares issued for consideration ether than cash during the period for a period of five years immediately preceding

During the current financial year the Company has issued Nil equity shares for cansideration ather than cash (Previaus year: Nill.

Equity shares recanciliation

[Rs. in lakhs

#As at March 31, 2021

- As at March 31, 2020 (Restated}

" 'Particula — T - -
: B B i Number: | Amount. . Number - CUAMOUNE

At the beginning of the year 30,76,36,727 30,763.67 30,76,29,303 30,762.53
Add: Issyed during the year

Shares 1ssued during the year - - -
ESOF exercised during the year 91,208 §.12 7424 0.74
Bought during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 30,77,27,936 0,772.79 30,70,360,727 30,763.67

Preference shares reconcillation

{Rs. in lakhs]

Particula rs

. As.at March 31,2021

As atMareh 31, 2020 {Rastated}

: L Numnbser Amount - Number .. . Amaunt
At the beginning of the year 7.85,16,289 7,851.63 -
Add: lssued during the year
Shares issued during the period - 7,85,16,289 7.851.63
Bought during the period - - . -
At the end of the year 7,85,16,289 7,851.63 7,85,16,289 7,851.63
~
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17, Interest income

{Rs. in lakhs)

‘Year énded”

Year ende

On financial assets measured at amortised cost:

-Interast an loans 35,496.52 31,024.84
-Interest income from investments 523,59 40.22
-Interast on deposits with banks 154.14 3820
On Financlal Assats measured at fair value through Other

Comprehensive Income:

-Interest income from investments 1,537.50 -
Total 17.711.75 31,103.32

Mote - Mo revenue from tronsactions with @ single customer amounted to 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue for the year

ended 31 Mareh 2022 and 31 March 2020,

18, Fees and commission incame

{Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars |-

" Year ended

Yearended
March 33;-2020°

o o . T {Restated) - -
Other fees and ¢harges 50116 7449.95
sarvice fees {Refer Note 29 for related party transaction) 56.00 56.00
Total 557.16 805,95
1%. Net gain/ {loss] on fair value changes
{Rs. in lakhs)
. T T 7| Wearended
- rended P .
Particulars. . ... Myea;f:: __:021_ i March 31, 2020 ..
e . AL EE L (Restated)
Met gain/ {loss} on financial instruments at fair vaiue
through profit or loss
-Investments 268.91 465.01
Total 26891 465.01
Fair value changes:
-Realised 268.91 451,20
-Unrealised - 3.81

20. Other income

{Rs. in lakhs)

;". dd . Ye_én"endedi'
fearended. oo L e
Particulars e : March 31,:2020:. .,
- B 2021 . ) F
Co March 31, DZ (Restated) .
Markating income 195.00 135.00
Service fee income {Refer Note 29 for Telated party 201.46 628.56
transaction)
Other income 50.63 18.81
Total 647.00 782.37
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21. Finance costs

" Yearended-

(Rs. in lakhs}
s Yearende ;

On financial liahilities measured at amortised cost:

{i} Interest on borrowings §,258.41 7,463.00
(ii} Discount on Commercial Paper 124.74 93.85
{iii} Interest on Debentures 6,499.73 3,801.05
{iv} Interest on Inter Corporate Debts ("ICD") (Refer Note 28) 19574 66.18
(v) Liability towards operating lease {Refer Note 32) 152.16 151.78
{vi) Other finance cost 40.62 29.83
Total 15,271.40 11,605.69

22, Impairment on financial instruments

{Rs. in takhs)

Particular$

:Mareh31,2021 ¢

farch 31,2020
-{Restated)

On Financial instruments measured at amortised cost:

(i) Loans {including amount written off, net of recovery) 8,868.53 5,631.53
{ii) Investments 0.05 {1.82)
{iil}) Others {3.21) 5.03
Totai 8,865.37 5,634.74
23. Employee benefits expenses
{Rs. in lakhs)
articulars s - March:33, 20

S - March 31,202 2 G (Resta,té d} )
Salaries and wages 7,799.595 8,154.92
Contribution to provident and other funds 216.00 260.68
Share based payment to employees {Refer Note 31) 1,026.28 582.88
Staff welfare expenses 138.43 199.55
Retirement Benefit expenses [Refer Note 30) {21.39) 32,28
Others - 9,27
Total 9,159.37 9,240.58
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Notes to the $tandalone Financial Statements

24, Other expenses

{Rs. in lakhs}
Darti : Y-e'at"fen:d-éci o Year ende
Particulars March 31,2 s I e
S : oo TR s {Restated)
Rent (Refer Note 32) 27589 188.41
Communication cost 76.38 86,11
Travelling and conveyance 125.22 T 34441
Legal, professional and consultancy charges 441.41 316.89
Membership and Subscription 5.50 4,27
IT expenses 593.96 657.31
Repairs and maintenance 15.28 25.01
Rating fees 104.25 47.84
Printing and stationary 456 29.67
Bank charges 3194 28.55
Bureau charges 168.68 290.44
Directors' sitting fees {Refer Note 29) 13.1% 14,55
Payment to auditors 84.93 73.54
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion expenses 389.18 385.90
Operation Cost 164.00 458.25
Office Expense 286.25 316.03
Postage & courier charges 11.63 £2.45
Interest on statutory dues 10.03 0.18
Recruitment fees 32.51 126.88
Stamp Duty & Filing fees 8.10 62.22
Legal & Technical charges 25.64 88.74
Corpoerate Social responsibility {Refer Note 37) 20.05 16.93
Cost of Collection 851.93 553.48
Miscellaneous expenses 61.41 73.18
Total 3,305.92 4,271.24
Payment to the auditors:
(Rs. in lakhs)
Yearended Yearended

Particulars. = .. -

Auditor's remuneration
- Audit fees

74.12 65.95
In other capacity
- Certification services 10.81 7.59
- Taxation -
Total 24.93 73.54
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25, Tax expense

(a} Amounts recognised In profit and loss
{Rs. in lakhs}

Particulars

Current tax expense

Current year 1,135.14 52743
1,135.14 52743

Deferred tax expense

Originatéon and reversal of temporary differences [917.52) [144.09)

Deferred tax expense (917.52} [144.08)

Tax expense for the year 217.61 1E3.34

(i) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive incame

[Rs. in lakhs)
. R Year ended March 31, 2021 Year ended March 31, 2020 {Restated) i
Particula.r.s Before ta;é ;:Tax;{e'.kﬁféhs'éi;'i' T Befor; t?ax Tax (:EKPSI'ISE] o
: IR . : beneflt G benefit
{tems that will not be reclassified to prafit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of defined benefit Nabllity {asset) [26.29) 6.62 (19,67} 29,03 {Q.32) 2871
(b} Equity instruments through othar cormprehensive income - - - 0.02 - 0.02
Itams that will be raclassified to profit or loss
(@) Debt Instruments through cther comprehensive income 113.97 [23.55} £9.03 - : -
92,68 {23.33) §9.35 29.05 0,32} 28.74

{£) Ambunts recognised directly in equity
There are ng temporary difference recognised directly in equity for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Previous Year: Mil)

{d} Reconclliation of effective tax rate

[Rs. in lakis)
Lo Year ended
Particulars M:::t: ::d:(?;l Ma'rcﬁfél', 2020
e , FT R Res tated)
Profit bafore tax as per Statement of profit and loss {A) 1,241.06 658.75
Statutory tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate {B} 312.37 165.81
Tax effect of:
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calou lating
taxable income 8.42 18.45
Effect of income exempt from Income tax {42.11) {97.74)
Tax pertaining ta priar year [47.84) {4.85)
Other adjustments [13.23) 11.54
Reversal of Deferrad tax on account of merger (Refer Naote No
42} - 182,70
lenpact for change in tax rate - 107.43
Effective tex amount 217.61 383.34
Effactive tan rate 17.53% 58.19%

{e] During the previous year, the Company had elected to exercise the option permitted under Sectlon 118BAA of the incorme-tax Act, 1961, as introduced by the
Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2015, Accordingly, the Company had recogniscd provision for income tax for the year anded March 31, 2020 and ra-measured
its deferred tax assets basis the rate prescribed in the said section. The full impact of the abeve mentionad change of Rs. 107.43 fakhs has been recognised In the
standzlone statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020,
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26. Earnings per share

Basic and diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

i. Profit attributable to Equity shareholders:

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars larch|Year-ended March
) . - _31_5_:2020:____
Profit attributable t ity hold f the C d in calculati
f . utable to equity holders of the Campany used in calculating 1,023.44 575 41
basic aarnings per share
Profit attri I i i
£ att bl:ltab e to equity holders of the Company used ln calculating 1,023.44 27541
diluted earnings per share
ii. Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Particulars - s : B AS at .. ..: . ASE‘I! i
e 7{"March 31,2021 | March 31,2020+
Weighted average number of equity share d as the d inator i
BhLe 2ge nu auty S Used as the denominalorint - 34 54 19 843 38,03,66,142
calculating basic earnings per share
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share: 14,19,853 -*
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares
used as the denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share 38,65,39,696 38,03,66,142
Basic earnings per share 0.27 0,07
Diluted earnings per share 0.26 0.07

* The ESOPs outstanding are onti-dilutive in nature

213



TE'E00'T - TEE00'T 6'BEDD 6'2£9'0 - - 12101
B - - P6RES e'8£9'9 - - SRAPINISS Jq2p Ul FUSLISAAU|
TB'E00'T - T8'€00'T - - - - SPURY [EN1Nu L JUDLISBAL |
s1asse |eueuty

=101 £ [Bnat 7 12A71 FIELES JeoL € [oha] Z PAa1 T [3A8)

_{peieised) 0707 TE YDIEW 18 Y.

" anjen kel

IZ0Z “TE YIs2in 12 sy

SIETIIY, t ed

{Sue| Ul sy)

"MO|2q PRjUEsAId 348 "AYDIRIS|Y BnjEa Jie) BUT UE 5133} 43U SUIPN|3U] 'ON|BA JIBY 18 PRINSPBW SSE|IGEN] [EIDURUI) PUE SIUSSE |BIIUEUI O SaRjen ey

anjea ey 'g

‘200G 31 fo Lod wiof 10y 5300 JUD £7 St DU YIM 300000970 L] 1507 )0 DLIA0D Sy {SEN0] 696017 5H 034 SNOMaIZ) syXe) 27 TT6 s "5y 0F BULmown sarapisgns up Judwsasly (210l

- LPG9L'ST'T - - 8R0S TL'T - - SBllMHig el |B1OUBULY [EID]
- LG TFEE - - BEIECY - - SR [RIZUBLIY DY
- L TZEDL - - 802IFES - - {sanunaas 1g3p ueylJayio] sBumoirog
- 79S0Tk - . 70/ TBEL - - S313LN33% 31937
ltq ey [RouELLy
- {Z'8P0TT'Z T8"E00°T - TSETZ'T92 6899 - S}aSSE [eloUeuy [ejoL
- 6E0E9T - - arIre'l - - 513558 [RIDUEUL J3YI0
. - - - 8570212 F58E9Y - SALNIDS 130~
- - TSE00T - - - - SPUNY |[En3Ny-
SPINTSDAL|
- {16802 - - +R'EEE'G5T - - Sueo
. 8858/ - - or'egs - - SJUalEAINba 4SBT PUE YSED URYY J3L10 5IUE B jueg
- ERTLLE - - REEFET - - sjuajeanba Yysed pue yse)
513558 [epPu el
H2R0 sty pasigowry | 130Ad ;1500 paspowy | OAd 1diAd T
T {P1e159Y) Q20T "TE ey Je Sy B . TEOT “I€ Ydiepy je 5y . SIRNNPEg
{sysie( 1 'sy)

: MR pIuasasd 258 ‘AYDILIDIY IN|BA JIE) 341 UL §(3A3] 1Y) Hurpnpaw) ‘San1)igel |B[IUEUL) pUE 51asSE |2JUeL|3 J0 sjunoute Suthie)

uonesyissea Suunosy g
SIUBLLSINSEIN BN|eEA Ned /7

SJUALUAILLS [EISURULY SUG(EPUBIS 34T 0] S3I0N

PRIILUIM SITNAIDS [BIDUEBLI] PRIJUT

214



Le9L'STT Ir'60L'STT SE'066°TLT 86708 TL"T 1e10L
L THEE 1SZPE'E BETEZ'Y BETEC Y EETCETTE =TT R )
8T TZE 0L RTIZEDL 85'8EF T8 S0'TTFES (sa1unaas 103p ueys Jayo) sBumoliog
7950171 Z9°50T'2y 60°02E' VL 70428 S9I1IN133 137
salIqey [gueus
SEOBY'ET'T BOZSOET'E 16°876'T8°T SE'ESRL9T |e10L
BEDEYT B5E'065'T qT1ZET 371Z8T 519558 [EIURUY 134T0
- - EP'GLLR 6lE5LE $213UN325 199 -
THE00°T 18°€00'% - - Spuny jemaniy-
S1LWISBAUR
4P ER'0°7 STBFR'P0T 08'9ER'0L'7 Pa'65E"S5"7 suem
BRDEL J89E¢ 9’885 9" 889 spuz|eaInba ysed pue ys5el ueyl U840 BIue eg jueg
EBTLLE ERTLLE 8EETET SEEZET sJuDEAINbI Yse0 puR YseD
S5)ISEE [CIIUEU]
‘BnjEp Jey anjea SunAiesy e, Hed anjep, Futhuesy :
~ (pateisay) 0zoz TE BN dESY. | -

{5yye| w sy}
80'294°ST'T 80°29L°ST'T - - S6'066'TL'T SE'066'TL'T - - JeoL
ISTYE'S {5'TPE'E - - 2R'TETY 88'1E2'F - " §31)I0E[] |BOUEUL B0
#5004 #680E'0L - - 26 REV'EE B6BEFES - - {s21un33s 1gap veyd J3ula) sFuimaniog
£TTTITTY (STIT'IF - - 60°0TETL 600ZEFL - - SR0UNDR5 1990
1qer] [eueuld
£59EF'21T 92'L7610°T - TL205'Y L669T'9L'T ETR/EDT - PETIET (oL
6L 69T HE'069T - - ]7'1Z8'T STTIBT - - 51255€ |EJUELY JBYI0
LFEERS0'T L LETIO0'T - - Q£ 9Ey' 04T It Ao Ard - - SUEG]
- - - - SO OELY CG0RT'Z - - SNITS 19303 -
- - - - - - - SIUSUIISIAU]
/8598 - - R|EGES 9’585 - - ap'gRe S1Ua|eAIrtba Ysed pue ysed UEyl Iyl aJuE[eq jued
£]'TLLE - - ERTILE 8L - - SEETET sjua|eanba Yses Aue YseD
515558 |2laueury
fmel C g Pae FACIEY! T 13497 C: T CEfEneT. . Z |3A3 T [5A) S
S K : siErIeg

_TZ0Z 'TE YHBIA 18 5y

[P3121593) 0202 ‘1% UDIEIN 1€ 57

anjeA Je4

{syyel  5y)

“3|QE] YIERSUIIPUN SMD|[0) |aA3[ YIES JO

uoljeur|dia Uy * piepURls SUUNOIIE 3Y1 iapun paguasssd §1342) 23u4) Q31U SIUIWNSUL [@DURUIY S) PAIsse]d sey Auvedwio] ayl ‘anpea dre) SujuuiEIap Ul pasn sindul ayl Jo AL EIS) Y1 IN0DGE UORENPU] Ue 3piadud 01
“SIUBMIDIETS [RIOUR LI} A} Ll PASOIISIP B8 SBN|BA J{B) YIUM JO) PUE 3505 PASILIOLIE 18 PRINSEIL) 318 18Y] JUDWINIISOI [BI3UELI BU1 40 BNn|2A iy 341 S 918p Ul Ipew sTtewnsa pue spuawBpni auy) sule|dxa uonaas siy)

SIUALUSIEIG |RIDLEULY BLIG|EPURIS 443 01 530N

penWT S931AI0% [RPUBULY PRAIUE

215



"2UNIEU U] WIS Loys Joyls 1e Aayl

SE BNjes 418y JO UeNEWIXeIdd e 2]QRUOSES B B 0] PAJAMISUO0D 5 STUSLIRSUIL [RIURUE 2527 o Junowe Fulduiel sy sajqeied J3410 PUE 523103505 WDJ) Panla03a saduanpe jo Apseund asuduwrod sajiqe| |BRUERLL YD
1S3 fRIIUEL I3YID 1A

BN |2A L1E) BY] 01 uolieutikosdde DJHEUDsE B

51 anjen SuAsed 3y3 SSUMDLIoG a1ed SUle0) ) IO UDIIEN|EA JI2) 10y PAIIPISUOT UDDY SEY TT0Z ‘TE Y B 38 B Ajuady Suiley 3yvD Ag paysi|gnd en|ea gy ayl $aIn3usgop pasjulf 304 ew 104 Aniew BUELIEWRS QUE 51
JPEI JE[IWIS B YUM 5103P 101 P 200G sBY AuedwioD yoiysm 18 59381 Sunjieazad ayl 2ursn sao ) 45 pajunoasip oo paseq 8 saold japetn palonb wnogiew sBmmolrog FuLiesg 1saUEu1 P 1o anjea dle) Bolewgsa 3y L
ssSumoallog pue sapUMI0S 180 A

HA STEIINIDS 8P Ul sjuswsanu sey Auedwo) ayp
SONIINIAE 14ap Ul JUIWISIAU] "M

"BUMIEY U] WET UOYS 318 ABY] 5B 81 BA JIE] Jo uonesixoddde 3|gruasesl & 51 0] PIUSPISUOT 3| STUSWNIIS W [RIDUBUY 35341 10 Junow e Suidieen oy sajer paxy

“EIMIEU U W13} HOYS

248 Ay se anjea Hey 10 uoewordde 2jgeuoseal » 3G 03 PURPISUOT €| SIUINWFLSUI [RISURLY 353Y] JO Junowie SuAsied oY) “sadueape Jayld pue saiped pajejas o) ssaueape 40 ALewud 3sudiiod s3esse |eueul) 13410
151955 [RSUBUL I} T

“3es Jurpus) Juaund @ 3ulsT Smo]) YSED PEJURDISIP U0 pESEC PEIEINY BY SUaMm SUBD| 3180 paxy 4o anjes ey sug anpea Budaes sy ssjewpioldde Ajjelausd Jead U0 UBY] 5591 )0 ALANIEW [ENISES B YTIM SIDW01END

0] 530UBADE PUR SUBD| JO 2N|8A 1B 41 “Juausiediu 10 SUOISIADIG 40 134 PR1ILIsUd 218 S2DURAPE pUE SUROT "53UN0ULE uIALIED 1AY] 51 5UBO| 218) BUIB0|} JO SN|BA J|B) 34] "SIBUIOISNI O] S30UBATIE PUR SUBQ| JO4
Slousnd 01 wmu-._mbﬂm ﬂ-cm Sueo]|'n

Slunolle SulALB 1843 1 JUEG UTIA S30UE(BG PUR YSED JO 2N|BA JIE) Y1
iaauejeq jueq pue ysed

1502 PISILIOWEe 12 Bl 3y SIUSWINIISUL [2I5Ues

53024 J1gg 33 Junemoes w paaoaur wawadpni Juswaedeuew Jo [2aa) uesytuds 8 §) aayl ‘papes: Ajpape
10U AJE SUSWINIISUL [EIDUELIY JO 58110881 WIS 5% '€ PUE 7 “T 5|2A37 U3amISq UOIIESIISSE[D 1942 PUES SIUBWINIISU| [EIDUEUY 1502 PasILIOWE JO san(2a Jie) Suysqelss 4o siseq s, Aueduwc?) ay Ino s1as Buimoyo; ayl

sanjes Jie} 40 UIWINSed *3

‘sanpen Jies 3yl 01 jenba /e sJUnowe Buldiled 3l ‘anjea 12 18 pAINsesi are Jey] $1855e [eueUy) Jo4 Sanea
J1gy a3yl 2rewnxoldde s3uawaze)s epURULL Y)Y ul pasiudooal sinolue Supdued 343 1ey3 sJ3PIsUoD Aueduo] 343 "3jGE1 JA0QE SYL Ul PAUCIIUIL 322 sTunowe SUIAIIES SYI YDA A0} STUSLINIISU |eIaueLt) a50y] o) 1deax3

SIUSINATLIS |BI3LENLS BUD|BAULTS BT O Sa10N

P3WI S2IIAIDS |EIDUEUL] PRIJUE

216



a0'Z59°9 -

TZOZ "TE YMEW 32 sy

OT'ZET

WU OIUL FMEUIYIIEW0D JZYI0 Ul paSINE0I 5U|20)

IB'6TH

g "

{lesedsig)/suoisinbay 12N

{Pa1=s9H) 020Z 'TE Y2Iewn 38 sy

Z (zoo) L0301 SAISUSYIWOI 13110 Ul PISIUT0R SUiR
B {19171} {lesedsig)/suoiisinbry 3N
- £9'TEZL

SpuBwNgsul 19aa

Aunb3-

{pa1e)say) GI0Z “TE YHEew 18 sy
: vt b

{ste| U "sy)
“TZ0Z 'LE DM PApUE e Y] 104 SWAY £ |348] Ul 3Buey) 3yl sjuasaud B)qe] Bulma|0) ayL

{€ (3az]) sandul ajgealssqoun Jueapudis Fuisn POA 1B PRANSEIW SJO55E [EIJUELI 10} SIUALWSINSEaLU SN|EA 1B "]

0702 ‘TE Y248l PUB TZ07 'LE YMIEN PAPU2 sJeah [eloueu) 313 FULINp £ pUR 7 [2A37 PUR ¢ PUE T 5|SAF] US8MISG BN|BAJIEE 1B PEINSEIW $31 1148l U e SI3SSE [RIDURLIY JO 549)5URI] OU 318 3431}

SAJSUBN] [ana|-iRlu|

_un_tmn_ 3uiioday 10 pud dy e se §jaal| }:Emum_: af|en ey 10 1IN0 S1aJ5Uel] pue 3L Si3jsuel azjufoosd 018 _.G__Do_ m_»r_manu E=LIR

5311092102 JSTUCWE SIAYSUEI] UQ 53550] S0 SU|RD

“SRUBLUNIISUL B4} JO Y5 NPELD 10y palsnlpe sajes 395-0) FuIsn sjuUsWnIsu;

Jepuys uo Auniew 01 pauad AIUe| By Ayl U0 pRaA 193ew JUISH PEIBWINES 5| 1 *IGE(IBAR 5| BIEP OU 2J3UM DUE 13 PIPRI] SE10) s3oud 1318w AIBpUOIas 52 UYans E1EP I|OeAIISY0-134EW LD PISEQ §| 3N|BA JIE4

11NJ3s jaap ul Juausanuy|

Jantaeun 3yl Ul AN Susa 3y Buisn paniea ae spuny [ERINW L JUSwsasu ay |

I PURY [ENINW UL JUSWISIAUL ‘I
INjeA e 18 Plal} SUnIIsu BB
SIUAWI] BIS [BZURUE] BUGEPLIEIS 311 O} 5310A]

P 5301A135 [EDUEULY PAIQUS

217



‘samale s Auedwo)
3yl puUE SUOIIPUOI 13xJEWL Ul S8BUBYI 1038l 01 AlJeInEal pamIAdL dJe SW1SAS pue sangod Juawafeurw Ysy “SUWI| 01 JIUTITYPE PUE 535U 101UCLL 0] puE
§]o41U0D pue suwi 3su alelidoadde 195 o) "Auedwo] ayr Ag paoey sysu Byl 3sAjeur pue Ajlluspr 01 paysyqelss sue sapijod JuawaSeuew ysu s Auedwo] ay)

“S2IJIAI10E SH U0 5J01224p Jo pie0q 2yl o1 Alugn 33 suodad 9awwod

By sanljod juslageuew s s Auedio) ayl Fuouuow pue 3uldo|2Aap 1oy 3jqisuodsal 1 YIYM 'S3aRMLWOD IUBWIFSUR A ¥SIY Syl pAYSI[qEISD Sey sioloallp
4o p1eoq ay] jlomawe Juawadeuew ysu sAuedwo?) syy Jo yisisao pue JAWNYS RIS 3yl 10y Alljiqisuadsal |[BIAAC SBY 510333410 JO pleoq S Aueditor) ay)
"51039811Q Jo pieoq 511 Ag panoidde uasq sey yorym Adljod JuawiaBeuetu ysu s, Auedluc) 3yl ylm 3IURPICIDE Ul PIFELBLY 248 SYSLI [BIOUBLY Jy|

"sauUelLOLRd |@I3UBLY SH U0 $123Y3 ISISAPR |eilualod AZIUIUIW 0] 3335 puUg S13xMeW |epueuly jo Ajiqelzipald Jajiaq aAalyae o)

s1 snooy Arewnd s,Auedwo) 3y st Aypinbi| g 351 35303101 |51 P42 AjDWeEU SIS [eITURUY U1ELISD 0 pasadxa 51 Auedwos 2y) S53LISNG S1 10 350N03 3y U]

juawaSeustl YsU [BIDUBUL] "gZ

SIUSWIPELS [EIDUBUL] SUD[EPUERLS 3y} 01 S3J0N

PoHWIT S301A49S [E1DUBUL PR4JU]

218



InCrad Financizl 5ervices Limited

Motes to the Standalone Flnancial Statements
28. Financial sk management {continued)
A. Credit risk

Credlt ¥lsk ls thu risk of financial loss o the Company il a customer or counterparty ta a firancial instrument fails to meet its contractual abligations Le, receivalbles from

custamers, irvestments I delt securities atc. Credit risk anises from isans and advances, investments carreed at amertized cost and deposits with banks and financial
institutinns.

1} Crodit risk management

The Comparvy key objective Iv ko maintain a strong culture af respensibl lending, and rebust risk policles and cantral frameworks . The Campany sehsidets variods factars,
which provige an assessment of the borrmwer's ability-to-pay and willingness-to-pay. While the techniqees used far assessment vary acrecs product-sepments, the credit
principles remain a comman factet,

‘The key factors consldesed include:
- Income and cash Flow analysis: The barrowst's incotne for multiple saurces is assessed, along with tho bomower's obligations and financial cammitments, Hence, the funds
#vailable ta repay the loan/E M1 is computed, and the loan is tailored to be affordable Lo tha borrower. Far cartain producl types woiking capilal gup i alse calculated.

- Credit history analysis! The botrower's enperience In managing debt is consldersd. Privr delinquencies and considered. 4 strang repayment tiack record Is typcally an
indlcator of the tustormer’s willingness-to-pay. Exceptinns and miances, like cuslomers with a lirized credlt hlstary but with strengths like fob-tenura or asset-ownership, are
#lso considerad to make appraprlate credil decisions.

- Borrawar's prefila and intended use of the Funds: The borower's intended use of funds 's considered as a part aF the cradit pracess, Including the catoul ation of warking,
capital cydle far certain product types. In some product-segments, the use of funds may be certified by the horrower ar controlled by dishursing directiy to the endwuse.
Earrower ploflles which are not in targeted niarket-4egments are screened out.

- Securlty cover provided; The Company has a well defined credit palley which lays out the sceurity b be provided. In cartain cases, aroviding the relevaat callateral |s a pre-
conditian fer laan sanction.

-Collettabllity and geo-location: . The borrower's lacation, aceesaibility, stabilty and contact-abilivy ave il sorgidersd beiere lsan sanctoon, In cascs where bhere are doubts or
concerns about any of Lhese factars, an adverse adjustment ta the risk-profile is mage,

The Company liaz sepatate data scencefanalytics toum which monitors the wintage turve, boance tates, collaction efficiency, portfolio mezrics and definquencies further
perludic re-audit of existing cases to unmarth delinguency trends and credit learmings,

Measurement of Expected Crodit Losses {'ECL)

The Conmpatiy has segmerted [ts outstanding portfolio based on the risk profiles Le. risk manazement policies, hissorical expariences with respeet to default rates ete, for the
romgutation of ECL.

A thiee stage modet o Impairment based on changes in ciedit guality since initiad rocognitian has hean impleaented, The Cutn pany has used Days Past Due {'DFDY] basis for
staging of the pertfalio ond has opted for the rebuttable presumption prescobed by the standard ko recognize default in case payrents are cverduc 9 days and a Signlficant
Increase in Credit Rish { $1CR") in case paymants are averdus for more than 30 days.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected 1o arise over the life of the asset {the Mfetime sapeciad credi loss), unless there has baen no significant Increase In
credit risk since origination, [k which cass, the allowance is based on the 13 imenths’ cxpected credit loss).

Lifetlig ECL are the expected ceadit losses resubting from ell possible default events over the expected fe of 2 financlal nstrument, The 12-month ECL is the partion of
Lifatime ECL that repmesent the ECLs that result frem default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 manths after the separting date.

Both Llifetime FCLs and 12-month ECLs are calcatated on elther an individual basis feollective bagls, depording on the natere of the underlying portfolie of finanglal
instruments, The Company has estabilished 4 policy to perform an assessment, at the end of cach reporting periad, ot whether o fioencial instrurment’s credit risk has increascd
signflivantly since initial recognitian, by considering the change In the risk of default oecuering ayer the Jetnainkng life of the Gnancial instrument. The Company daes the
assessment of significant inerease in credit tisk at a borrower lavel, Rased on the sbove, the Campany categorisas its lnans inte Stage 1, $tage 2 and Stage 3. Considering the
current macre econatmle scenario, dua to Cowvld, the proballity uf defaults have been increased aver and abowve Lve hislerical rends across product verticals,

DPD Slakus . : . Stage . Baslls faor rec i ok ECL

. N . : Loans - : ;. lwestimaits
Currant Stapge 1 12 Momh's ECL 12 Wentin’s ECL
1-30 days Stape 1 12 Month's L 12 Iflenth’s ECL
31-90 lays Stage 2 Lifa Time ECI, Lifer Tinrwer ECL
904 days Ltage 3 Life Time ECL Life Time ELL

Wiite-offs

4 per Cumpany's policy, the Cormpany writes off Retail secured and unsesured leans outstanding for more than 542 days and 450 days respectivaiy. However, Small and
Mediurn Entezprises (SME) Secured and Unsecured Loans, are writen off om a cdse-to-case basis subject to S40 daps and 450 elays respectively, based on the probanility of
recovarahility. Aay subsequent recoveries against such Faans are cradited to the statemens of proft and loss,
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InCred Financlal Services Limited

Nates ta the Standalone Financial Statements

AsatMarch 31, 2021
[Es. I Lakhg)
. i . . Grass carrying B0 0| Carrying ameunt
Particulars Assel group - ‘amount of financlal - | Expecled tredit loyses:| - nel of impairment-
i N ’ ‘assets E Y pravision
Investments at amortlzed cost
- Debt securilies H1H0.35 005 2. 130.50
Inwestments at FYOCI
- Debt securltles £,652.06 1312 E,532.04
Loss allowsnce measured at 13 mongh|L03ns 8t amartised cost
expected credit lossus (Stage 1} - Term Loahs atal Luans 22541027 1,8E6.31 2,38,062.96
tepayahble an demand
Bank balance olher than cash and SAE 46 - CAR.A6
cash equivalents
Iaan camnmilmetits BAO75.02 1100 B 5402
Other financial assets 1,826 46 4,18 182138
Luss allowance measyred at [fe-time Loans
expected credit losses, not credit « Tarm Leans and Loans 24,318.43 200379 22,3064
Impaired {Stage 2] repayakble an demand
Loss allowance measured at life-time Loans
uxpected credit losses, credit im paired -Term Loans and Leans 10,206.0% 5,22%.79 4.976.24
[Stage 3} repayahle ¢n detnand
A5 At MArch 31, 2020 (Reckated)
| Rs. in lakhs)
- G::IPSS carrylng ;i:rry Iﬁg amount
Particulars anmount & financlal’ ‘net of impaliment’

- - @3ets

Expetted credit losses

‘provision

Irvestments at amortied gost
- bwbi securities
Loans at amsttised cost

loss allowance measured ot 12 wonth| = TeM Loansand Loans 1,9%017.36 1,34571 1,87,67TLES
erpected tredit tosses (Stage 1) repavable on demand
Bank balance cther than casly and TIE.84 .56 731583
cash edqulvalents
Loan commitments o,B20.07 .82 0,875.25
Orher assets 159583 5.4 1,640,355
Loss allowy ahce Medsored at [ifa-time Loans
expected credit losses, nar credit
inpalted Tstage 2) -Term Loans and boans 4,355.24 3175R A4,037.68
repayatle on demand
Loss allewance measured at life-time Laars
enpe tted ciedil lsses, oredit impaired - Term Loans and Loans £, 81566 3,675.81 3,139.85

[stage 3)

repayahio on damand

Maxlmum expasure ko eredi risk

The table Delow shews the maximum esgosure to credit risk for recagnlsed Kinancial Instruments, The extent 1o which callaterat and other credit enhancements mitizate the
imaxlmum expaiure to credit risk is deseribed in the footnotes to the table, For financial assets recognised on the balance shaet, the mawimam exposure to credit risk aquals

their carrying amount.

[Rs. in lakhs)
Partlcubzrs Grost Exposure as at March 31, | Gross Expogure 85 st
- Coaa D mMarch il 20 .
- : . |Restated) .
Cash and cash equivalent 1,3¥3.58 377283
Balances with Banks 5B5.46 738 84
Leranis 2,64451.73 2,10,183.26
Invesiment sacurities 8,77 261 -
Drher finandlal asscts 1,826.46 1,635.82
Total eredit rlsk exposure 2.76.975.64 2,15,395,75

Callateral held

The Company perlodically monitars the quality as well a5 Lthe value of tha security to mect the prescribed limits, The rollateral heicl by the Company varies on case ta ease

bazis and includes:

i} First{Subservient charge oh the Land andfor Building of tive project or othar projects
it First/Subservient charga on the fled atd currant assets of the borrawar
iii| Hypathecation over receivables from funded project n othwr projects of the barrower

iv] First foss guarantee default [£106] In the form of cash collateral, lien on ficed deposits etc.
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InCred Financlal Services Limited

Notes to the Standalone Flnanclal statements

The beglaw table stralifies oredit expesure for secured loans by ranges of Loan-tuvalue {LTV] ratio. LTY is calculated as the ralieef the Principal outstanding of the loan ta the

value of the collateral The valuation of collateral ls a5 of data of grant of loan and excludes any adjustoents for obtainmg and selling he callateral.

Secured Loans

[ R 1 akhs )

LTV Ratio AsatMarch 31,2021 Principal oukstanding 5 at March -
: | asatMarh i, 2020 [Restared)
: : 2020(Res tated) i :

Less than S0% 53,647.27 29,96, 47,0497 54 47.09%
51-70% 18,534.37 13.82%| 22, 74280 2275
T1-90% 1147472 8.55% B,204.25 8.26%
91-100% 45,812.45 34945 18,749163 18.79%,
Murer Lhan 1008 366367 2.73% 211775 3.12%]
Total 1,34,252.98] 100.00%]| 1,041,023.97 100.00%
Walue of security of secured credit impaired assets

Tae credit impaired assets as at the reporting dates were secured by ¢harge on land and building and project recaivables amounting to:

[Rs. inv lakhs}

Principal outstanding a3 at March
. 31, 2021

Particulars

Asalllarch 31,2023

[ Principal outstanding

asatharch3l,

As ot Mareh 3,
<2020 (Restated) |

Value af Security %,629.05

6,493.59

3.050.38

The Company measntes the anount of ECL an a finandal instrument in a way that refleets an unbiased and probailiby-weigkted amount. The Company considers its historical
I8z experience and adjusts the same for current observable data. The key inputs into the measuremet of ECL are the prebalility of gefault, loss given default end exposure st
default. These parameters are detwed fram the Company's intemally develaped statlstival mudels and othar iistorical dula, In addition, the Company uses reasanable and
svpporlable informatian on future econcmic conditlons Meluding macroeconomic factors such as services, GOR, recarded unermp loyment, growth rate, current account
balance etc Since incorporating these forward loking information increases the Judgment as Wo how the changos in these macroccanomic Fastar will affect ECL, the

methodulogy and assumptions are reviewed reguiarly.

lii} Reconcitiat ion of Loan espasure and Loan loss allowancs

For Loan exposuie

The below table slgriiies movement of loan exposure i.e outstanding pringipal and accrucd inlerest theresn

Flmandial assats for

Rs.in lakhs)

s B : which eredit risk has | _Lo_ss_allowpn_@
Reconciliatinn oFLoA 1 exposure* TE““-"?ﬂ at12 increesed significant ly [meask red 2 life-
: menih ekpectad - | -+ ot evadie - 14 thing gapecied -
. o L Iosses |5tagel| imPa]rE.a [Stage2) | : Iuss_E_s [5t_agei]_

Lean expoture s an March 31, 2019 {Restatod) 1,66, 75411 3,902.16 3,178,489
Femeasurement of nat exposere [TCOL0.63) [2,311.4E) 725.22
Asseks originated or purchased 1,15,4432.82 1,398.54 753,09
Transferred to 1 3-month BCL E56.10 {B26.50] |31.80
Transfe red to Lifetime ECL nat credit Impaired (2, 74825} 275049 [2.2d
Transferred to Lifetima ECL eredit Impaited (4, 204,36 1634, 28] 4,558.64
Write - offs - - 13,579 84)
Lean exposure on March 31, 2030 [Restaled] 200,036,719 4,224.93 5.943.06
flemeaurement of net exposure {111,619 89} {7,901.73] 15,862,11)
Assets originated ar purchased 1,60,534.35 1/437.99 6,845.50
Transferred to 12-month ECL 72084 (et [10.15)
Transferred ta Lifetime ECL pot credt Impared [12.242.37) 1224807 {260
Transferred to Lifetime ECL cred|t impaired 14,874.72) {1,233.134! i,113.56 |
Write - affs - - 14,474.73)
Loan esposure on March 33, 2021 2,32,899.00 24,066,863 505253

For Loan loss allowanca:

[Rs. I bachs]

_Recongiliatinn of loss allowanca

Financial assets lar.
~whlch oredt risk hasg |-

increased significantly

Loss allowamce
“ineasured ot hife- |

" lime expected
nd.not.cradik. losses 1Sta'gl; 3
. . impaijred |5tage 2) .
Loas allowance on March 31, 2013 {Restated) 0221 2,145.45
Remeasurenent of losy allvwance [B7.50) 2,055,265
Assets eriginated or purchased 118,22 407,06
Transfarred tg 12-month BCL (39.57) (31.89]
Transferred ta Liletime ECL not creditimpalred (1797} 116,45 {2.21]
Transferred to Lifetime £C1, credit Impaired (2360 (69,93 262776
rite - affs . - 13,535.21}
Loss allowance on March 31, 2020 |Restated) 1,345.71 317.58 3.675.81
Remeasurement of foss allowatice {629.25) (57612, [635.54)
£¥iets orlginated or purchased 138079 156194 %.441.52
Translerred Lo 22-tnanth BCL L0 126,23} [&.00)
Ttahsferred to Lifekime ECL not cradlt Inpaired [121.88] 3942 [3.26)
Translerred to Lifckima ECL credit impaired (11853} (150, 23) B3040
Write - offs . - {4,474.73)
Lass allowancs on March 31 2021 1,865.68 260041 5,429,H1
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InCred Financial Senvices Limited

Netes w the Standalon e Financhl Statementys

For inyestmants

[Rs. in takhs}

. Lossallywance
 measured 3t12
. month :g)lpeued .

lossts (staga 1)

Loss alloweance on March 31, 2019 (Reskated)

182
Changes In logs allawanees dua to Assets used aryelessed [1.82)
Loss allowanca on Mareh 31, 2020 (Restated) -
Changes in loss allowances due 1o Assets used or ralaased 13.37
Loss allewanca on March 31 2021 13.17

For loan commitments

[Rs. Irt Jak s}

" month expacted
. dosses (Stage'1)

:Loss alldwange -

“measuréd at12 -

Luss allowance on 31 March 2019 {Restated)

363
Changes indoss allowaneas due to Assets vsed or released 119
Loss allpwan ce on 34 March 2020 {Restated) 482
Lhanges inloss allowances due to Assets vsed or releasad C.18
Lygs allgwance on 31 March 2021 11.00

{oncentration of credit rish

The Campany menltars concentrations of credit tivk by sectar and by gengraphic lacatlan, an analysis of concend rations of credit risk from lazns and advancas, loan

cammitmants, financial grarantees and investment securities Is shawn kelow .

(Rs. In lakhs}
X Loang and advancas 10 custoniers Loan ¢
) T acal - T
Farticulors faat March 31, 2020 Ast March 31, 2020
Marel 31, 2021 {Restatad) march. 31, . (Restated)
Concomration by region
Morth 45,267 38 3011217 93591 121532
South 1,37,616.20 100,092,232 425187 445633
East 6,525,215 0,254,50 49133 57473
et 82,05431 L7297 1,246 12 3,6331.64
Total 2,64,461.73 2,10.153.26 8,975.03 %,850.07

Oftsetting financial assets and financial Hatbililes
There are ng finandial assets and Finaneal Labililivs which are subject to coffsatting, enforceable mastor netting arrangements and similar sgresments.

Assessment of loan modiffeations on credit risk

In respanse ta the scoromic fall-out an account of Covid 19 pandamic, RE| announced resolulion plan framowerk vic circular RBI/2020-211/1 6 COR.No.BF. BC/3,/21.04.048/720 20-
21 dated Gth August 202G - Reselution Framewark for COVID-19welated Stress lor personal loan custorers and estended R8I nolificatlon RBI/2019-20/160
DOR.Hia, 8P.BC.34/21.04.048/2018-20 dated February 11, 2020 via RBI Notification REIA2020-21/17 DOR.No.BP.BC/A,/21.00.048/2020-21 dated August &, 2020 - Micre, Small
and Medium Enterprises (MSWE] sector = Restructuring of Advances far SME Ipans. Loan madifications executed under these sthemes hava not been ciassified as
renegatiated g they ure 3c a resulr of market-wide tustomer relief programme and not borrower specific, We continue ta meonitar tre recouerablliy of loans granted in
atgordanice with these circulars, The on-going and future performanee of such loans remalns an area of uncertalnity as March 31, 2031, The 1elevanl d evails in respect of these
izans have heen presented under note na. 43 and 44,

Impact of COVID-19

{A} In accordance with the Board approved maratorfum policy read wikh the Reserve Bapk of India {RBI} zuidulines dated Karch 27, 2024, April 27, 2020 and fay 24, 1020
TEEFUNE G *TOVID-19 -Regulatary Package’, the Campany had granted maoratorlum wp 1o six months on the payment of ingtallments which became dun bolwaen 1 March,
202¢ and 31 August, 74920 1o all eligible borrowers. This relasation did not automatically triRger o slgnilieant indtease i credit risk, Tne Compary ecotinued o recognize
interast laforme during the moratanum pe fdod and in the absence of other credit rlsk indieators, the granting of a moraladum period did not et in accounts becoming past
due and autematically Lriggoring Stage 2 or Stage 3 classliication eritcria.

The impact af COVID-19 on the global economy and how governments, businesses and coasumors rospond is uncertain. This uncerainty is rekected In the Company's
asgesshient of Impairmant loss alljwante on its loans which are sublect to a nueber of management judgements and estimates. In relation ko COWIS-19, judzerents and
assumptions inchrde the entent and duration of the pandemic, Lhe Impacts of actlans of goyerkments and other awiharities, and the responses of Lusinesses and cohsurmars in
different industries, along with the associated Impact on the global econumy. The Campany has separately [noetporated esiimates, assumptions and judgements specific tn
the impact of the COVID-19 pandem|r and the associated support packages In the messuemert ol impairment loss allawance. Te Company’s Impaitment loss allowance
eslimates are inherently uncertain and, as a result, actual resnlts may differ from these estimatas.

{B} 1 he Honorable Supreme Cuwrl of India through aninterloy ordes had direcied that the accounts winth wery ot deciared nen-periorming asset t August 31, 2020 shall net
be declared non-peforming after dugust 51, 2024, till further ootice. Basis the Inteslm arder, the Company had not cussified any standard aceount as of August 31, 2020 a5
pe¥ Indian Accounting Stamdards, 4% impalred {Stage 2) after August 31, 2020,

The interim order pranved to not declare aceounts as NPA staod vacsted on Margh 23, 2021 vide the judgement of she Hun'kle SC s the malter of Small Scale Industaial
manuiacturers Assaclation vs, UUI & Ors. and other connected matlers. In accordance with the instructions In paragraph 5 of the RBL circular ra. RBIf 202332 /17000,
STR.REC.4/21.04.048/2021-22 dited Aptil 07, 2021 issaed in this cannectlon, the Compary has continued with the J5set chssifitation of boreowe: sccounts as per the ECL
mudel under Ind A3 financial statements far the year ended Margh 31, 2021
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InCred Financial Services Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Stataments
28, Finaneizl risk managemant (zontinued)

L. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value ar future cash Aows of a financial Instrument will fluctiate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed
to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interast-bearlng liahilities and assets. The Company manages its interest rate risk by monitoring the movements in
the market interest rates closely, The Company has Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO} and has empowsred it tu ussess the interest rate «sk run by it and
provide appropriate guidelines to the Treasury to manage the risk. The ALCO reviews the interest rate risk on periodic hasis.

Exposure to Interest rate risk

Company’s interest rate risk arises majorly from borrowings, loans and investments. The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-baarlng flnancial instruments as
reported o the management of the Company is as follows.

[Rs. in lakhs)
Nominal amount
Do - TE AR el
Fartiulars i Niareh31, 2020
) [Restated)
Loans
Fixed rate [pans 1,30,872.88 1,08,509.09
Warighte rate loans 1,32,493.60 99,1581.42
Bank balance ather than tash and tash equlvilents 5B0.06 723.06
Fixed rate investrents in debt securities 8,533.21 -
Tatal 2,72485.76% 2,08,412.57
Deht and Borrawings
Fixed rate Debt and Borrowlngs (94,622.40} [47.445.67)
variable rate Debt and Eorrowings 169,420.64) {75,026.80)
Total [1,64,043.04) {1,22,476.56)

Fair value sensltivity analysls for fixed-rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed-rate flnancal assets or financlal liablliGes at fair value threugh proflt or loss, Therefore, a change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect profic or joss,

Cash flow sensitivity analysls for variablarate Instruments

The sensitivity analyses below have heen determined based on the exposure to Interest rates for assets and labilities at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate
as3ets and liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liahilities/assets outstanding at the end of the reporting period was ouistanding for the whale year
and the rates are reset as per the applicable reset dates,

If interest rtes related ta loans and borrowings had been 100 bps higherf lower and all other variables were held constant, the Campany's Frofit before tax for the year
ended/ Other Equity {pre-tax] as an March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 would increase/ {decrease} by the following amounts!

[Fs. in |akbs)

Particulars . or floss) - | - Equity(bofore oftax) -

" I00 by i | 100 b decfease ;| 100 bpidcease | 100 bp decrease
March 31, 2021
Variable-rate instruments B30.73 {630.73) B30.73 [830.73)
Cash flow sensitivity (nath 630.73 (630.73) 630.73 {620.73)
March 31, 2020 |Restated}
wariable-rate instruments 241,55 (241.55] 241.55 [241.55)
Cash flow sensitivity {nat} 241,55 {241.55) 241,55 {241.55)

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate across all yield rurves. This calculation also assurmes that the change aceurs at the balance
sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt
autstanding dunng the period.

D. Price risk

The Company is expased to price risk arising from investment in mutual funds and classified in the balance sheet at fair value through profit & loss. IFthe NAW of the mutual
fund had been higher/ lower by 1% from market price existing as at March 31, 2021, profit or lass(pre-tax) for the year ended March 31, 2021 would increase/ decrease by MIL
{Previous Year: Rs. 10.03 lakhs } with a corresponding increase/decrease in the Total Equity of the Campany as at March 31, 2021,

The Company |5 currently not exposed 1o any equity price risks arising from equity investments classified in the Balance Sheet at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income since the amount outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is Nil (Previous year: Mil }.
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28, Related party disclosures

Key managerial personnel ["KMP™)

Name of the KMP

| Designation : :

Mr. Bhupinger Singh

M. Vivek Bansal

fir. Gajendra Thakur

hrs. Nikita Hule

Mr. Deepak Narang

hrs, Rupa Rajul Vora

Mr. Debashish Dutta Gupta

Or. Parvinder Singh Pasricha

Mr. Antonius Theadorus Maria Bruijni ncks
Mr. Girlsh Dinanath Nagkarn|

M, Vivek Anand PS

Executive Officer (w.e.f. May 16, 2019)
Whole-time director and Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary (w.e.f. Septamber 1, 2020)

Company Secretary (upto August 31, 2020}

Independent Directar
Independent Directar
Independent Director

Independent Directar {w.e.f March 3, 2020 upto September 3, 2020)

Nominee Director
Nominee Directes
Nominee Director

Foundcr and Director tupto tiay 15, 2019] and Whale-time dnrector and Chilef

Enterprises where key management personnel exarcises control

1. InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited (Formerly known as Proud Securities Private Limited)
2.InCred Wealth Private Limited (Formerly known as InCred Capital Inclusion Advisory Private Limited) (w.e.f. May 20, 201%]
3. InCred Asset Managemeant Private Limited {Formerly known as InCred Capital Investment Advisars and Managers Private Lirnltad)

A. Names of related parties and pature of relatlonshlp

Holding Compan',r

: Countn,r 6f

- Proportion of ownership intérast’

mat |
Mareh 31, 2021

Bee Finance Limited (Mauritius), Holding Co.

59.64%

Mauritius 59.66%
Direct suhsidiaries;
Name of sihsidiaries .. Country of - “ I Principal plage of

-.;.business P
' Theat |, Aeaf
March 31, 2021 | Marchi 3172020
; . I {Restated).
Incred Mdnagement and chhnulogy Servmes Private meted India Ilumbal 100.G0% 100.00%
Bogth Fintech Private Limited India Mumbai 100.00% 100.00%

Assatiste of Booth Fintech Private I.Imlted

Name of subsidiaries

Princrpal place of .
bu siness

Pra porti on of ownership interest

As at

March 31,2021 ‘March

—Asat

m¥alu Technology Services Frivate Limited

India

Wurnbai

40.96%

Transactions with key management personnel
i. Key management personnel cumpensatlon {Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Year.ended March | Year endad March
______ 31,2021 <= 31,2020
: L U “ [Restated)
Employee benefit expenses 575,33 570.22
Directors' sitting fees 13.19 14,55

As the lighilities for gratuity, leave encashment and share based payments are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a whale and hance the
amaunts pertaining to the key management parsonnel are not Included in the above,
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30. Emplayee benefits

1. The Campany has recognised the foifowing amounts in the Profit & Loss Accaunt towards contributions to provident fund and other

funds;

[Rs. in lakhs]
: o Year ended - ’
) Year ended - ERN
Particulars Lk . March 31, 2020
: :Mairch 31,2021 Restated):
Pravident fund 21557 235.43
2. Gratuity
Every employee who will complete flve years or mare of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary {last drawn] for euch
completed year of service, subject te ceiling of INR 20,00,000,
Table showing change n the present value of prolected baneifit obiigation
{Rs.inlakhs)
D Ll As at
bari " Asat R
Partlculars : - March 31, 2020
1
. : March 31,202 ) {Restated]
Change Tn benefit obllgations
Present value of benefit onligation at the beginning of the year §8.80 65.06
Interest cast A4.43 441
Current Service cost 38.82 48,46
Liability Transferred Infacquisition .
Actuarial {Gains] on Obligations - Due ta Change in Demographic Assumpticns - [38.03)
Actuarial [Gainz] on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumpticns 4,98 211
Actuarlal Losses on Cbllgations - Due to Exparience 2132 4,83
Liahility at the end of the year 158,50 §8.90
Amount recognlzed In the Balance Shest {Rs. in takhs)
: E . H T Asat CL BEET i
Particulars - --March 31, 2021 - " March31, 20 20
e e S . (Restatid) - -
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year [158.50} (88.29)
Falr value of plan assets at the end of the year -
Funded Statys {Deficit) [158.50) (B8.89)
et [Liahillty)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (158.50% {88.90)
Exp recognized in the Sta of Profit and Loss
[fis. in lakhs)
~Year ended fear onded
e : N
Particulars : - ..March 31, 2020°
AR trestatea),
Current service cost 382 4345
Net Interest cost 4.45 441
Expenses recagnised 43.31 52.56
Expenses racognized In the Other comprehensive income {0CI)
[Rs. in lakhs}
Year entled
Year ended T el
Particulars i i : IMarch 31, 2020
“harch 31 2001 | P
i : : .. |Restated)-
Actuarizl [Gains) on ohligation for the year 76,29 {29.03)
Met (Income) for the year recognized in GCI 25,29 (29.03)
The actusrial assumptions used to determine benefit oblipations as at Macch 31, 2021 and Mareh 31, 2020 are as fallows:
- . Ye:af:endé:d -
Particulars T EEEEINET S arch 31, 2020 |
_____ I | ety
Discount Rate 4.25% 5.21%
Salary escalation rate 5% for next 1year
and 7% thereafter 7.00%
Eqpected Rate of return an Plan Assats N.A HA
Rate of Employse Turnover 5% 35%
Martality Rate during employment Indian Assured lives | Indian Assured lvas
mortality (2006-08) | rortelity (2006-08)
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The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promation and other relevant

factors

Balance sheet reconciliation [Rs. In lakhs)
o L As at
Asat SR
Partlculars . L March 31,2020
* March 31, 2021, .- "{Restated).. i
Opening net liability 8580 6506
Expenses recaghl?ed 1n Statement of Prafit and Loz 40,54 51.85
Expanises recaghized 1n OC 3615 (29.03]
Net {Asset) Transfer In - -
Net llablkty recognized in the Balance Sheat 155.72 EB.2G
Cash Flow Projection
Meaturity analysis of the benefit payments: from the emplayer
{Rs.in lakhs]
Asat

Parfecutars -

“March3L, 2021 |

Profected Benelits payable In future years from the date of reparting

15t following year 072 (.55
2nd foliowing year 32.14 Q.41
3rd following year 3821 20.52
4tk following year 3363 2407
Sth fallowing year 502 20045
Eum af years & ta 10 46,44 33.584
5um of vears 11 and above 178 :%:17
Sensltlvity analysis {Rs. in lakhs}
- — Asat
Particulars Do ASEF E I\.'lE ich 31, 2020
: . ch e : March 31, 2021 {Regtated) -
Projected benafit obligation o6 current assumptions 15572 B8.89
Delea effect of +1% change in rata of discounting {5.18] (2.56)
[2elca effact of -1% change in rate of discounting 5.50 375
Le'ta effert of +1% changa in rate of salary increase 4.94 3.G62
Delta elfect of -1%4 change in rate of salary increase [4.81) 13.50)
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of emplayee twrnover [&.12) {3.444)
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover 4.21 355

Qualitative disclosures

Gratuity isa defined benefit plan and company is exposad to the Following Risks:

Interest rate rlsle: A fak in the discount rate which |5 lInked to the 5.5, Aate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher

provisian.

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is ealeulated by referance to the future saiasies of members, As suzh, an

increase In the salary of the membears more than assurned level will increase the plan's liahility.

Asset Liabllity Matching Risk: The plan faces the AL risk as to the matching cash flow. Cernpany has to manage pay-out basad oa pay as

woul g4 Rasis from own funds.

Mertality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for fe time and payable till retirement age anly, plan does not have any

longevity risk.

3. Compensated absences

The aciuarially determined liability for campensated absences of accurnulated leaves of the employees of the Company is given balow:

|Farticulars:. ) Asat . Asat :
| ““haarch 31,°2021% < ¥ March 31, 2020
L - Res;ated}
Assumptons:
Ciscount rate MNA v b
Salary escalatien rate NA 7.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover MWa 35.00%

“Note - As per the revised leave policy of the Company, the tecumufated unovaited feawe lopses as ot March 31, 2021, Thus na finbifity has been

determined for the curfant pear.
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31. Share-based payment arrangements
A_Description of share-based paymant arrangements

i. Share option plans {equity-settled)

The Company has Employee Incentive Plant under which optians have been granted to eligible employess to be vested from time to time.

The Company has established share optien plans that entitle the employees of the Company and its subsidiary campanies to purchase the shares of the Company. Under
these plars, holders of the vested options are entitled to purchase shares at the exercise price of the shares determined at the respective date of grant of options.

The key terms and conditions related to the vesting of grants undar these plans are continued employmant with the campany from the date of grant of option tili the date
of vesting [25% each year}; all options are 1o be settled by the delivery of shares.

A. Measurarent of fair values

Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements
The fair vaiue of the employee share options has been measured using Black-Scholes Option pricing model.

The fair value of the pptions and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-settiad share based payment optiens granted during the
year are as follows:

The model inputs for aptions granted during

Fci; the year

- S e io oo b i|ended March 21, erided N .
Particulars / Grant date . S S : 2021 2020 {Restated)
Fair value as on grant date {weighted average) 27,1510 28.64] 27.811028.99
Share price as on grant date 55.25 54,40
Exarcise price 40.00 40.00
Expected volatlity [weighted average volatility) 35% to 40% 35%
Expected life [expected weighted average life] 8.5 years 3.5 years
Risk- free interest rate { based an government bonds) 5.04% to 5.97%] 6.49%to F.O0E%
Method used to determine expected volatility The expected volatility is based on

price wolatility of listed companies
in same induskry.

B, Recancillation of outstanding share options

Set put below is a summary of options granted under the plan;

’ Average exercise i

Partlculars ) . S —

_ | price per optlon : As at March 31,
St R 2021 . ; L :520'20: R

Opening balance 40,00 1,25,05,584 50,E0, 781

Add: Optiens granted during the year 40,00 97,592,875 85,686,300
Less: Opiions exercised during the year 40.00 {91,200} 16,524}
Lass: Optioms lapsed during the year 4000 {41,62,312) [11,54,573)

Dptions outstanding as 3t the year end 40.00 1,80,44,938 1,15,05,5384

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period 8.1 years
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I1. Share option plans {equity-settied) by Bee Finance Limited (Maurltius), Holding Company

On August 1, 2018, Bee Finance Limited (Mauritius), Holding Company of the Company has established share option plans that entitle the employess of the Company
purchase the shares of the Holding Company. Under these plans, holders of the vested options are entitled to purchase shares at the exercise price of the shares
determined at the respective date of grant of options.

The key terms and conditions related to the grants under these plans are continued employment with the company from the date of grant of option till the date of vesting ;
all options are to be settled by the delivery of shares.

a} Share options issued by Bee Finance Umited {Mauritius]

A. Measurement of fair values

The fair value of the employes share options has been measured using Black-Scheles Dption pricing model.

The fair value of the options and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-settled siare based payment optlons granted during the

pravious year are as follows:

The model Inputs for options granted during the year ended March 31, 2021:
Mo fresh grants have been given during the year ended March 31, 2021 and year ended March 31, 2020

B. Recanciliation of outstanding share optisns

Set out below 1s a summary of aptions granted under the plan:

Asatharch 31,2021 .. | As atMarch 31, 2020 {Restated)

. ] ;i:;ver:s:lge exercize| * Mumber of

Particulars T H
price peroption | . .: options ;. |'price peroption | options

Opening balange 48,033.52 248.00 53,031.00 549.00
Add: Optiens granted during the year - - - -
Less: Options lapsed during the year 55,650,73 {7.00) 5, 36375 1301.00}
Options outstanging s at the year end 47,728.27 241.00 48,033.52 248.00
Weighted averapge remaining centractual life of options cutstanding at end of period 11.2 years

€. Expenses arising from share-based payment transactions

Refer Note 23 on employee benefit expense, for share based payment expense charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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32. Lease accounting
The Company has entered Into laasing arrangements for premisas, Right of Use Assets {"ROU") has been included under

‘Property, Plant and Eguiprment’ and Lease Liakility has been included under ‘Other Flnancial Labilities’ In the Balance
Shast.

. Fallowing are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets {ROU) for the year ended March 31, 2021:

{Rs. in lakhs]
. :1 B arcl ’ ’
Particufars L i ] e ""?“IE‘E!:H:h 31’ 2?21- '{Resfat:edjif
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,760.49 530,97
Addition during the year 321.04 1,157.91
Disposals during the year {131.39) -
Depreciation for the year 1237.57] {368.38}
Balance as at the end of the year 1,712.57 1,760.49
ii. The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021:
{Rs. in lakhs}
'::"_AS?'at" P M_arth . 2020 i
Particulars Pl s T Mar:ch -3?;’ 2021 B ?'(Régtét'éﬁi::':'
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,878.95 530.97
Addition during the year - 17605 | - 1,197.91
Finance cost acorued durlng the year 152,16 151.78
Payrment of Lease lishilities made during the year [275.34) {401.71}
Balance as at the end of the year 1,927.82 1,878.95

Thetable below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of March 31, 2021 on an
ili. Undiscounted basis:

{Rs. 1t lakhs)
Caea | RS
- arch "
Particulars . : ) i March 31’ 2'.0.21 {Restated)::
Less than ane year 231.60 424.03
Betwean one and five yaars 1,302.84 1,456.00
Iiore than five years 221.24 713.46
Total 1,755.68 2,594.39
iv. Expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and Lass
{Rs. in lakhs)
s M 'i%'s's:t:zdzﬂ '
; : arch 31,
Particulars - _ ST . | areh31, 2021 |, . -{Restated} . i
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets [Refer Note 8) 237.57 36839
Intarest axpanse on lease liabilities (Refer Note 21) 152.16 18178
Expense relating to shart-teren leases {Refer Mote 24) 275.89 158.41
Expense relating to leases of Iow value assets - -

The Company does not faca a significant liguidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities a5 the current assets are sufficient
to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

v. Amount recognised in the statement of Cash flow
{Rs. In [akhs)

" Asat : CAsat;
e March 31, 2020

Particulars . : Lo R I\'Itar:':'h?’}’ 021\ . “{Restated] -
Total cash outflow for leases 279.34 401,71
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33. Contingent liabilities and commitments

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars. . - .. Asat
R March 31, 2020
G '"'(REStatEd) . .'
Commitments
Undrawn commitied credit lines 8,975.03 9,880.07
Total 8,975.03 9,880.07

The Company does not have any pending litigations and proceedings and hance does not require any provision or
mention under contingent liability.

The Company has a process wherehy pericdically all long-term contracts are assessed for rnaterial foreseeable losses.
At the year end, the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

34. Securitisation

Transfer of financial assets that do not result in derecognition

The Company was party to securitisation transaction involving transfer of pool of unsecured loan receivables
{monthly instalment loans with original maturity upto 3 years)
In these transactions, the assets, interests in the assets, or beneficial interest in the cash flows arising from the

assets, are transferred to a special purpose entity, which then issues pass through certificates ('PTC') to third party
investors.

The Company agreed to provide servicing assistance pursuant to the terms of servicing agreement.

In this securitisation where the Company transfers loans and advances to unconsolidated securitisation vehicle, it
retains the credit risk principally by way of credit enhancements placed with the Special Purpose Vehicle ("SPV'). The
Company does not fransfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of these assets.

Hence, the company continues to recognise the securitised loan pertfolio in its books of accounts.

The following table shows the carrying amount of the securitised assets that have not resulted in derecognition,
together with the associated liabilities :

{Bs. in lakhs)
As at March'31;2021 . . ' o e i |- Loan receivables | o s L
Carrying amount of assets - -
Carrying amount of associated liabilities - -
{Rs. in Jakhs)
— —— T T T T Gredit
As at March 31, 2020 {Restated). " ;- « Loan receivables | LR
_ VTR . T enhancements:
Carrying amount of assets 421.33 137.00
Carrying amount of assoclated liabilities 130.83 -
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InCred Financial Services Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

36, Foreign currency transactions

{Rs. in lakhs)
' " YearEnded . |... :
Particulars ”i'""M:fca;:: :0215: March' 31,2020
. : ST (Restated)
Expenditure in foreign currency
Diractors' sitting faes 2.07 -
Lagal, professional and consultancy charges 27.64 -
Recruitment fees 6.63 3.63
Legal & Technical charges 2.01 2.26
Tatal 38.35 5.89
37. Corporate social responsibility
{Rs.in lakhs)
. e | .7 vearEnded i .
Particutars & :':ahr :?5;021- | “™arch 31,2020
) i |: i ol '{R:éﬁt'atéd]'

Amount required to ke spent as per section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013: 19.9% 16.05
Amountspent during the year
(i} Construction/ acquisition of any asset - -
{ii) On purposes other than {i) above

in cash 20.05 14.93
Yet to be paid in cash* - 2.00
Total 20.05 16.93

* Paid in the month of April, 2020

38. Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises Development

In accordance with the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 ('MSMED Act') the
Company is required to identify the micro, small and medium suppliers and pay them interest an overdue
beyond the specified period irrespective of the terms agreed with the suppliers, Based on the on the
information available with the management, there are no dues cutstanding to micre and small enterprises
covered under the MSMED Act, The Auditors have placed reliance on such information,

39. Share issue expenses

Inaccordance with the provision of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013 the following share issue
expenses have been debited against securities premium account:

(Rs. in Jakhs]

Particulars e i F Year Ended

ey | March 31,2020
Starnp duty - 52.67
Legal and professional charges - 543,10
Total - 565,77
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InCred Financial Services Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

40, Capital Management

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business which
includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to equity holders of
the Company.

As @ NBFC, the RB! requires us to maintain a minimum capital to risk weighted assets ratio ("CRAR"}
consisting of Tier | and Tier Il capital of 15% of our aggregate risk weighted assets. Further, the total of our
Tier Il capital cannot exceed 100% of the Tier | capital at any point of time. The capital management process
of the Company ensures to maintain a healthy CRAR at all the times.

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company
complies with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

(Rs. in fakhs)
e L oiAsat o
Particulars _ Viaich 31, 2021 | Mareh 3%, 2020
: T [ {Restated)

Commeaon Equity Tierl (CET1) capital 1,02,012.53 1,00,841.20
Other Tier 2 capital 1,843.20 1,261.54
Total capital 1,03,855.73 1,02,102.84

Regulatory capital consists of CET 1 capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings
including current year profit and loss, Certaln adjustments are made to Ind AS-based results and reserves.

Refer Note 45 (2] for further detaifs.
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InCeed Fimancial Servicas Limited
Netes to the Standalone Financial Statements

41, Impairment of goadwill

The Baard of Directors of InCred Housing Finance Private Limited {'HFC'), subsidiary of the Company, had approved the HFC's strategic decision to exit
from housing segment on account of various challenges in the affordable hausing segment and inadequate RAC expected inthe business. Considering
the aforementioned strategic declsign, the Company had tested the investmeant for impairment and recognised an impairment loss of Rs, 645.76
lakhs as an exceptional item for the year ended March 31, 2020,

42. Scheme of Amalgamation and arrangemant

The Board of Directars of the Company an February 18, 2020 had approved a Scheme of Amalgamation ["Scheme") of Incred Housing Finance Private
Limited {a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company} with the Company. The Company had filed the scheme with Natlanal Company Law Tribunal
{"NCLT") on October 6, 2020. During the half year ended March 31, 2021, the NCLT, Mumbai bench has approved the Scheme of Amalgamatian
{"scheme") vide order na 'CP(CAA}L/1US4/MB/2020 Connected with CA{CAAN1105/MB /202" 6n March 11, 2021 from the Appointed Date of April 1,

2020, The Scheme will be made effective upon fillng of the certified teue copy of the order with the Reglstrar of Campanies, from the Appointed Date
of April 1, 2020,

On account of NCLT Mumbal Bench being shut (except for urgent hearing matters thraugh video conference w.e.f April 20, 2021 as notified by
circular dated April 18, 2021} in accordance with the government puidelines in view of unprecadented pandemic situation In the country, the certlfied
true copies eould nat be obtained. In view of the same, though the certifled copy of the order is yet to be filed with Registrar of Companies, the
Company has given effect of the merger In lts standalone audited financiat statements for the year endad March 31, 2021,

In accordance with the requirements of Para 9{iii} of Appendix C of Ind AS 103, the standalone financial statements of the Company in respect of the

previous year have been restated from the Appointed Date. Summary of effect of restatement of previgus published numbers are as below:

{A) Surmrmary of Restatad Balanca Sheet:

Effect of
restataimant

ASSETS

Financial assets

] Cash and ¢ash equivalents 3419.63 353,20 3,772.83
{b)  Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalants 735,88 - 735,88
{t]  Loans 2,04,172.53 676.64 2,04,849.17
(dl  Investments 8,695.58 {5,582.07) 3,113.50
(8]  Other finansial assets 1,712.77 [22.58) 1,690.39
Mon-financial assets

{8 Currenttax assets (Net of provision for tax} 78748 74.88 8E2.36
(b} Deferred tax assets (Net of deferred tax liabilities) 1,118.43 {155.2Q) 953.22
{c}  Property, plant and eguipment 2,028.71 48,37 2,975.07
(di Capital wark-in-progress 125.06 - 125.06
(e} Other Intangible assets 295,44 448 299,57
(f) Other non-financiaf assets 1,006.35 3887 1,046.22
Total assets 2,24,597.50 [4,564.21) 2,20,433.67

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Financial liabilities

la} Debt securities 42,105,582 - A2,105.62
{b}  Borrowings (other than debt securities) 74,615,606 14,294.38) 70,321.28
tc]  Other financial kabilities 3,330,413 2,16 3,342.57
Man-financial liakilities
{a}  Provisions 153.90 451 158,41
(bl Other non-financial liabilities 2,052.0% 26.13 207821
Total Equity
{a)  Equity share capital 38,615.30 - 38,615.30
{b]  Other eguity 61,115.93 [303.63) 63.812.28
Total liahilities and equity 2,24,997.80 {4,564.21} 2,20,433.67

i WA

.
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InCred Flnanclat Services Limived
Notes to the Standalane Financial Statements
42. 5¢heme of Amalgamation and arrangement [continved)

{A]) Summary of Restated Statement of Profit and Loss:

[Rs. in lakhs)
& 7
{i} Interest income 20,997.60 105.72 31,103.32
() Feesand commission income 805,82 013 205.95
[ii} Net gain/[loss) on fair value changes 365.98 95,03 465,01
[l Total revenue from operations 32,169.30 204.88 32,374.28
iy Other income 752.25 30.11 782.37
Total Income 32,921.65 234,99 33,156.65
Expenses
il Fimance costs 11,861.40 {255.71) 11,608.69
{i}  Impairment on financlal instruments 5,530.23 10451 5,634.74
(it} Ermployee benefits expenses 5,068.02 17266 9,240.58
i) Depreciation, amertization and impairment 107741 2248 1,0089.809
tvj  Others expanses 4,151.14 120.10 4,271.24
(V) Total expenses 31,688.11 16%.03 21,852.14
Profit before tax and exceptional items 1,232.54 71.96 1,304.52
Exceptional items 51674 29.02 645.76
Profit hefore tax and after exceptional item 615.20 32.94 £658.75
Tax Expense;
{1} Current Tax 508.89 1853 527.43
12} Defarred Tax 1326.79) 182,70 {144.09)
Profit after tax for the period 433.70 {158.23} 275.41
() Other comprehensive mcome
A} {i} tems that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss
{a) Remeasurem ents of the defined benefit plans 2631 273 29.03
{h} Equity instruments through other comprebensive income 002 - 0.02
{il) Incomne tax relating to items that will nat be reclassified to 2.0
profit or loss (0.32) ' {0.32)
Subtatal (A) 26.01 273 28.74
{B} (i) Iterns that will be reclassified to profit or Ioss
{a} Debt instruments through other comprehensive income - - -
(i} Income tax relating ta items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss - -
Subiotal (B B - .
Other cormprehensive income / {foss) 2601 273 28.74
Totat comprehensive income far the period 459.71 {155.57) 304,14
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InCred Financial Services Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

46, Additional disclosures required by Reserve Bank of India {'RBI')

RBI disclesures have been prepared based on indAS financials.

1 Fraud reparted during the year
The Company has reported frauds aggregating Rs. 739 lakhs (previous year: Rs. 72.28 lakhs) based on manage ment reporting to risk

committee and to the REI through prescribed returns FMR-1.

No of
Lases

Amount involved |

(Rs. In [akhs)

731.33

735.00

2 Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)
The ratios calculated in accordance with the guidelines of Reserve Bank of India, are as under:

Ii_’_art;_l:cularis . March31, 2021 U .E;III{'Re's:t.é'téd'] v
il ) 37.20% 46.89%
ii CRAR - Tier | Capital {3) 36.54% 46.31%
iif} CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%} 0.66% 0.58%
iv] Amaount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-li capital - -
vy Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -
Vi) Risk weighted asset 2,79,168.54 2,17,752.82
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InCred Financial Services Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

3 Investments

(Rs. in lakhs}

Particilars

{1) Value of investments
i} Grossvalue of investments
{a) In India 12,683.83 3,113.50
(b} Outside India - -
(i} Provisions for depreciation
{a) In India 13.17 -
{b} Outside India - -
{iii} Net value of investments
{a) In India 12,670.65 3,113.50
{k) Qutside India - -
{2} Movement of provisions held towards depreciation an investments

{i} Opening balance - 1.82
{i} Add : Provisions made during the year 13.17 -
{iil) Less : Write-off/{write-back Jof excess provisions during the year - {1.82}
{iv) Closing balance 1317 -

4 Derivatives

(Rs. in lakhs}
sat 5

Agat

Particulars P e
e March 31, 2021

(i} Transactions/exposure in derivative during the year Wil Nil

(i) Unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the year end Mil Wil
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InCred Financial Services Limited

Notes to the Standafone Financial Statements

5 Disclosures relating to securitisation
{a} The information on securitisation of the Company as an originator in raspect of outstanding amount of securitised assets is given

below:
[Rs. In lakhs}
5 ﬁ:\sat; Asat - -
-3 : - . L
. i " March 31,2020
No. March 31, 202 . .a ¢ i
1 |No of 5P¥s sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions {in Nao. } _ 1
2 |Total amount of securitised assets as per bhooks of the SPVs spansored - 421.00
3 |Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of
Balance Sheet
{a) QOff-Balance Sheet exposures
First ioss - -
Others - -
{b} On-Balance Sheet exposures
First loss - 137.00
Others - 331.589

4 |Amount of axposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR

{a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures
{i) Exposure to own securitisations - -
Flrst loss -
Loss
{ii} Exposure to third party securitisations - -
First loss - -
Others - .

(b

On-Balance Sheet exposures
{i} Exposure 10 own securitisations - -
First loss - -
Others
(ii)Exposure to third party securitisations - -
First loss - -
Qthers - -

{b) Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction - NIL

Ic} The Company has not purchased/sold nan-performing assets for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

243



06'8ZPTTT
D5 EEE'E
LT'658'50'2

5960T°T
68'Z50'sy

95968

PRGRTTE

GEOLELY

9TPEaES

LRI TE

BO'SSE'CE

§9196'8

PTO0E'GL

65 {BE'ET

LZT00'8

£5GTLE
GEL9T8

86'5627°7
1§'€00°T
6T 9ZVLT

Auaana uliziog
glasse Anuasing udisio4
s3uimosjog
SUBWISTAL|

SBIEADY
sysodeg

 SHIUOW 0 o) 4.

SUGUTT Y

Aep T£/0E 01 4

o praadeuewl Al

1iqe]| 1955y

{supe) v -5y

W33 jo wsned Ajanm

OT6YE'29°T
99°0£9'2T
v8'65E°SST

TTIEE
6E'89L'6E

2LLSR'E

7EER6'ET

09'95.'89
080T
69°967'89

B88'9T6R'LS
T08ZLT
LVOBR0F

G8IrS9T
ERELTY
E6'6LRAT

00re95’s
£5°99T
80°£TR9T

PESELT
(A
1990 T

LTBIEFL
vR60T
P69ES0T

el| Aduauind uiasog
51353E AJualind ud|alog
sfuimalrag
BUEIE R
sanUBADY
spsodag

TERE B 6A

SUIOUEE 03 -
g0 yghows 1 s9n0

Ardalich

Acp refogordn

i

awadeusuy 3_,_.32._ uumwr 9

fsupier u sl

£ PUE S1as5% 10 SWa% WIEY3D 0 Ulaized AMIEm U

SJUAWATRLS |2IILEL]] AUO|EPUELS aY) 0] SATON

PaHWIT 59HAISS [RIDUEUL] PaIJU|

244



BIG0T'Z T TI6'E 1eyew |eyded o} aunsodxa jelo]
- - {pasisialun pue pasalsidal Y1ag) spurniy [BJIAE] 3ImMUBA 0} saansadsa iy ()
- - IsBNSs|/SMO) AlnBa peroadxa 1suede s eduron oy sueo| 2Fpug| (na)
- - 1530aN0s3d IS Jo uoedijueE Ul
sauedod meu Jo Alnba 2yl o1 uennguiuod 5 ajoulald Buaauws 1o) SISeq UEI|I U0 JO S8lUNaas
Jaylo 10 sanuaqan/spuog/saleys 10 AJundas oyl sl ede selplodion 0} pauopouRs surocy| ()
- - '518YEU 12U PUE SISOXJHI0S
jo jeyaq ua penss saajuEEnd pue SISYOJGYIOIE Ol 32JUBADE PAlNdAsun pue painisg (A
- - ISHIUEADE JY1 JIACO A|Ny 10U SIOM, SPU) [EMINLL PEUALID AHNbD
10 SHUN/S2INEUSYSP 3|qIUBAUCH SPUOY BIQIBALDI FIEYS UBY Jayo Aunoss Aewud ay)
21aYm ") SPUA) |ENIAW pajuaio Alnba 4o SIUN 10 SINUAGIP 3|JIHBAMIGI 10 5PUOG SIqISAL0D
10 SareyS (o ANSNI3S 21918100 3yl Aq pREnIss 1UAN2 243 o} sesodind meyie fug Jaf seaueapy| (A1)
- - Ajanaas AJzwnd SE UBYE) DB SPUNY [EMInW pojuslia A1nba Jo syun Jo
S2UNJUBNP F|GIMBAUGT 10 SPUCY 3|IIRALAT 10 SBIRYS 2a2um sasodind J3ULD AUE Joj sa3UCADY {u}
- - SPUNY BN pEIULo-Aunba Lo s)un
RUE 'SRIN1U3Q3E GHAAU0D SPUD] qIIdAUAI [54083/504d| Bulpn|oth] S2UEYS U USLIIS2AULIO0Y
S[ENPLAIGY] 01 SIS UESD UG JO SIUNIAS 1BYI0 J0 SAUNUIGIP/SPpUog/saieys 1suiede saouenpy| ()
E8°60T'C ZTTLE'E
ngep 212I0diod Ul PIISAAL ABAISTZX 19k §1 Yys Jo srduod 34} SPURy [EMINL pajuaLg-Aunba
10 saun pue saMuRgap AqIUAAGAT 'SPUOY F|QILERAUD ‘saseys Aunba ur ueunsasu pang| ()
{p=i=sey) 070z TE e TZOZIIE YR . e e . siéjhonieg
RSy L e 1E5g. .

ETEE)

jaEW [B3/dey o) pansodxg  §

05°965°5F

011507

(2% wé: 14

£0'6LT'E

saluedwod)

amueuly Susnoy pue jueg Suishoy |eushen uo saansodxa paseq UOU pue paseq Aunj
aunsodx3 1I8apuy|

312157 |BRY lEDIRLIOD g

|euapizay ‘e

. 53JNsDdXa PISNLUNIas 19410 pue (S3 ) 5a1n3as payleg afeduow i SIUDWLSIAU|

SHLUI| pESEQ PUR-UaL IPNaU) o5|e pRom ainsodxy [-ma 'uoiansuoa

pue juswdopasp ‘uonisinbie pue) ‘SE10y ‘eoeds  asnoyalem Jo [ESNpUIl ‘saswzed
|BIIEWWAY EREUETNW “SEUIPING |EQUSPEal ApLUEE- N ‘sasiwaad peiolawwod esodnd
SN “soeds (1z3a) $BUIp|Ing aoyo) sHe1sS [2al pErniawLoD uo seBedlow Ag pRunaes Juipua
- 91e15] (€aY [EPJIWWa)

PaIUBL 5 1EY] 4O 190U 0K

2y} Aq pardnazo ag w40 51 jeyl Auadesd enuapisas uo sadedlow AQ paunaas Ang Juipua]
- sagedow [euopIsay

ainsodxy 11

{uiz

(e

iz

{pa1elsay) Qzo2 '1E Y 1eN
Wiy

1e 5y

€202 ‘FEyMEN -

sig|nansey

{suye( u sy}

245

1D1I35 )58 |Bas ) aansodNy /2

SJUIWBIRIS (EIOURUL SUO|EPUETS DY} O SBION

PajIWHT S301AJIS [EIIUBLE PAIDU)



WN TV IS0 / TV 34vD Ioded |2IIaWwwc)
wN TV WH3l /T NS182 53131178y FURE WLIS] WOLS
o) -
{3[9®15} ¥ QTW-dd JUVD M“”M“uwﬂqﬁm_Jfﬁhmﬂmw sBINIUAGRQ PIXLTT YSHIEN
{=19E35) ¥ 14D {srnedan} v 34v3 / (AIGesly NSI¥D 3.MUSGRAQ 3| PIAAUDD-UON
{219e15) ¥ JYwd taanedan} v 39w / (219215) ¥ 15143 saloey yueq gy Juat

_ (p=1e3say) 0ZO7 TE UNEW. |
qeisy i : :

T TE U
FUE : :

Jupesyp=rg (Pl

"sanued PAIgla. SY1 IR UCITIESHE] AL 10} SJUDWIRIRIS jEIDUBLILY Sy 01 7 SI0N J343Y
suanaesuel) AUEd pHelEy  (9)

auop rsIolejnEal 2YLo pUB [gy Ag pasodiul sHlEuag Jo Nsopsy  {q)

TORTO ST 5 H0D Pua S97007Td TEATIGEERPL (1 S NID SIUMISIT 341 PafuaLs o0 504 Auodwag
i fo saguinny wayanbay (g8 puD 13quny vouoapuas) aomedion agr “tpuenbasuad PZOT G AUNT wolf el yhm 2OUSIIOYDLY OF 142G urdlf 23D palslstal jo Fbuoys 8] jeanaddo 31150k pasEoa) soy Aupduiog 341 .

L9880 1955y MOEZIIUNDaS 10 Alsiday jeaual

FIEOPED T TE6 THINGERY AN +[NI2) Jaquinu uopesyuap) Melodio)
CEETOET-2 LHOD) Jaguny vonensFsy 19y

“isqunncFay] . L RCEIETT : .

simyenJa) JOIIaS RIBUEN] JBY10 WOl PSUIELto uopensigay (8]

snoaue(3ssil 1

“AjuoyIne "s33Uaa| ‘SIySts Aup Jaac sFieyd Se 4ons sanL N39S AqiBueiul Jo (24338(|00 Jsulede STIURARE PRIMISSUN pajuelE jou sey Auedwo ay)
$3IUBApE PRINIISUN 0T

1199 MW Jameog dnols) £ {(195) MWt Jamaellog 3|3uis o) sl 24nsodxa [etuzpnid sy} papaaia jou sey Adedwia] sy |
349N 241 AQ pepaasxa [199) WW(T Jamaniog €nain f (195) B Jamoenog 3)uls 3o §1e313q  §

PR3] 53TAIRS [EDURLUIY PRITU|

246



InCred Financial Services Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

12
fa)

(b)

(=10]

{e) gii)

Additional disclosures
Provisions and contingencios

{Rs. in lakhs})
Break up‘of 'Provisions.and-contingencies’ shown under the :; .. Yearended . Yearended' |
head expenditure in Profit and Loss account ™ - | March 31,2020 - {: March 31;12020 (Restatéd)
Pravislons for depreciation on investment 13.17 -
Provision towards NPA/ Write off* 6,028, 74 5,066.57
Provision made towards income tax 217.61 383.34
Frovision for Standard Assets** 2,211.80 £65.49
* Prowvision an stege 3 pssets and write off
~t Stoga I ond 2 assets
Draw down from reserves
During the year, the Company has not drawn down any amount from Reserves.
Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs
Cancentration of advances

{Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars = A5 at CAsat,
P s March 31, 2021 March 31,2020 {Réstated)
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 23,622.22 14,882.01
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total
advances of the NBFC 8.97% 7.17%
Concentration of exposures
{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars  Asat _ Asat ¢ ]
' - ‘March 31,2021 | March31, 2020 (Restated)
Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 23,622.22 14,882.01
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest
borrowers/customers to total exposure of the NBFC on
borrowers/customers 8.67% 6.84%
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{c} {ifi) Concentration of NPAs*

= (

Particulars: T A _
e o0 : i : ’ Mﬂl’;l@,‘h;Bl-j.ZUZi:".-";. {Resta.ted]
Total exposure to top four NPA accounts 1,514.17 1,288.45

* NPA accounts refer to stoge 3 assets

{g) {iv) Sector-wise NPAs*

ntage of NPAS ta Total i
.o 1 Sector i
SENO.| i R igeetprt e ey March 31, 2020, .-
T S : : : ; Ui a L iHestated) . i
1 |Agriculture & allied activities - -
2 MSWME 4.23% 6.28%
3  |Corporate borrowers - -
4 |Services 2.45% 1.54%
5 |Unsecured personal ipans 3.50% 2.11%
6 |Autoloans 7.02% 2.30%
F?  |Other personal loans 20.47% 2.08%

* NPA ocrounts refer 1a stpge 3 assets

13  Mowvement of NPAs*

{Rs. in lakhs}
Particulars . }.Yearended March'31,} Year ended March'31,
Hars - - . LT : 2021 ¢ = | 2000 (Restated)
{i) |Net NPAsto net advances (%) 1.71% 1.36%
{ii) |Movement of NPAs [Gross)
{a) Opening halance 5,943.06 3,17B.63
{b} Additions during the year 10,792.43 6,533.25
{c) Reductiens during the year 7,698.82 3,768.82
{d) Closing halance 9,036.67 5,943.06
{itf) |Movement of Net NPAs
{a} Opening balance 2,783.21 1,227.35
{b) Additiens during the year 5,283.97 3,467.75
{c) Reductions during the year 3,642.64 1,911.89
{d]) Closing balance 4,424.54 2,783.21
(v} Movement of provisions for NPAs {excluding provisions on standard
assets**}
{a) Opening balance 3,159.85 1,951.28
{b) Provisions made during the year 5,508.45 3,065.50
{c) Write-off of excess provisions 4,056.18 1,856.93
{d} Closing kalance 4,612.12 3,159.85

¥ NPA aecounts refer to stuge 3 ossets
** Standord ossets refer to stoge 1 and Stoge 2 ossets os defined under IND-AS

248



InCred Financial Services Limited

14 Disclosure of Complaints

Customer Complaints

R B S < Welended | 1 Yearended
SroNo]- e Particulars L I P SRS : Mar;h 1,2020:
e C : o < Mareh 31’ 2021 . tﬁestate&]
{ay [No.of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 1 4
{b) |No. of complaints received during the year 858 514
{c) |No. of complaints redressed during the year 855 517
{d} [Mo. of complaints pending at the end of the year 4 1

15 Ovarseas Assets [For those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries Abroad)
The Company does not have any joint ventures or subsidiaries abroad, hence not applicable

16 In accordance with Master Direction Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 Master Direction
- Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Impartant Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016, the Company has not lent against gold jewellery during the year ended 31 March 2021 {31 March 2020:NIL)
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Schaduls to the Balance Shaet of @ Non-Deposittaking N king Flnanclal G ¥ {35 requived in terms of paragraph 18 of Master Direction - Non-Banking

Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Resorva Bank) Directlons, 2016)

Schedule to the Balance Sheet

17 Loans & Advances avafied by the Nan-Banking Financial company inelusive of intarest acrrued thereon but not pald: 1l dn lakhs)
S O - . ChAsar i F Asar: !

SeNag T e ey o Partigulars . Mercha, 2021 . | ... - Msrch 31, 2020 [Resteted) .
Amaunt Amaunt
{1 |LimbiNtles side : outstanding Amount overdug]  euistanding Amount everdue
Loans and edvances availed by the NMBFCS inelusive of intarest accrued
thereon but not paid:
{a) bebentures*

= Secured EER YR

- Unsecured -
() DeFertad Credits - - - -
{c) Term Loans 78,803.02 - 65,B45.02 -
{d] Inter-carporate foans and barrowl ng Tenz41 - - -
{e) Commergial Paper 1,959.72 - - -
() Publc Dmposits - -
{g} Other Loans 5,456.93 - 476,26 -

a2, 115,62 -

*ather than falling, within the meaning of public deposits

12]  |Assets Bide :

Break-up of loans and advancas Including bllls recehvables:
fal Setured 1,36,765,41 174378 160,562 T3 T41.92
{b) Unsecure 1,27.,659.32 570784 1,0%,525.53 294611

=

Break up of Leased Assels and skock on hira and other assets (ounting towards ascet financing attivities

{Rs. i laklrs]
Asat -
March 31, 2020
~{Restated} ©

5r. Mo, :
March 31,2023, ;.

(b |iease avsets including lease rentals under sundry debrors:
{a}Finendal lease .
(bl Operating [ease - -
li]  [Stock on hire inclwding hire charges undwsr wundry debtors:
1a) Assets an hire - -
{h] Repossessed fggets - -
{iij | Othar loars counling bowards AFC artivitles:
{a) Loans where assets have bren jeposiussed - -
{b] Loans othet Lhan (a) above - -

-

9 Break-up of investmants:

[Rs. in lakhs)

“Warch 31,2020

Stoio. .. . Particulars
S . - = (Hestated)

“March3t, 2021

Current [nvestments :
1|Queoted:
{i) Snares = [a) Equlty . -
{i] Preferance - -
[ii} Debenture And hands - -
{lie) smits of mutual furds - 3.003.81
[iv] Government sequritios - -
[w)Others - -
Unguoted:

~

[i] Shutes: {a] Equity - -
b} Preforence - -

[1l} Debentures and bBentds 5,652.06 _

[i13) Unrlks of muteal funds -

[iv] Gowermment secunties R

[v] Others 2,170.55 -

Non- current nvestments:
Quoted:
[i] shares ; (2] Equity - B
{b) Preference . -
[ii} Debentures and bonds - -
[iii] Units of rautial funds
[wr] Boveirmment securitles
[w] Others
FLinguoked:
[i] Shares: {a] Equity 3,811.22 2,100,684
{b} Preference - -
[ti) pebentures and bonds - -
[iii) Units of rutuat funcls - -
fiv] Govermment securities - B
[v] Others

"
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20 Botrowar group-wise dassification of assats, financed as [n [3) and {4) above :

{1z, in lakhs}

£r. No. . . Category

Iurch 31, 2021

Amaunt [Net of provlsions}

Secured thsecarad Total
1. Related Fartles
L2] Subsicllaries - . -
[b| Companiles in the same group . - .
[ch Other related partles - - -
2. Other than related parties 1,23 514.07 1,21,845.76 2,55,359.84
Tatal 1,33.514.07 1.21,835.76 2,55,359.81

[s. In lakhs)

$r, No.

. March 33, 2020
{Restated)
Amount {Net of provigions)
Setured Unsecured Tolal
1. Related Partles
[a] Subsidiaries - -
(b} Companiles in the same group - -
(&) Cther related partles - - .
2. Other than related parties 99, 208.70 1,05,640.47 2,00,849.17
Total 99,208, 7 1,05,640.47 2,04845.17

21 Investor group-wise classification of all [nvestments [eyreent and long term) in shares and securities {poth guoted and ppgquoted):

[Rs. in lukhs)

5F. Mo Catesor\!

Warch 31 2021

L. BsRL L L
Maich 31,2020 {Rastated)

Market Yalue /| Book Value (Nel| MarkoeValue s
Break up or fair af Proujslons) Break ypar fair

Gook Yalus {Hat
of Provisinns)

value or NAY value or HAY
1. Felated Parties
{a) Subsichanes aedae 391122 2,108,549 2,109,069
{b)] Companies in the samea proug - - - -
{c] Otker related partoss - - - -
2, Qther than related parties 877261 3,758.44 100551 1,003,821
Tatal 12,6B3.83 1267066 311350 3,113.50

m
)

Other Information

[&s. in lakhs)

Sr. N, . . Particulars

apat

hsall X -
March 31, zoz¢ |} Maich 3172029

Gross non-performing assets™

|a] Felated parties

|k £3ther than rafaed parties

[ii] | Met nen-performing assets®

|| Related partics

() Dther than related partles

glil] | Bssets acouired in satlsFaction of debt

8,135,467 5.943.06

442454 2,763.71

4P e o refer b 3foge 3 msaets
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Disclosure as per

As required in RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4th November, 2019 - Liquidity
Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies

23 Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty

{Rs. in lakhs)

Sr. No. | Numl;_gr___g_f_g_ugn{ffc:lant Amount.. . | % of Total Deposits | % of Totalfiabilities
I :Counterpartles. Lo Ty [ R R TR R ‘ B
1 20 1,43,447.99 MNA 82.18%

24 Top 20 large deposits : NA

25 Top 10 Borrowings

{Rs. in fakhs}

S.No.| .. _i‘lhmi:mnt?E
1 15,947.87 11.93%
2 14,655.49 8.76%
3 14,536.03 8.69%
4 14,333.36 8.61%
5 9.905.24 5.92%
5] 9,450.24 5.65%
7 8,941.82 5.35%
8 8,213.51 4.91%
9 6,199.78 3.71%
10 ,033.80 3.01%

26 Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
{Rs. in lakhs)

5r. No. I\_.Iarﬁe.l:lf Instrument - | A_mdi_mt % of Total liabilities -
1 Term Loan 78,803.02 45.14%
2 |Non Convertible Debentures ’ 55,137.72 31.59%
3 Market Linked Debentures 18,689.37 10.71%
4 Inter Corporate borrowings 7,202.41 4.13%
5 Cash Credit / WCDL 5,456.52 3.13%
5] Commercial paper 1,95%.72 1.12%

27 Stock Ratios

Sr.No.| ' Name of Instrument al public funds.| % of Total Liabllities | % of Total Assets ™

a Commercial paper 1.17% 1.12% 0.70%
Non-caonvertible debentures
h {Original maturity of less than 1

year) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
C Other short term liabilities 60.72% 58, 18% 36.38%
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28, Disclosure as required in paragraph 10 of RBI/2015-20/220 DOR.No.BP.BC.63,/21.04.048/2019-20 dated 17th April 2020 -COVID19

Regulatory Package - Asset Classification and Provisioning

{Rs. in lakhs)

articulars. - -

- |(Total POS 35 0 325t

Amount

" March 2021}

noint |
{Total 205.asion 315t |
‘ March 2020) [Restated)

Respective amounts in 3VA/everdue categories, where the moratorium/deferment

was axtended in terms of paragraph 2 and 3;* 69,052.68 57,830.55
Respactive amount where asset classification banefits is extended INIL* 1,061.91
Provisions made during the Q4FY2020 and Q1FY2021 in terms of paragraph 5*** MA NA
Provisions adjusted dusing the respective accounting perlods against slippages and the

residual provisions in terrns of paragraph & NIL MIE

*Outstending as on 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 respectively on gccount of oli cases in SMA/ averdue categories where moratorium benefit was

extended by the Company up to 31 August 2020

**There are ML accounts where asset classification Benefit is extencled tilf 31 March 2021, Post the moratorfum period, the movement of aging has

been of oCtuos.

***The Compony, being NBFC, has complied with ind-AS and guidelines duly opproved by the Board for recognition of the impoirments. The Company
has nege adeguate provisian on impairment foss affowance os per ECL mode! for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021
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28, Restructuzing of Loans

{Rs. In lakhs)
] ‘Typs of Restrocturing T .
A, - Asset Classification Lol
‘No. Standard 23
1| Restructucad Accounts as on April 1, 2020 [Restated) MNo. of bermowers 14 2 16
Amouni putstanding 127.85 11,74 129,69
Provisign theregn 1216 7.53 15.79
2| Fresh Restructuring during the year o, of borrowers 129 3,817 3,946
Amgunt outstanding 044992 1,050.21 i0,500.13
Provision therepn 60t 46 433,08 1,084.54
3jUpgradations to restructured standard category durlng the Fyv* No. of borrowers 2 ] &
Arngunt gutstanding 7421 20,79 45.00
Provision thergon 10.00 13,88 23.28
Rastructured Standard Advances which cease to attract higher provisioning
and/ or additional risk weight at the end of the Fy and hence need not be
4 kshown as restructured standard advances at the beginning of the next FY  |No, of barrowers - - -
Amount guistanding - - -
Provision thereon - - -
5 | Bown gradations of restructured acgounts during the FY Wo. of horrowers -3 3 -
Amount gutstanding (29.64) 20,64 -
Provision theraon (3.1 2.10 -
6| Write-offs of restructured accounts during the FY Ne. of borrowers - - -
Amount outstanding - -
Provision thereon - -
7|Restruckured Accounts as on March 31, 221 Mo, of borrowers 138 3,815 3,934
Amount oukstanding 9474.01 1.070.7% 10,544.80
Provision therean 603.52 475.93 1,080.45
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29, Restructuring of Loans [Continued)

{Rs. in lakhs}
. Type of Restructuring S PEReE .
- ‘Agset Classification .
Na.

' Details

No. of borrowers - . R . -
Amount outstanding - - - - -
Pravision theroan

1| Restruetured Atcounts as on April 1, 2018 |Restated)]

2|Fresh Restructuring durlng the year No. of borrowers 14,00 2.00 - - 16,00
Amount cutstanding 15356 1205 - - 165.61
Provision thereon 14.33 7.83 - . 2216

3| Upgradations to restructured standard categary during the FY*" No. of borrowers - . - - -
Amount outstanding 2561 0.22 - - 25.84
Pravision thereon 117 0.2% - - 238

Restructured Standard Advances which cease to attract higher provisioning
and/ or additianal risk weight at the end of the FY and hence need not be

shown as restructured standard atvances at tha heginning of the next FY | No. of borrowers - - - - -
Armount outstanding - - - . -

Provlsion thereon - B - . B
Down gradations of restructured accounts during the FY No. of barrowers - - - -

o

un

Armount oulstanding - B - - -
Provision thereon - - - - -
Write-offs of restructured accounts during the FY No. of borrowers - - - - -

o

Amount cutskanding . - - -
Provision thereon . - -
Restructured Accaunts as on March 31, 2020 {Restated) Wg. of horrowers 14,00 2.00 - - 16.00
Amount autstanding 12755 11.74 - - 138.68
Prowvisign thersan 12.16 .63 - - 19.79
*includes eeeounts closed for rep ts received from restrectured gocounts diriag te correat jear ond pravious yesr

-

There are no cases restructured on aocount of COR mechonrism or SME debi restrituring In the current yeer ond previvus peor.

The Company hos availed esset clossification benefit upderRB! Mobification ABI/2018 19/100 DAR Ne 80.BC 18723 0A.008/3018-18 ditend Jartuary 1, 2013 extended wir RO nalifization RBL2009-20/ 160
OOR. No, BRBC 3477 1,04 D4E/201 520 doted February 11, 2020 extendad further via RET Motificotion RBL/I020-21/17 DUR.No, BP. B4/ T1.04.098/2020-21 doted August &, 2020 - Micro, Sl and
Medivm Enterprises {MSE] sector — Restrueturing of ditvorces during FY 2020-21 and FY 2018-2G,

The chove disclnsure does not inclirde ossets where resoletion plan is implomenled breder RE) cvegler RB/2020-21,06 DOH_Ne B, 50/ 3/21.64.008/2020.21 dated bth fugust T025 - Resolutivn
Fromewark for COUID-19-reloted Stress.
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30. bistlosure pursuant to RE} notification 'REL/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC),CC.PD.No.103/22.10,106/2015-20" dated March 13, 2020 - Implementation

of Indian Accounting Standards

[Rs. in lakhs)
: : A h Agsét i i| Loss Allowances | < 7
Asset Classification as per RBI No classification {Provisions) as_ required asper
ended 31st March 202 “|as‘per Ind &S required under. | R I
Lo s g9 "ind;As:lué" L IF__lfCIf nqrrl:is
: - : .. PIERNE L -
{1} (2} (3} (4 {6) {73={4}-{5})
Performing Assets
Stage 1 2,29,929.27 1.865.31 2,28,062.95 922.15 944.16
Standard Stage 2 24,329.43 2.008.79 22,320.84 1,260.74 748.05
Subtatal 2,54,258.7] 387510 2,50,383.60 2,182.89 169221
Non-Performing Assets [NPA)
Subsiandard Stage 3 10,206.03 5,229.79 4.876.24 829.55 4,400,243
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 - - 328.05 {328.05}
110 3 years Stage 3 - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - -
Subtotal for doubtful - 328.05 [318.05)
Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtatal for MPA 10,206.03 5,425,79 4.576.24 1,157.61 4,072.18
Stagel 8,975.03 11.00 8,964.03 - 11.ad
Other iterns such as guarantees, loan Stage 2 - N N N
commitments, etc, which are in the scope of Ind
AS 109 but not covered under current Incormne
Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning {IRACP) norms Stage 3 - - -
Subtotal B,975.03 11.00 §,964.03 - 11.00
Stage 1 £,38,904.30 1,877.31 2.37.026.,59 822,15 955.10
Total Stage 2 24,329.43 2,008.79 22,320.649 1,260.74 JA8.05
Stage 3 10,206.03 5,229.7% 4,976.24 1,157.61 4,072.18
Total 2,73 433.76 9,115.39 2,64,323.87 2.340.50 5,775.39
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30. Kszlosure pursvant to RBL notification 'R81/2019-20/170 DOR {NBFC).CC.PD.No.103/22.10.106/201%-20° dated March 13, 2020 - implementation

of Indian Accounting Standards [Continued)

{Rs. in lakhs)
. . e e . -Diffarefice
Asset Classiflcatlon as per R&I:Norms fo yé 5s Carryin| N A!k?wances_ RS .| Provisions sanind AS
‘agagd - | A ioiin de pe | AP COvisions} as | - NetCarrying v a6 ¢
- anded 31t man:h.zozn Amolnt as per required unde AmBunt- requu:red gs pg? : 109 prov lgun_s_
lHestfnted} .. Ind AS ¥ indAs108’ | | IRACP norms | q_nd IRACP
. : . n MR L e iDEIME:
{1} {2} {3} 4 {ai={3-{4 {6} {7]={a}-{a}
Pedorming Assets
Stage 1 1,99,017.36 1,345,71 1,57,671.65 00,45 555.25
Standard Stage 2 4,355.24 317.58 403768 67,78 245.80
Subtatal 2,03,372.60 1,663.29 201,700,333 a25&.24 805.05
Non-Performing Assats [NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 6,815 .66 3,675.8], 3,139.85 1,202.20 2473.61
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 B - - 45,35 {4535}
1tp3 years Stape 3 - - - - “
IMare than 3 years Stage 3 - - - -
Subtotal far doubtful - - - 45.35 [15.35)
Lass Stage3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NFA 5,815.66 3,675.81 3,128.85 124755 2,428.26
Stage 1 8,880.07 4.82 9.875.45 - 4,82
Other iterns such as guarantees, loan Stage 2 " n - N N
commitments, etc, wiich are in the scope of Ind
AS 109 but not covered under current Income
Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning {IRACF) norms Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal O.880.07 4.82 0,870.25 - 4,82
Stage 1 2,058,897.43 1,350.53 2,07,546.90 Fol.46 560.07
Total Stage 2 4,355.24 a17.58 4,037.68 62.78 249,80
Stage 3 6,815.60 3,675.81 3,135.85 1,247,535 2A28.26
Total 2,20,168.33 5,343.92 2,14,724.43 2,105.79 3,238.13
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47. Previous year's figures are regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to correspond with the current year's classiflcation / disclosure.

A8. There have been no significant events after the reporting date that require disclosure in thess financial statements.

Az per our report of even date
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BSR&Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Telephone: +81 22 8257 1000
14th Floor, Central Wing B Wing and Merih C Wing, Fax: +01 22 6257 1010
Mesco IT Park 4, Nesco Canter,
Western Express Highway, Goragaon {East),
Mumbai - 400 063

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
InCred Financial Services Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Incred Financial Services Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) and its associate, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate
as at 31 March 2021, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes
in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its associate in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consclidated
financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

As more fully described in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, the extent to which the
COVID-19 pandemic will have impact on the Group’s financial performance is dependent on future
developments, which are highly uncertain.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter,

Nogistorod Dilica

B 5 A & Co. (o parinorship firm wath Rnunslrauuq Mo BAG1223) corvariod into B 5 A& Co. LLP 1d1h B al B Wi d Morth © Wing, Masea IT Park 4, N
i Limitod Liability P weith LLF Rog To, AAR-A181) with oflaet fiarm Detehor 14, 2013 E‘u:'llm.omr;::aiw;:‘aﬂm1my. Gorwn-rz"a lE::;ii.ll MUI'I';:II i 4:;333
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Description of Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment of loans and advances to customers
Charge: INR 8,868.63 Lakhs for year ended 31 March 2021
Provision: INR 9,104.89 Lakhs at 31 March 2021

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note | (C)(h) to the Consolidated Financial Statements: Impairment of Financial Assets
" "Nate 1(B) fe) ta the Consolidated Financial Statements: Significant Accounting Polfeies- use of estimates and fudgements
"and "Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements: Loans™

Subjective estimate

Recognition and measurement of impairment of loans
and
Jjudgement,

Under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, allowance for
loan losses is determined using expected credit loss
(ECL) model, The Group’s impairment allowance is
derived from estimates including the historical default
and loss ratios, The estimation of impairment loss
allowance on financial instruments involves significant
judgement and estimates, The key areas where we
identified greater levels of management judgement and
therefore increased levels of audit focus
Company's estimation of ECLs are;

advances involve significant  management

in the

Data inputs - The application of ECL model
requires several data inputs. This increases the risk
that the data that has been used to derive
assumptions in the model, which are used for ECL
calculations, may not be complete and accurale

Madel estimations - [Inherently judgmental
maodels are used to esuimate ECL which involves
determining Probabilities of Default (“PD"), Loss
Given Default (“LGD"), and Exposures at Default
(“EAD"). The PD and the LGD are the key drivers
of estimation complexity in the ECL and as a
result are  considered the most  significant
Judgmental aspect of the Group's modelling
approach.

Our key audit procedures included:

Performed end to end process walkthroughs to identify the
key systems, applications and controls used in the
impairment loss allowance processes, We tested the
relevant manual (including spreadsheet controls), general
IT and application controls over key sysiems used in the
impairment loss allowance process.

Assessed the design and implementation of controls in
respect of the Group's impairment allowance process such
as the timely recognition of impairment loss, the
completeness and accuracy of reports used in the
impairment allowance process and management review
processes over the calculation of impairment allowance
and the related disclosures on credit risk management,

Evaluating management’s controls aver collation of
relevant information used for determining estimates for
management overlays on account of COVID-19,

Testing of review controls over measurement of
impairment allowances and disclosures in  financial
statements,

Testing manapgement’s controls over authorisation and
calculation of post model adjustments and management
overlays.

Evaluated whether the methodology applied by the Group
is compliant with the requirements of the relevant
accounting standards and confirmed that the calculations
are performed in  accordance with the approved
methodology, including checking mathematical accuracy
of the workings. o
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Description of Key Audit Matter (Continued)

Key audit matter

How

the matter was addressed in our audit

s Economic scenarios — Ind AS 109 requires the
Group to measure ECLS on an unbiased forward-
looking basis reflecting a range of future economic
conditions, Significant management judgement is
applied in determining the economic scenarios used
and the probability weights applied to them
cspecially when considering the current uncertain
cconomic environment arising from COVID-19.

«  Qualitative adjustments — In the absence of time
tested historical data for certain loan products,
management has used surrogate industry estimates
or derived inpuis using regulatory guidance.
Management believes that these estimales though
address known impairment model limitations or
emerging trends as well as risks not captured by
models. These adjustments are inherently uncertain
and significant management judgement is involved
in estimating these amounis especially in relation to
economic uncertainty as a result of COVID-19,

=  Restructuring = the Holding Company has
restructured loans in the current year on account of
COVID-19 related regulatory measures. The
Holding Company has undertaken restructuring
under the RBI circular for restructuring dated 6
August 2020 for retail as well as SME portfolio. In
addition, Holding Company has given relief to its
eligible borrowers using the ECLGS scheme. This
has resulted in increased management estimation
over determination of losses for such restructured
loans

Impact of COVID =19

On 11 March 2020 the World Health Organisation
declared the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak to
be a pandemic,

We have identified the impact and uncertainty related to
the COVID-19 pandemic as a key element and
consideration for recognition and measurement of
impairment on loans. The underlying forccasts and
assumptions used in the estimates of impairment loss
allowance are subject to uncertaintics which are often
outside the control of the Group. The extent to which the
COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Group's current
estimate of impairment loss allowances 15 dependent on
future developments, which are highly uncertain at this
point, Given the size of loan portfolio relative to the
balance sheet and the impact of impairment allowance on
the financial statements, we have considered this as a key
audit matter.

Divelosures

The disclosures regarding the Group's application of Ind
AS 109 are key to explaining the key judgements and
material inputs to the Ind AS 109 ECL results,

Sample testing over key inputs, data and assumplions
impacting ECL calculations to assess the completeness,
accuracy and relevance of data and reasonableness of
periods considered, economic forecasts, weights, and
model assumptions applied,

Testing the ‘Governance Framework’ over validation,
implementation and model monitoring in line with the
RBI guidance.

Test of details over calculation of impairment allowance
for assessing the completeness, accuracy and relevance of
data.

Model calculations testing through re-performance where
possible.

The appropriateness of management’s judgments was also
independently reconsidered in respect of calculation
methodologies, sepmentation, economic factors, the
period of historical loss rates used and the valuation of
recovery assels and collateral.

Assessed whether the disclosures on key judgements,
assumptions and quantitative data with respect to
impairment loss allowance in the financial statements are
appropriale and sufficient.

Involvement of specialists - we invelved financial risk
madelling specialists for the following:

Evaluating the appropriateness of the Group’s Ind AS 109
impairment methodologies and reasonablencss of
assumptions used (including management overlays).

The reasonableness of the Group's considerations of the
impact of the current economic environment due to
COVID-19 on the impairment loss allowance
determination.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Description of Key Audit Matter (Continued)

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Information technology Our audit procedures to assess the IT system access management

IT systems and contrals included the following;
The Group’s key financial accounting and reporting General IT controls / user access management
processes are highly dependent on the avtomated | = We tested a sample of key controls operating over the

controls in information systems, such that there exists a information technology in relation to financial accounting
risk that gaps in the IT control environment could result and reporting systems, including system access and system
in the financial accounting and reporting records being change management, program development and computer
materially misstated. Amongst its multiple IT systems, operations.

we SCPF‘-“‘-‘ in Syslems that are key for the overall | < we tested the design and operating effectiveness of key
financial reporting. controls over user access management which includes
We have identified ‘Information Technology systems® granting access right, new user creation, removal of user
a5 a key audit matter because of the high level of rights and preventative controls designed to enforce
automation, large transaction volume, the increasing segregation of duties.

challenge to protect the Group's syslems, controls over | < For a selected group of key controls over financial and
data integrity and the nisks associated with remote reporting system, we independently performed procedures
access of key applications by a large population of to determine that these controls remained unchanged during
emplayees at the year end. the year or were changed following the standard change
We have focused on user access management, change management process.

management,  segregation  of  duties,  system | . Evaluating the design, implementation and operating
reconciliation controls and system application controls effecliveness of the significant accounts-related [T
over key financial accounting and reporting systems, automated controls which are relevant ta the accuracy of

system caleulation, completeness and accuracy of the report
generated from the system and the consistency of data
transmission.

«  Other arcas that were independently assessed included
password policies, system configurations, system interface
controls, controls over changes to applications and
databases and that busimess users, developers and
production support did not have access to change
applications, the operating system or databases in the
production environment,

: Performed inquiry for data security conirols in the context
of a large population of staff working from remote location
at the year end.

= Performed inquiry of enhanced cyber security controls put
in place in the context of a cyber security incident taken
place at the Group

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the holding Company’s annual report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The annual report is expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, re
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

4
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including
its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in I[ndia, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective
Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of each company. and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the

Management and Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of
each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate is
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on the intermal financial controls with reference to thgfconsolidated
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls based on our afidlit
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Confinued)

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
apinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate to cease Lo
continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates and joint ventures and joint operations to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Qur responsibilities in this
regard are further described in para (a) of the section titled ‘Other Matters’ in this audit report.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the advegse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of lich communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable,
that:

A

a)

b)

¢)

d)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31 March 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and written representations received from the directors of the Subsidiary
Companies and associate company as on 31 March 2021, none of the directors of the Group
companies and its associate incorporated in India are disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate company
incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
Il of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

L.

1.

iv.

The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its consolidated
financial statements Refer Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2021 Refer note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies and associate
company incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2021.

The disclosures in the consolidated financial statements regarding holdings as well as
dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December
2016 have not been made in the financial statements since they do not pertain e
financial year ended 31 March 2021.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)
C.  With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and as per the special
resolution passed by the Holding Company at its extra ordinary general meetings held on 26
March 2019 and 31 May 2019 the managerial remuneration paid/provided for by the Holding
Company during the current year is in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
pravisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has
not prescribed other details under Section 197 (16) of the Act which are required to be commented
upon by us, The provisions of section 197(16) are not applicable to the subsidiary companies and
associate of the Holding company.

For BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Pranav Gune

Partner
Mumbai Membership No. 121058
23 July 2021 UDIN: 21121058AAAABZ1066
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ report on the consolidated
financial statements of InCred Financial Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2021

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph (A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

. Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of InCred Financial Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the
Holding Company™) and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which
are its subsidiary companies as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary
companies, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such
internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafier referred to as “the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls pvith
reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such copftr

operated effectively in all material respects.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ report on the consolidated
financial statements of InCred Financial Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2021 (Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (Confinued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consoclidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation

of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods

are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial

statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBS R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 101248 W/W-100022

Pranav Gune

Partner
Mumbai Membership No. 121058
23 July 2021 UDIN: 21121058AAAABZ1066
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The accompa nylng notes farm an Integ ral part of the consolidated financial statements
As por our report of even date
For BS RE Co, LLP

Chartered Accountants
rm Reqistration Ne.: 101 24BW,/W-100022

(1]
— @%’
Partner

Marnbarship Wa: 121058

Place: Mumbal
Date: 23 July 2021

(B, Inv lakha)
oo o A TS T e
ey ol NI wtaren31, 2021 mMarch 31, 2020
ASSETS
{1} Financial agsets
{a) Cash and cashequivalents F] 145792 384363
{b} Bank balance ather than eash and cash vguivalunts 3 5BE.AG 735 BB
(g] Recalvables
(1] Trade recaivables 4 .76 14101
{11} Other racsivables 5 - 475
(d  Loans [ 255,050 84 2,04 49,17
{2}  Investments 7 12457.43 5,051.3%
{fl  Other financial assets ] 1,852 40 773,70
12} Non-dfinanclal assets
{n) Current 1ax assets {net) T3 128251
() Deferred tax assets (nat) 9 185739 1,118.43
(c}  Property, plant and equipment 10 3,440,594 3,145.43
(d) Caphal wark-in-progress 14.49 125.06
(e] Goodwlili BALGY 652,65
(}  Other intangible assots 11 547.43 308.00
(g} Othar nen-linancial assets 12 1LABLTH 117801
Total assets 2,80,453.29 2,23,209.94
LABILITIES AND EQUITY
UABILITIES
(1} Financial Habifities
(a) Payables
{IjTrade payaliles
(1) total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(K} total oulstanding ducs of credtors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 3
(1) ©her payables
{i} 1otal outstending dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
{il} total autsianding dues af ereditors ather than miers entarprisies and o5 5245 5801
srmall anterpiises
(b} Debt sacurnitics 14 7382702 42,105.62
{c)  Borrowings (other than debt socuritios) 15 93,021 85 70,321.28
[d}  Other financial liabilitas 16 4,272.37 3,345,325
(2] Non-financial labifities
{a) Provishons 17 169.90 158.41
{b) Deferred tax liabilities (ret) q 232,27 1,068,68
{e]  ©thar nen-financial liabilties 18 2,905.65 210109
ECHULITY
{al Equity share eapizal 19{A) 18,624.42 38,615.30
(b] Other equity 19{nj 66, 77678 65,435.10
Total liabilities and equity 2,80,453.29 2,23,305.94
Sgnificant accounting policies and key accounting stimates and |udgements 1

For and on bahall of the Board of Birecton of
InCred Financlal Services Umited
CIN: U74829MH1 291 PLC340312

B Jin- U"Lf'ﬁ/f

Bhupinder Singh Vivek BITRT
Wisale Time Direetor and CEC) Whale Time Director and CFO
DIN: 07342318 DIN; D7AI5456

(Gf

Gajendra Thakur
Company Secrelany

Maco: Mumbai
Date: 23 July 2021
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i o WETITE s AT T 3 x :
Wrhd | LT S e NotaMNa |
Aevenue From spertisng
{l] Intgrest income a0 1731345 3109106
(i} Fees and comimisiion ncome 21 557,16 805,95
liii} et {lasiligain on fai value changes a 268,91 A65.01
1] Total revenus from opera thons In, 540,52 A2,062.32
[} Cther income 3 [IBE] 04_14
T Total ke (1 + 1) 19,247 65 0, 2l B
Cxpensos
i) Finance eodts 14 15,275,714 1160570
[l Impairment on finanal insirements ] B AGRE] 5,634.50
il Employee benefits enpinaes 2 9,449 51 9,174.99
il Deprcclation and amoftiatian BE11 1,005,949 1,1G00E
|v] Dikars espenses Fid 190645 A4,a0% 49
(1¥] Total eapenied 18.545.61 3106136
IV} Profit before ahiare of besi of Assaclates {il] - IV} 703,04 1,205 30
(i} Share of loss of associates Jap57 491 5%
il} Prof belore w (V- Vi) 152.47 FIATE
[WIl] Taw Experine: b
1) Current Tam 1,135.14 527.4%
2] Dalerred Tax (199,21 {2.98)
1K) Profit for the year (Vil- VN 217.04 516.31 |
(%] Diher comprehensive Income
4] {i) itema that wllinet be reclasiilsd ta prafit ar ko
{a} Remmasuremaenis of the defnod benafii plans {26.29) 29,61
() Equity instruments thswugh other comprehensive income . 0.0z
(1} tcorme tax reliting 1o liema that will not be reclassified to profii or los [ 10,231
Subtotal [A) n.!.E'J') 8.3
0] leama thiat il be reclass(lied 1o proti or los
|l Bebt instrum ots thraugh ather compreheniive incame 11897 .
{10 Incarme tas relating to ems that will not be reclassiled to profTt o loss {2995} -
Subtetsl (B) Ba.02 O
Other eampreheniive Income [4 4 B) &3.05 0,73
(®1) Total compreherive lncome dor the year [+ ¥) mean 545,04
Frofll i anributable 1:
Sharchokers of the Group 217.04 51631
Man eontrafing intareats B :
Othat Comprahonshe incoma (s attributable to;
Shareholdery of the Group 9,03 873
Hon comtrollng interests . B
Total Comprehanive incame b attr buiabla to
Sharehalders of the Group 266,39 545.04
Han contialing interess . .
(%0} Earnings per equily share ia
Basic (Re) 006 0,14
Dilured (k] .06 0.14
Slgnificant I licles and key il i and judi 1

The accom panying notes Tarm an integral part of the consakidated finandial statements
As per our report ol even dale

Forfl SA& Co. LLP
Chartered Accauntants

Firrm Roglrati < 1 AR W-100023

Pranay Gu
Parines
Membership Mo 121058

Place Mumbal
Date: 23 July 2071

Far and on behalf of the Baard af Mrecian of

i [t

CiM: UFa899MHLIS1PLERA0312

(pre

Bhupindar Singh Vivek Banzal
wWhole Time Dirictar ond CEC Wihale Time Directod oo CFO
DR 07342318 DIN: OTRARASE
.
GaTeriddoa Thakuf
Company Secretary
Place: Mumbal

Date: 33 Juby 2021
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InCred Financial Services Limited

fnm!ﬂﬂld Finaneial Statemants
£ lidatael Eash Flow &

Tor the ywar ended March 51, 3021

Interest expense on lease labillly

{fs. in lakhs]
Year endad Year anded
fentain March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Cash flow lrom operating activities
Prafit / {Loss) before tax 35247 FI4T5
Adjustiments to reconclls net profiil 1o net cash generated Trom J (used in) sperating activities
Deprecation and amaniation 1,015.98 L160.68
Net (gain) en fair value changes {268.91) {#65.01))
Interest Income {37.722.95) [3L.0Tm.05H
Finance Cast 15,275.74 1145391
Imnpairmenn leds &,868.63 563450
Pravislon Tor amployment banelits {20.98) 3zza
Share based espense 1.027.90 SH3ER
Adveribement expente L0 Inal
Share in logs of atisciate 34957 A91.55

156.73 15178

139,20 {80071
mfz:v.wﬂ {11,691 83)|

Reversal of rent expense
|Eml{ni cash flaw before working eapital changes
‘Warklng capital adjustments

{Incraase) / decreass in ofher trade recekeablos 1315 {127.83)
| Decrenie i abher rocetvables 475 5075
{Increase) In Loans {59, 183.00) [36.672.02)
{Increase) In other fnanclal assets {1,078, 78} (206.92)
{Increase) In other non financlal assets {182 a9 [EELESY]
{Deerease) in trade payables . {12.33)
{Decrease) / Increase in other payables {34.90) [284.99)
L I other fimancial labilities 1,109.40 167713
Incraate in provicions 1379 o.ne
i i athed nan 1 | lakifit 04,56 #3.71
Cash generated from operatl (69,836.00) {46,570.98)
Interest received on loans 35,290.79 IL012EE
Interest paid an borrowings and delst {17505 83) |15,2157.80)
I taxoi pald (567.01) [#12.13)
Net ensh [used in) operating athvitl [52,691.05) un,umnq
Cash Mow from investing activities
Purchase ol property, plant and equipment {959.91) {2,754.37)
Purchae of intangibles assets (590,93 {167.53)
Capital work in progress 110.57 {125.06)
(Payment mada) /Amaunt recaived for sequisition of subsidiary . [1,050.25)
Purchase of lnveitments [1,56,146.89) {1,11,881.19)
| PFreceods from sale of Investmants 148,749,108 11205178
investment in term deposits 1,08, 146,56 16,814, 28}
PFroceeds from maturity of term depasis {1,05,002.11) 16,332.53
Interest on investments 2,061.09 40.33
Interast an tenm deposite 166,27 3876
Mot caih [used in] mvasting activith [6,866.1 [4,269.47)
Cash flow fram Nnancing acthitles
Issue of equity shares (including securities premium) 36.A8 42,715,950
Sacurity Issue expenses . (595,97
Praceeds from issue of debt securill 62,173.39 12,511.61
Praceedi from berrowings (ather than debt secufilies) ¥2,265.00 55,338.32
Redemption of debl socurities (2804483 [17.500.00]
Redemption of borrawings [other than debi securities) (4l 868.11] |57,065.32)
Met cash generated lrom finsncing activitles 57,761.73 | 35,405.54
Net inerease [ (decrease) In cash and cash e quivalants (1,395 .439) 1,507.64
af the year i 34 (623,30}
ey B4 34

Motes:
(a] The above Cash Flow Siatement has been prepared under ihe 'Indirect Method' as set out In the Indlan Accounting Standard {ind AS 7} - Statement of Cash Flow

(k) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of

Partieulars As at Asat
: March 31, 3031 March 31, 2020

Cash on hand 204 811
Dalances with banks

= Current Atcounts 1,455.08 3,83552
Cash and cash alents (Hafer nete 3) 1,457.93 1A43.63
Less: Bank overdraf and eash eredit (Refer note 15) {1,969.07)| (2,96235)
Add: impalrment loss allowance on deposits with bank - 296 |
Cash and cazh equivalents n cash low vtatement Isn.ﬁ-ll BiA,34

Az per our report of even date

FerBER& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountans
Firm Reglstration Hg,: 1012w W-100012

Pranav Gune
Partrer
Membership No; 121058

Plage: Mumbai
Data: 23 July 2021

Far and an behall &f 1he Baard of Directors of
InCred Financlsl Services Limited

CIN: UZARTIMH IS9P LCIA0I12
M

M
Bhuplnder Singh

Whole Time Director and CED
OIN: 07342318

et

ajendra Thakur
Compary Secretary

Plaga: Mumbal
Date: 23 July 2021
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InCred Financial Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Cash and cash equivalents

(Rs. In lakhs]

As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cash on hand 284 8.11
Balances with banks 1,455.08 3,835.52
Tatal 1,457.92 3,843.63
3. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars L Azt
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Fixed deposit with bank®* 588.46 738.B4
Allowance for impairment loss - {2.96)
Total 588.46 735.88
* Earmarked for borrewings, bank guorentee and securilised transaction.
4. Trade Receivables
{Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
il March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Unsecured, considered good - 141.67
Unsecured, considered doubtful 8.87 5.09
Allowance for impairment loss (5.1} (5.75)
Total 3.76 141.01
5. Other Receivables
(Rs. in lakhs}
Particulars A Reat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Unsecured, considered good - 4.75
Allowance for impairment loss .
Total - 4.75
6. Loans
{Rs. in lakhs)
5 Ao at T
Particulars March 31, 2021
(e’ 2RI Amortised cost sed cos
(A) (i) Term loans 2,46,338.20 1,98,335.79
{ii) Loans repayable on demand 18,126.53 11,852.47
Total - Gross 2,64,464.73 2,10,188.26
Less: Impairment |oss allowance (9,104.89) (5,339.09)
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance {A) 2,55,359.84 2,04,849.17
(8} (i) Secured by tangible assets 93,266.30 84,293.71
(i) Secured by intangible assets 37,712.37 16,269.02
(i) Covered by Bank / Government guarantees 5,786.74 -
{lil) Unsecured 1,27,699.32 1,09,625.53
Total - Gross 2,64,464.73 2,10,188.26
Less: Impairment loss allowance (9,104.89) {5,339.09)
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance (B) 2,55,359.84 2,04,849.17
(C) Loansinindia
(i) Public sectors - -
(il) Others 1,64,464.73 2,10,188.26
Total - Gross 2,64,464.73 2,10,188.26
Less: Impairment loss allowance {9,104.89) (5,339.09)
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance (C) 2,55,359.84 2,04,849.17
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InCred Financial Services Limited

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. Deferred tax

The major components of Deferred Tax Assets ('DTA’) / Deferred Tax Liabilities ('DTL') arising on account of timing differences for

the year ended March 31, 2021:

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at Recognised in Recognised Asat

ganiculars April 1, 2020 | profit and loss in OCI March 31, 2021
Deferred tax assets
Impairment on financial assets 1,193.91 890.67 2,084 58
Impairment on investments 25.17 {2.39) - 2278
Retirement benefit plans 37.68 (4.41) 6.62 39.89
Lease expense 29.82 24.36 54.18
Disallowance of expenses - 119.56 119.56
Difference between book value of fixed assets as per the
books of accounts and income tax 30.49 40.96 - 71.45
Total (A) 1,317.07 1,068.75 6.62 2,392.44
Deferred tax liabilities
Net fair value gain on investment designated through
FVOC] S - (29.96) (29.96)
EIR impact on financial instruments (352.63) (152.18) - (504.81)
Fair value of investments in associate {920.25) 87.99 - (832.26)
Others 4.56 (4.84) - (0.28)
Total (B) (1,268.32) (69.03) (29.96) (1,367.31)
Deferred tax assets (net) (A+B) * 48.75 999.72 {23.34) 1,025.12

* Movement in deferred tax has been disclosed on @ net basis (DTA - OTL) Le. (Rs 1,857.39 lakhs - R5.860.21 lakhs)
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InCred Financial Services Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. Other intangible assets

(Rs. in lakhs)
Computer
Particulars
software
Year ended March 31, 2020
At cost at the beginning of the year 580.57
Additions during the year 107.54
Gross carrying value as March 31, 2020 (A) 688.11
Accumulated amartisation:
Accumulated amortisation at the beginning of the year 137.97
Amartisation for the year 242,14
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2020 (B) 380.11
Met carrying value as at March 31, 2020 (A-B) 308.00
Year ended March 31, 2021
At cost at the beginning of the year 688.11
Additions during the year 590.92
Gross carrying value as March 31, 2021 {A) 1,279.03
Accumulated amortisation:
Accumulated amaortisation at the beginning of the year 380.11
Amortisation for the year 351.49
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2021 (B) 731.60
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2021 (A-B) 547.43
12. Other non-financial assets
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Prepaid expenses 366.01 254.71
Advances recoverable in kind 201.49 77.67
Advance to employee 0.10 -
Goods and Service Tax ('GST') receivable 915.18 837.64
T0S receivable = 8.29
Tatal 1,482.78 1,178.31
13, Other Payables
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particul
b e March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Principal 23.13 58.11
- Interest due = -
Total 23.13 58.11
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InCred Financlal Services Limited

Woted to the Consolldated finandal $
14, Debit Securities
iy, in lakhs)
Asat A at
Particulars March 31, 2001 March 31, 1020
Amortised cost | Amortised cost
Debentures 73.427.02 42,1085.62
Tatal 73,027.02 42,108.62
Drebis secunities in India T3,827.02 42,105.62
Dbl securities outside india = -
Tatal 73.827.02 42,105,632 |
Tarms and conditions iy, hh‘!_lll'l'
As at Asat
of 3
st mlwm Manie sfasoursy. el Chparin: Maturitydate | pareh 31, 2021 | maaeeh 33, 2020
1]500, 0% Secured Mated Listed Recesmable MNor Pust date - Saptamber 10, 2019; Pul price - R, 11,865,337 sach 20tope19) . 06890
(Camaprtible- Dabantures: ol R, 3000,000 ich Call datu - Septembar 20, 2019; Call price - Rs. 11,65,327 aach
(callable) 1. Han- Comvedtible Debentiies Maturity dato - lune 22, 2020: Maturity price - Ris, 1280582 sach
2[1500, 10.75% Secwred Rated Usted Redeemable w:‘;':'.:::::“:::u harge | F0eeAMEIe 3t par o the end of 825 days from the date of alloimen Funa0) 2 15,047.83
Nan-Comvertible Debeniures of fly, 10,00,000 aach) i tha Faesivabies of the group o ICqu pan to be pakd annually,
3[780, 10.25% Secured Mated Usted Redeemable ;;;::::’:::"ml : ! l::ut:ﬂ Redeemabie at par at the end of 109G days fram the date of allotment. 26-Apr-21 521351 5,200,686
Nen-Corweddibla Debantures af Ay 10,00,000 cach Receivablos®) crealed e Coupon to bo pald annually,
ik o of | t i
4|1000, 950 Sacured Rated Listed Redremable| :J'::d:im roen e favgurof |NEGE8MBBIY a1 par at the end of 545 days from 1 date of afatment 10.Dec21 16,687.30 :
:f::;&mﬂihh Debentures al INR 10,600,000 Ve Dbl Trtan: Coupan ta be pald annuslly and &n msturity,
== 2. Additiorall " o
5[509,9.75% Sacurad Rated Listnd Redanmable fion| 00 m::m:h‘:" " [Redeamable at par ot the and of 1095 days fram the date of alloimant, Tk 526556
Conveitible Debantures of INA 10,00,000 sach dvbanturs haldars ovir the Coupan Lo be paid annually.
ietentified i ble praperty
611000, 9.75% Secured Rated Lisied Redeemable|nwnod by the group. Redesmable at par a1 the end of 1095 days lrom the date of allotment. 26June2d 10,649.39 -
HNon-Corvartible Dobontures of INR 10,00,000) Coupon to ba pald anrwally,
each
7500, 9.50% Secured Rated Lited Redeamabla Non| Mon- Canvenible Debeniures Aedeamable a1 par at the end of 546 days ram the date o alletment. 2B-Jan-12 5,050.83 -
Convartible Debentures of INR 10,00,000 each issued by iha group are secured by | Coupon to be paid seml-annually.
way af & firgl parl- pasiu chaege
5[500, 9.40% Secured Rated Litad fedoamsble Hon] <" 1€ 1ecelvables of he 040 18 (e gocrie o par a ¥ha end o543 days from the date of llatmrent 10Fab12 s :
Convertible Debentures of INA 10,00000 each  |'P Txient they mact thastipulated | 1o be paid annually aind en maturity.
security covar ["Hypothecated
" liley™) craated i i ia
9750, 9.400% Socured Rated Listed Redeemable Nonl g daed of hypetheeation Redeemable at par at the end of 549 days from the date of allotment, 14-Mar-22 TAILGT =
(Converiible Dabaniures of INR 10,00,000 vach executed by the group in favour of (Coupon ta be pald seml-annually.
the Debanture Trites.
10250, 9.10% Secured Raied Listed Bedeemable Mo nmﬁﬂ' Convertibde Debemures issued |Redeemable at par at the end of 547 days from tha date of allotment. [TRTE] 1,502.24 -
Canvarble Dobent ures of INR 10,00,000 each by the group are secured by way of |Coupon to b pald quartary.
& st sxelushve eharge sver the =
spaciic book-debis / loan
reesiva blod af the grsup
{"Hypothacatod Recelvables”)
ernitad puriuant ta thi daed of
lr_»mumuﬁun executed by the
11156, Secured Nedearnable Principal Protected - FRedeemable with agieed coupon at the end of 451 days fram the dite of| 18:dane21 . 1,621.98
Parket Linked Nen-Conven ible Debenturg of (N allgtmant
| 10.00.000 |
131|192, Socured Redeamable Principal Projected - |Redeamabls with agroed coupon at the end of 428 days from the date off 0-Feb-21 - 1,562,73
Pt rhet Linked Nan-Comvertible Debenture of [N allalmaen,
10,800,000 Nan- Canvertibls Markil- Linked
13,151\. Secured Redeomable Principal Prateeted - | Debentures issued by the group are [Redesmablo with agreed coupean a1 the end of 730 dayi Irom tha dato o 30-Zep-31 1,B849.04 1,653.72
Plarket Linked MNon-Conmvertible Debenture of INR |secuied by way of 4 st parl padsi | sllofment.
charge over tha bles of the
13348, Secured Redeematle Principal Protesied - |@reup ta the extont they meot the | Redeemabile with agreed eaupon a1 the end of 732 days from the date a 1d-Dee-21 3,8977.66 355181
Markat Linked Nan-Convartible Debentura of NI [stipulated security cover | allatent,
| 16,00,000 {“Hypothecatad Recalvables®]
14502, Secured Redeemable Principsl Protectod - [crealed puriuant 1e the deed ol Redeamable with agreed coupon at the end of 729 days lrom the date o 18-Fab-22 5,610,14 3,582.71
Market Linked Nen-Canvertible Debentura of INR |hvpothocadlon axeculed by tha allatmant,
| [10.00000 group in Tavaur of the Deb
15 (550, Secured Redeamable Principal Protectad - | Trustes, Madeamable with agread coupon at ihe end of 911 day fram the date of| o3-par-23 g, 74454 -
Market Linked NenConvertible Debanture of INR i
10,500,000
16(150, Secured Redeamalbls Piincipal Frolosted - | Redawmable with agrded esupan at tha ond of 910 divi frém the date ol| 3-Jul-23 148792 -
Market Linked Mon-Convertible Debenture of INR allotment,
1000 D00
Tatal 73.827.0% AZI0E6Z
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15. Barrewings (other than debt securitle)

(R, in lakhs)
Az ot As ot
Partieulars Mareh 31, 2071 March 31, 2020
Amcrtied sont Amortied cost |
{a) Term loans
0] from banks 6248465 S069991
(i) frstn ather pa i 16,300.37 1514511
() Inter corporate borrowings from related parties 560104
[} Inter earperate borawing fram ather partici 1,000.2%
1] Loans rapayable on demand .
1] from banks 5456,92 476,26
(i} tram othar paties - -
&) Commaerclal Fapers 1959.72 .
93,021.85 10,2128
Borrowings in Indls 93,021.85 032138
Barrawings sutside indis
$1,021.0% J0,311.28
Termi and conditians {Rs. b Bakhs)
Particulars Nature of security Terms of repayment il Axat
1y March 11, 2021 March 11, 2020
Bormowings
a) Banks Term Loan From Banks sre secured by way of afLosns are repayable in monihly or quarierly installments) &2 464 65 50,640,491
first pail pasiu charge ever all the recohvablus;jwith ariginal tenure ranging fram 3 1o 60 months.
bath present and future of the Company; to{Rate of Interost (A0} ranging from 6,22% p.a. 1a 1L
the extent ihey meet the requivement al each|p.a
lender's aiiet covar stipulatad in rovpect of the WT
ding facliitles.
) Cihers Term Loan from Oihers ate secuied by way ol|Loans sre repayable in manthly & quarterky Insta limants) 14,338 57 15,014.20
& Mfirst par] pawu charge over all the|with ariginal tenure ranging fram 23 fo 3% months
receivables; both present and futwee of the|RONranging from 10.35% poa. to 12.45% p.a.
Company, 1o the extent they mest the
requirement of each lender's sssel covir)
siipulated In respeer of the oulstanding|
Pawn  Through Cartificate Borrcwings  are|Dased on the waterfall mechanim, the proceeds reslived| . 130,83
sz by way of dharge on fued deposits and|lram e recelvabiles shall be utilied for the pipsie &
recabvabile fram thy paol prin ciaal, repayment of barrawings,
Laans fepayilde on demind Weorking Caplial Demand Loans ("WEDL") and[WE DL and CC facillios are repayable on domand. Interesi SASG.97 A4 476,26
(WEDL and €C) Carh Credit {*CC7) fram Ranks are secured by|is payable an s maonthly bass,
way af & first parl passu eharge aver all the|RO| ranging from B.10% p.a.vo 11008 p.a,
wvablay; both present and future of the
Company; te the estent they maeet Ihe
requirement of each lender's miiol cever
itipiilated In fespact of the oulsianding
Inter cor porate borrawings from relsted part ies Unsecured The tenure s & months. ntarest |5 payable an a manthly 5§01 -
{Refer Note 32] bash,
Intar car porate barrawings from other pariies Unsecuresd The tenure is 1 monath, inierest is payable an maturity, 100035
| O - 10.00% o
(Commarcial Papar Unsacured hsued at & discownt and redeemable at par. The tenure is 195872 E
364 daya with esupen of 9,000 p.a.
[Tosal 5308155 703553 |
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16. Other financial liabilities

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars asat Azt
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Lease liability (Refer Note 35) 1,957.64 1,878.95
Advances from customers 2,273.22 1,432.21
Expense payable 23.43 18.97
Security deposits 10.57 10.57
Employee expenses payable 5.74 0.69
Others 1.67 3.96
Total 4,272.27 3,345.35
17. Provisions
(Rs. in lakhs)
_ As at As at
Pactictlars March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 33) 158.90 153.59
Expected credit loss provision on undrawn commitments 11.00 4.82
Total 169.90 158.41
18. Other non-financial liabilities
(Rs. in lakhs)
: As at As at
fitticulars March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Provision for expenses 2,389.07 1,402.69
Statutory dues payable 516.58 698.40
Total 2,905.65 2,101.09
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15 (A). Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised Capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,00,00,00,000 2,00,000.00 2,00,00,00,000 2,00,000.00
Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 8,00,00,000 8,000.00 8,00,00,000 8,000.00
Total 2,08,00,00,000 2,08,000.00 2,08,00,00,000 2,08,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 30,77,27,936 30,772.79 30,76,36,727 30,763.67
Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 7,85,16,289 7,851.63 7,85,16,289 7,851.63
Total 38,62,44,225 38,624.42 38,61,53,016 38,615.30

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The group has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share fully paid up. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
The group declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend if and when proposed by the Board of Directors will be subject to the approval of

shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the group, the halders of the equity shares will be entitled to recelve remaining assets of the group, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehalders,

Terms/rights attached to preference shares

Each Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Share ("CCCPS") shall be a 0.001% coupon preference share dencminated in Indian Rupees and shall be
fully and cumulatively compulsorily convertible within a period of 19 years fram the date of their issue.

Each holder of CCCPS shall have such rights to attend and vote at general meetings as prescribed by the Companies Act and other applicable laws from time to
time and as specified under the Articles of Assaciation. Further to the aforesaid, for the purpose of voting, the holder of the CCCPS shall be deemed to have

converted all its CCCPS into Equity Shares and shall have voting rights on every resalution placed before the group on the basis of its shareholding in the group
on as "as converted” basis or Fully Diluted Basis, i.e., assuming the conversian of all the CCCPS held by it into Equity Shares.

Equity shares held by helding company

Out of the equity shares issued by the group, shares held by its holding group :

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Name of shareholder = L
; No. of shares held Amount No. of shares held Amount
Bee finance Limited (Mauritius), the holding eompany 23,03,73,125 23,037.31 23,03,73,125 23,037.31
Total 23,03,73,125 23,037.31 23,03,73,125 23,037.31
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Details of shareholder(s) holding more than 5% of shares in the group :

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

B No. of shares held % Holding No. of shares held % Holding
Bee finance Limited (Mauritius), the holding company 23,03,73,125 59.64% 23,03,73,125 59.66%
Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij voor
Ontwikkelingslanden N.V. 4,50,36,765 11.66% 4,50,36,765 11.66%
Oaks Asset Management Private Limited (formerly
known as "Alpha Capital Advisors Private Limited A/C
PMS") 2,61,31,606 6.77% 2,63,04,302 6.81%
Investcorp Private Equity Fund |l (formerly known as ;
IDFC Private Equity IV) 1,42,41,228 3.69% 2,87,82,735 7.45%
Total 31,57,82,724 81.76% 33,04,96,927 85.59%
Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period for a period of five years immediately preceding
During the current financial year the group has issued Nil equity shares for consideration other than cash (Previous year: Nil).
Equity shares reconciliation
BT As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Number Amount Number Amount

At the beginning of the year 30,76,36,727 30,763.67 30,76,29,303 30,762.93

d | ring th r
Shares issued during the year -
ESOP exercised during the year 91,209 8,12 7,424 0.74
Bought during the year - -
At the end of the year 30,77,27,936 30,772.79 30,76,36,727 30,763.67
* includes shares issued on conversion of aptionally convertible debentures .
Preference shares reconciliation

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Number Amount Number Amount

At the beginning of the year 7,85,16,289 7,851.63 - -
Add: Issued during the year
Shares issued during the period - B 7,85,16,289 7,851.63
Bought during the period - - - -
At the end of the year 7,85,16,289 7,851.63 7,85,16,289 7,851.63
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20. Interest income

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

On financial assets measured at amortised cost:

-Interest on loans 35,496.09 31,012.88
-Interest income from investments 523.59 40,22
-Interest on deposits with banks 166.27 38.26
On Financial Assets measured at fair value through Other

Comprehensive Income:

-Interest income from investments 1,537.50

Total 37,723.45 31,091.36

Note - No revenue fram transactions with a single custemer amounted te 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended

31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

21. Fees and commission income

(Rs. in lakhs)
Pariilars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Other fees and charges 501.16 749.95
Service fees (Refer Note 32 for related party transaction) 56.00 56.00
Total 557.16 805.95
22. Net (loss)/ gain on fair value changes
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particilacs Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Net (loss)/ gain on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
- Investments 268.91 465.01
Total 268,91 465.01
Fair value changes:
- Realised 268.91 461.20
- Unrealised - 3.81
23. Other income
(Rs. in lakhs)
o Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Service fee income 401.46 628.56
Marketing fees 195.00 255.00
Other income 101.67 20.78
Total 698.13 904.34
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24, Finance costs

(Rs. in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars On financial liabilities | On financial liabilities
measured at amortised | measured at amortised
cost cost
(i) Interest an borrowings 8,258.40 7,463.01
{ii) Discount on Commercial Paper 124.74 93.85
(iii) Interest on Debentures 6,459.73 3,801.05
(iv) Interest on Inter Corporate Debts ("ICD") 195.52 66.18
{v] Liability towards operating lease (Refer Note 35) 156.73 151.78
{vi) Other finance cost 40.62 29.83
Total 15,275.74 11,605.70
25. Impairment on financial instruments
(Rs. in lakhs)
Partictlars Year ended Year ended
' March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
On Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
- Loans 8,872.60 5,628.25
- Investments 0.05 (1.82)
- Other financial assets (4.11) 8.07
Total 8,868.63 5,634.50
26. Employee benefits expenses
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Salaries and wages 8,072.43 8,085.02
Contribution to provident and other funds 227.81 260.68
Share based payment to employees 1,027.90 583.88
staff welfare expenses 141.65 203.86
Retirement Benefit expenses (20.98) 32.28
Others (0.00) 9.27
Total 9,448.81 9,174.99
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27. Other expenses

(Rs. in lakhs)
p s Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rent (Refer Note 35) 275.89 275.89
Communication cost 78.64 94.04
Travelling and conveyance 129.70 344.41
Legal, professional and consultancy charges 434,57 350.68
IT expenses 672.66 657.32
Repairs and maintenance 20.62 2501
Rating fees 104.25 47.84
Printing and stationary 5.76 30.08
Bank charges 32.23 28.57
Bureau charges 168.68 290.44
Directors’ sitting fees 13.19 14.55
Payment to auditors 94,93 80.12
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion expenses 389.18 477.95
Operation Cost 164.05 458,25
Office Expense 320.31 315.23
Postage & courier charges 12.07 62.45
Interest on statutory dues 14.41 5.53
Recruitment fees 32.51 126.88
Stamp Duty & Filing fees 10.64 86.65
Legal & Technical charges 25.64 88.74
Corporate Social responsibility (Refer Note 40) 20.05 16.93
Provision for diminution in the value of investment - -
Cost of collection £51.93 553.48
Miscellaneous expenses 64.54 54.45
Total 3,936.45 4,485.49
Payment to the auditors: {Rs. in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended

farticyiar: March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Auditor's remuneration

- Audit fees 84.12 71.85
In other capacity

- Certification services 10.81 8.17

- Taxation - -
Out of pocket expenses - -
Total 94.93 80.12
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28, Tax expense

(a} Amounts recognised in profit and loss

[Rs. in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
ety March 31, 2021 | Mareh 31,2020
Current tax expense
Cutrent year 1,135.14 527.43
Deferred tax expense
Origination and raversal of temporary differences (999.71) (329.99)
Tax expense for the year 135.43 197.44
(b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
[Rs, in lakhz)
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2021 Year ended March 31, 2020
Before tax Tax (expense) Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense) Net of tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a} Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (asset) (26.29) 6.62 {19.67) z9.03 {6.62) 2241
{b) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 0.0z 6.30 6,32
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) Debt instruments through other comprehensive income 11897 (29.95) §9.03 = - -
Total 92,68 (23.33) 69.35 29.05 (0.32) 28.73
(d} Reconciliation of effective tax rate
[Rs. in lakhs)
IPmlculars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Profit before tax as per Statement of profit and loss 35247 713.75
Statutory tax rate 25,17% 2517%
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate BB.72 179.65
Tax effect of:
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable
income 198.43 36.66
Effect of Income exempt from income tax {42.11) {104.73)
Impact of ehange in tax rate - (56.41)
Tax pertaining to prior year (96.38) 2.15
Other adjustments (13.23) 147
Impact of MAT reversal - 132.65
Tax impact of lower tax rate for subsidiaries - -
Total income tax expense 115.43 157.44
|EHective tax rate In.A2% 27.66%|

{e) During the previous year, the Group had elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 115844 of the income-tak Act, 1961, as intraduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment] Crdinance,
2019, Accordingly, the Group has recognised provision for income tax for the year ended March 31, 2020 and has reversed the MAT credit recognised earlier and re-measured |ts deferred tax assets
and llabilities basis the rate prescribed in the sald section. The full impact of the above mentioned change is a charge of As. 76.24 lakhs and has been recognised |n the consolidated statement of profit

and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020,
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29. Earnings per share

Basic and diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

i. Profit attributable to Equity shareholders:

(Rs. in lakhs)

i Year ended Year ended

Articuiars March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company used in calculating
basic earnings per share 217.04 516.31
Profit attributable to equity holders of the C di lculati

; i i ; quity ers of the Company used in calculating 217.04 516.31
diluted earnings per share
ii. Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in
calculating basic earnings per share

38,51,19,843

38,03,66,142

Add: Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share 14,19,853 =

Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares

used as the denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share 38,65,39,696 38,03,66,142

Basic earnings per share 0.06 0.14
0.06 0.14

Diluted earnings per share

* The ESOPs outstanding are anti-dilutive in nature
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30, Fair value measurements

A, Accounting classification

Carrying amounts of financial assets and financial labilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below @

{Rs. in lakhs)
Eartiailar As ot March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
FWTPL Fvacl Amortised Cost FVTPL oa Amartlsed Cost
Financial assats
Cash and cash equivalents = 145792 3,843.63
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalants - . 588.46 73588
Receivables
() Trade receivables - 3786 141.01
{Il) Other receivables & = .. 4.95
Loans - 2,55,359.84 2,04,849.17
Investments
= Mutual funds = - 100381
- Debt securities E,638.94 2,12051 .
- Strategic investment - .
Other financial assets . 1,852.43 . = 773.70
Total financial assets - 663894 |  2,61,382.97 1,003.81 . 2,10348.14
Financial liabilities
Payables
= Other payables - 2313 5811
Debt securities - 73,827.02 - 42,10562
Borrowings (other than debt securities) - 93,021.85 - 70,321.28
Other financial llabilites - 4,172.27 - 3,34535
Total financial liabllities - 1,71,144.27 - - 1,15,830.36
B. Falr Value
Fair values of financial assets and financial labilities measured at fair value, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below;
{Rs. in lakhs)
Fair value
T As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Leveld Total Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Total
Financial assets
Equity instruments (strategic investments) . . - -
Investmaent in mutual fupds - - 1,003 81 1,000.81
Invastment in debl securities 6,638.94 G,638.94 - -
Total - - &,638.94 6,638.94 1,003.81 - = 1,003.81

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financlal instrument that are measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the
financial statements. To provide an indication about the refiability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments inte three levels prescribed under the
sccounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath table.

|Rg. in lakhs)
Falr value
it As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tetal

Financlal assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,457.92 - 1,457.92 3,843.63 - - 3,843.63
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 58846 58846 735.88 - 735,88
Receivables

{1} Trade receivables 376 .76 - 141,01 141.01

(i) Other receivables . . . 475 4,75
Investments

-Dabt securities - 2,120.51 2,120.51 - - -
Loans - 2,70,436.30 2,70,436.30 - - 2,06,237.47 2,06,237.47
Other financial assets - - 185248 185248 - = 773.70 773.70
_1_'25!!_ 2,046,38 - 2,74,413.05 2,76,459.43 4,579.51 = 2,07,156.93 2,11,736.44
Financial Liabifitles
Payables

= Other payables - 2313 2313 - . 58.11 58,11
Debt securities = 74,320.09 7432009 - 42,112.57 42,112.57
Borrowings {other than debt securities) - 93,038.76 93,038.76 70,306.94 70,306.94
Other financial labilities - 4,272.27 4,272.27 - 3,34515 3,345.35
Total = 1,71,654.25 1,71,654.25 - - 1,15,822.97 1,15,822.97
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(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Carrying Value Falr Value | Carrying Value Falr Value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,457.92 1,457.92 3,843.63 3,843,563
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 588.40 583.46 73588 735.88
| Receivables
{I) Trade receivables 376 376 14101 14101
(1) Other recelvables - - 475 4.75
Laans 2,55,359.84 2,70,436.30 2,04 849.17 2,06,237.47
Investmants
= Mutual funds - = 1,003.81 1.003.81
= Debt securities 8,759.45 8,759.45 B =
- Equity Instruments (strateglc investrments) - - -
Other linancial assets 1,852.48 1,852 48 77370 773,70
Tatal 2,68,021.91 2,83,098.37 2,11,351.95 2,12,740.25
Financlal llabilities
Fayables
= Othar payables 23.13 23.13 58.11 58.11
Debt securities 73,827.02 74,320.09 4210562 42,112.57
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 93,021.85 93,038.76 7032128 70,306.94
Other financial llabilities 4,272.27 1,272.27 3,345.35 3,34535
Tﬂl 1,71,144.27 1,71,654.25 1,15,830.35 1,15,822.97

Except for those financial instruments for which the carrying amounts are mentioned in the abeve table, the Group considers that the carrying amounts recognised in the financial statements
approximate their fair values. For financial assets that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal ta the fair values.

€. Measurement of fair values

The following sets out the Group's basis of establishing fair values of ameortised cost financial instrurnents and thelr classification between Levels 1, 2 and 3. As certain categories of financial instruments
are not actively traded, there is a significant level of management judgement involved in calculating the fair values:
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Financial instruments held at amortised cost

I. Cash and bank balance:

Thie fair value of cash and balances with bank Is thelr carrying amounts

i, Loans and advances 1o customers:

Faor loans and advances to customers, the fair value of floating rate loans is their carrying amounts, Loans and advances are presented net of provisions for impairment. The fair value of loans and
advances to customers with a residual maturity of less than one year generally approximates the carrying value. The falr value of fixed rate loans were caloulated based on disceunted eash flows using a

current lending rate,

ill. Other financlal assets:

Other financial assets comprise primarily of advances to related parties and other sdvances. The carrying amount of these financial instruments is considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair
value as they are shart term in nature,

v, Invastment in dobt securitios:
The greup has investmants in debt securities with Tixed rates. The earrying ameunt of these financial instruments is contidered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value as they are shert term in nature.

v. Debt securities and borrowings:
The estimated fair value of fiked interest bearing berrewings without queted market prices is based on discounted cash flows using the prevailing rates at which Company has borrowed for debts with a

similar eredit risk and remaining maturity. For market linked debentures, the falr value published by CARE Rating Agency as at March 31, 2021 has been considered for fair valuation, For floating rate
borrowings, the carrying value Is a reasonable approximation to the fair value.

vi. Other financial labilities:
Other financial liabilities comprise primarily of advances received from customaers and other payables. The carrying amount of these financial instruments is considered to be a reasonable approximation

of fair value as they are either short term in nature.

Finandial instruments held at fair value
i. Investm ent in mutual fund:
The investment in mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV in the market,

ii. Investment in debt securlties:
Fair value i based on market-abservable data such as secondary market prices for its traded debt and where no data is available, it is estimated using market yeild on the balance period to maturity on

similar Instruments using G-Sec rates adjusted for eredit risk of the instrum ents.

Galns or losses on transfers amon gst categories
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of reperting perled

Inter-level transfers
There are no transfers of financial assets and llabilities measured at fair value between Levels 1 and 2 and Level 2 and 3 during the financial years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020,

D. Fair value measurements for financial assets measured at FVOCO using signilicant unobservable inputs (level 3)

The following table presents the change in level 3 items for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020,

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Equity Dabt
Az ot March 31, 2019 12163 -
Net Acquisitions/(Dispesal (121.61) -
Galns recognlsed in other comprehensive inceme {0.02) 5
As at March 31, 2020 - -
Acquisitions/(Disposal) - 6,519.96
|§3 ns recognisad in other comprehensive | - 13210
As at March 31, 2021 = 6,652.06
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31. Financial risk management

In the course of its business, the Group |5 exposed to certain financial risks namely credit risk, interest risk & liquidity risk. The Group®s primary focus is to
achieve better predictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The financial risks are managed
in accordance with the Group's risk management policy which has been appraved by its Board of Directors.

The Group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The board of
directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which s responsible for developing and monitering the Group's risk management palicies. The
committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

The Group's risk management policles are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
manitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management palicles and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's

activities.
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31, Financial ritk managemant [continued)

A, Credit risk

Credit risk is the disk of financial loss to the Graup if & custamer or Ty 1o a fi | falls to meet (ts contractual obligations e, recevables from
customers, invesiments in debt securities etc. Credit risk arfses from loans and advances, Investments earried at amanized ¢oit and depasits with banks and financial

Institutions.

i) Credit risk management
The Group key objective |s to maintain & strong culture of res pensiole konding, and rebust risk policies and cantrol lrameworks . The Group considers various factors, which

provide an aiesament of the barower's ability-te-pay and willingnais-to-pay. While the techniques used for assessment vary across product-segments, the eredit princip)
remain a common factor.

Tha key laciors considered inclde:
- Income and cash flow analysis: The borrower’s income for multiple sources is assessed, along with the borrewa s abligations and Nnancial commitments. Hence, the funds

available to repay the loan/EMI 15 camputed, and the lean is tailered to be affardable to the barrawer. Far certain product types working capital gap s also calculated.

- Credit history analysis: The borrower’s experience in managing debt i eontidered. Prior delinquancios and idered. A strang repayment track record ks typically an
indicator of the customer’s willinghess-to-pay. Exceptions and nuances, ke customers with a limited credit history but with strengths like job-tenure or asset-ewnership, are

alio eoniidered to make appropriate credit decisions.

- Borrewer's profile and intanded use of the funds: The barrower's Intended use of funds Is considered as a part of the credit process, Including the calculation of warking
capital gycle for certaln product types. In some product-segments, the use of funds may be certilfed by the borrawer ar contralled by dishursing directly ta the end-use.
Borrower profikes which are not In targeted market-segments are screaned aut,

- Security cover provided: The Group has a well defined credit policy which lays aut the security 16 be previded, In cortain caies, providing the relovant collateral is a pre-
condition fer loan sa nction,

- Collectabllity and geo-location: . The borrower's location, acce ssibility, stability and eantact-ability are all considarod before loan sanction, In cases where there are doubts or
concerns about any of thess facters, an adverse adjustment to the risk-profile Is made,

Tha Group has separate data sclencefanalytics team which moniters the vintage eurve, bounce rates, esllection eificiency, portiolio matrics and delinquencies further periodic
re-audit of existing cases te unearth delinguancy trends and cradit learnings,

Measuramant of Expectad Crodit Logas ('TCLY)
Tha Group has segmented its outstanding portfolio based on the risk profiles Le. risk management palicies, histarical experionces with respect 1o default rates ote, for the

computation of ECL.

A three-nage madel far impairment based on changes in credit quality since Initial recognition has been implemented. The Group has used Days Past Dus {DPDY) basis far
staging of the portfolio and has opted for the rebuttable presumption preseribed by the standard 16 recognlze dofault In case payments are overdue 90 days and a Significant
Increase in Credit Risk (*SICR°) in case payinents are averdus for mors than 30 days.,

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expecied 1o arise over the |ife ef the asset (the lifetime expected cradit lass), unless there has boon no significant increase in
credit risk since arigination, in which ease, the allowance is based an the 12 months’ expected eradit lony),

Lifetime [CL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of & financial ingtrumen, The 12-manth ECL is the portion of
Ufetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from default eve nts on a financial instrument that are passilile within the 12 manths after the reparting date,

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-manth ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis fcollective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying pertiolia af financial
instrumaents, The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a finaneial instrument’s credit risk hay increased
significantly since initial recognition, by coniidaring the ehange In tha risk of default eecurring over the remalning e of the financlal instrument. The Group does the
assesament of significant incraaso In credit ik at o borrowar level, Based on the above, the Group categarises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3. Cansidering the
current macro economic scenario, due to Covid, the probability of defaults have been increased aver and above the Biviorical trands scrass product varticals,

’ Baxls for recognition of ECL
S i Loans Investments
Current Stage 1 12 Month's ECL 12 Menth's ECL
1-30 days Stage 1 12 Menth's [CL 12 Month's ECL
3190 days Stage 3 Life Time £CL Life Time ECL
[90 4 days Stage 3 |Life Tirme ECL Lifie Tirme ECL

Wrlte-olfs

As per Group's polky, the Group writes off Retail secured and unsecured loans outstanding for more than 540 dayy and 450 days respeetivaly, Howawer, Small and Medium
Enterprises {(SME) Socured and Unsecured Loans, are writen off on a caso-to-case basls subject 1o 540 days and 450 days respectively, based on the probability of
reeovarability. Any subsegquent recoveries agalnst such laans are cradited to the statement of profit and loss.
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As 5t March 11, 2021
(s, in lakhs)
Grods carrying Carrying Iﬂ.ﬂ_l-lm.
Partloulars Asset group amount of finandal | Expected credit josses | net of iImpalrment
assats proviskon
Ivvestments al amortised cost
- Dabt securitias 2,120.56 6.05 2,120.51
Investmeants at FWOCI
- Debit securities 6,652,086 1312 6,638.94
Loss allowanen measured at 13 manth] L03NS 3t amortised cost
axpected credt losses (Stage 1) - Term Loans and Leans 2,22.929.37 1,B6631 2,28,062.96
repayable on demand
Bank balance other than cash and SEBAG . 58846
cash eguivalents
Laan commitments £.97500 11.00 8,964.00
Other financial asiets 185781 5.5% 1,852.48
Lotk allowance meatured at ife-time Loans
expected credit losses, nat credit = Term Loans and Loans 24,32943 2,008.79 22,320.64
impaired (Stage 3} repayabile an domind
Loss allowance measured at life-time Loans
expectad cradit lassas, cradit impairad - Turm Loans and Loans 10,206.09 5,229.79 4,976.24
(Stage 3] repayable on demand
Az 3t March 31, 2020
(R in lakhs)
Gross canylng Carrying amaurnt
Particulars Asset group amount of financlal | Expected credit losses | net of impalrment
Esels provision
Investments at amortised cost
= Dabt securliies - .
Loars ot amortived eodt
Loss sllowancs messured 8t 12 month| ~ Term Loans and Loans 1,99,017.36 1,345.71 1,97,671.65
expected credit losses [Stage 1) repayable on demand
Dank balance ather than cash and AL 296 785,88
cash equivalents
Laan eammitmenty 9.880.07 482 287525
Other assets 1,358.80 1.76 1.357.04
Los allowance messuredat ife-tima |21
d credit | , not credit
SUEMEANE STMATT IPRA RO e - Tarm Loans and Loans 235524 217,48 2,007.66
Impaired {Stage 2}
repayable on demand
Loss allowance measured at lifie-time Loans
expected cred|l lossos, eredit impalred = Term Loans and Loans 6,815.66 3,675.81 3,133,385
{Staga 3} ropayable on domand

Maximum expesure (o eradit risk

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for recognised financial instruments. The extent to which collateral and other cedit enhancements mitigate the
maifmum exposure to eredit dak 1§ deseribed in the Tooinotes 1o the table, For financial assets recognised on the balance sheot, the maximum exposure to eredit risk aquals

thelr carrying amount,

(R, in lakhs)
Particulars Grogs Expoiure Gross Exposury
a3 at March 31, 2021 as at March 11, 2020
Cath and cash aquivalant 145792 1,543.63
Balangos with Banks SERAG 735.08
Trade recuivables 176 14101
Other recelvables - 4.75
Laans 2,55,059.84 2,04,849.17
Iryestment securities BI7L62 .
Other financial assets 185781 FI5.84
Total credit risk expasure 2,68&4!. 2,10, 349,88

Collateral held

The Group peradically monitors the quality as well as the value of the security 1o meet 1he prescribed limits, The callateral held by the Group vardes on case to case bails and

includes:

i} FisatfSubserviant charge @n the Land and/ar Bullding of the praject ar other prajects
W} First/Subservient charge on the flked and current assets of the bomower
lii} Hypothecation over recolvables from funded project or other projects of the bomower

I} First loss guaranton default (FLDG) in the ferm of cish eollateral, lien on fked depasits ate,
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The below table stiatifies credit exposure lor securod loans by ranges of Lann-ta-value (LTV) ratie. LTV is ealeulated as the ratis of the Principal cutstanding of the |oan to the

value of the collateral. The valuation of collateral is as of date af grant of loan and excludes any adjustments for obtaining and selling the collateral.

Secured Loans
{Rs. in lakhs)
LTV Ratlo Principal outstanding as at March | Ad at March 31, 2021 | Principal cutstanding | As st March 31,
31, 2021 as it March 31, 2020 2020
Lass than S0% 51.647.27 39.96% 47,097.54 A47.09%)
51-70% 18,554.37 13 82% 21, 74280 24.74%
71-90% 11,474,72 LR 8,264.25 B.26%
91-100% aAB91245% 34.94% 18,791.63 18.79%
More than 1005 3,663.67 271%) 3.117.75 3.12%)
Tatal 1,34,252.48] 100.00%] 1,00,013.57 100.00%|
Value of security of secured cradit Impaired assets
The credit impaired assets as at the reporting dates were secured by charge on land and bullding and praject recebablas amaunting ta;
R, in lakhs)
Particulars Prineipal outstanding o5 at March | As at March 31, 2021 | Principal outstanding |  As at March 31,
31, 2021 a1 ot March 31, 2020 2020
Valua of Security 3,639.95 G A0 61 1,541.35 3,050.38

The Group measures the amount of ECL on a financial instrument in a way that reflects an unblased and probability-weighted ameunt, The Group considers its historical lass
eEparience and adjusts the same for current ebiervablo data, The key Inputs inte the measuremant of ECL are the probabillity of default, loss ghven default and exposure at
delault. These parameters are derived from the Group's internally developed statistical madels and ather histeriesl data. In addilion, the Greup uses reasonable and
suppertable infarmation an fulure ecenomic conditions including macroeconomic factors such as services, GOP, recorded unemployment, growth rate, current account
balance etc, Since incarparating these forward loaking information increases the judgment as to how the ehanges in these macroeconomic factor will affect ECL, the
methodology and assumptions are reviewed regularly.

I} Reconciliation of Loan exposure and Loan loss allowance

Far Loan axpoiufa
The below table signifies movement of laan expasure ie outstanding principal and acerund inte ot thoroon
(Rs, I lakhs)
Loss allowance Financlatassetsfor | o sy ance
Recanclliation of Loan o TR e m;“ : '::" ity | measured at -
o f hidig month expected e n:;‘df:" M ime expected
lasses (Stagel) impaired (Stage 2) losses (Stage 3)
Lean expesure as on March 31, 2019 1,66,754.11 3,902.16 317889
i ement of net axp {76,01663) (2,301.48) 725,22
Assets originated or purchased 115448832 1,308 54 753,99
Tranaferred te 12-menih ECL BEE.10 1826.50) 131.60)
Transferred 1o Liletime ECL not crodit impaired (274825} 2,75049 {2.29)
Transferred to Liletime ECL credit impalred {4,204.36) 1694.28) 4,898 64
Wirite — olfs - - [3,579.84)
Loan gupasure on March 31, 2020 J.MEBS.‘J‘J 432!.!! 5.‘3!"3"5..‘_9"
Remessutemant of nok erpasucn [1,11,619.83) {7,501.73) (5.362.11)
Aszets orginated or purchased 1,60,954,35 17.437.99 6,845 50
Translerrad 1o 12-month ECL 72084 {710.69) {10.15)
Transfarred o Liletime ECL not eredit impaired {12,24337) 12,245.97 [2.60)
Transferred to Lifetime ECL credit impalred {4.870.72) {1,233.84) 6,113.56
Writa = offs . - {dA74.71)
Lonn g an March 31, 2021 2 32 555,00 !4,5&&_&! 5052.53
For Loan losd allewance:
[Bs. in lakhs}
Lot sllowance | Financhtassetsfor | oo e
R which credit risk has red at e~
Reconciliation of loss allowance i e Incrluwd.ﬂd h:;“mmr} Ume expected
losses (Stagel) impaired {Stage2) lossas (Stage )
Loss allowance on March 31, 2019 50550 102.21 2,148,45
Remeasurement of loss allowance a4F.84 {57.90) 2.055.25
Assets ariginated or purchasud FEE L] 116.72 A07.66
Transferad to 12-month ECL .28 139.97) (21.89)
Translerrad to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired {17.87) 176.45 {2.21)
Translerred to Lifetime ECL credt inpalred {2B.60) (69.93) 262776
Writa = offs - = (3,539.21)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2020 1,345,711 31758 367541
Romaas t 1 s alls e (629.25) 576.12) [Ga8.54)
Assots originated or purchased 1,384.79 1,561.99 3,431.52
Transferred to 12-month ECL 5.0 (25.73) (8.09)
Transferred to Lifetime ECL not eredit Impaired [121.88) BEl42 (386
Translerred to Lifatime ECL erodit impaired 1118.85) {150.23) 3307.70
Write = offs . = {2,474.73)
Loss allowance on March 31301: 186568 2,009.41 I,IM
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Fir investments

{Rs. in lakhs}

Lot allowance
Reconcillation af loss allowanee il i
manth expected
lossed (Stage 1)
Loss allowante on March 31, 2019 18z
d‘lll'lEl in loss allowances due o Assets used or released {182} |
Loss allowance on Marg h 31, 2020 .
Changes in loys allowances dun 1o Assols used o 18l d 13.17
|Loss allowance on March 31, 2021 1117
Far laan commitments
i3 In lakhs)
Loss allowance
- measured 81 12
Reconclllation of loss allowance o)
lesses (Stage 1)
Lass allawsnee an 31 March 2013 163
Changes In loss allowances due to Assels used or released 119
Loss allowance on 31 March 2020 4,82
icmms In less all dun 1e Assots used of reloased .18 |
[l.nu! Allowance an 51 March 2021 11,00

Concentration of oredit risk

The Group monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector and by geographic location. An analysis of concentrations of credit risk from loans and advances, loan

cammiteianis, financial guarantees and Investmant seguiitios is shown below,

{Ps. in lakhs]
Loans and advances to custamers Loan commitments
Particulars Asat As at As at Avat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Concentration by region

MNarth 45,163, 88 30,112.17 98591 1,21532

Sauth 1,27,616.29 1,00,098.22 4,251.67 4,45638

East 9,525.25 9,254,890 491.3% 57,73

Wast B82,059.31 70,722.97 3,246.12 3,633,684
| Total 2,648,464 73 2,10,188.20 4,975.00 9,880.07
Offsetting financlal assets and financial Rabilities
There are no financlhal assets and Financial Nabillties which are subject to offietting, enforceabla master netling arrang and aimilar ag t

Assessment of lean medifications on credit risk

In response 1a the economic fall-out en account of Covid-19 pandemic, RBI i ! plan f k wie clrcular ABIY2020-21 716 DOR. No, BP BE/3/21.04 04820230
31 doted Gth Avgust 3020 - Resolution Framework for COVID:1%.elated Stress for personal loan customers and extended RBI notificatlon RBI019-20/160
OGH.No.BP.BC 34/21.04.048/2019-20 dated February 11, 2020 via RN Natification RBI2020-21/17 DOR.No.BP.BC/A/21.08.048/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020 - Micio, Small
and Medium Enterprises (MSME] secior — Restructuring of Advances for SME loans. Loan modificatlons executed under these schemes have not boen classified a3
mnogotisted ay they aro as 3 rowwlt af market-wide reliel prog w and not b ipecific. We continue te moniter the recoverabiity of loans granted in
accardance with these clrculars, The on-going and future parformance of such loans remaing an ares of uncertainity as March 31, 2021 The ielevant details in respect of these
laans have been presented under note no. 4B and 439,

Impact of COVID-19

{A} In accordance with the Board approved momtordum policy read with the Reserve Bank of India [RB1) gukdelines dated Parch 27, 2020, Aprll 17, 2020 and May 23, 2020
relating te ‘COVID-19 -Regulatory Package’, the Group had granted maratorium up 1o sik months on the payment of (nstaliments which became due between 1 March, 2020
and 31 August, 2020 1o all eligible borrawers. This relaxation did nat autsmatieally rigger a sigrificant Inerease in eredit risk, The Group continued to recognize interest income
during the meratorium period and in the absence of other credit risk indicators, the granting of a moratorium penod did not result in sccounts becaming past due and
automatically triggering Stage 2 or Stage 3 classification enterla.

The impact af COVIE-19 on the global economy and how g . buisi and pand is In, Ther extent ta which, bew the Covid-19 pandemic will
impact the Greup will depend on the future developments which are highly uncertain. This uncertainty fs reflected in the Group's assessment of Impairment loss allowance an
s loans which are subject to a numbar of managemant judg 13 and eati In relation to COVID-19, judgemants and assumptions include the extent and duration of
the pandemic, the impacts of actions of governments and ather autharities, ard the reip al busl arid i different industries, along with the assaciated

impact en the glabal economy. The Group has separately inc | and jud; specific to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
assoeinted supporn packages In the moasurement af impairment loss allowance, The Group's impairment loss allowance estimates are inherently uncertain and, as a result,
actual results may differ from the se estimates.

{0} Tho Henarable Supreme Court of India thraugh an interim order had directed that the accounts which were not declaied nonperfarming asset 1ill August 31, 2020 shall not
be declared non-performing after August 31, 2020, tifl further notice. Basls the interim ordar, the Group had not classified any standard account as of August 31, 2030 a3 per
Indian Accounting Standards, as impaired [Stage 3) after August 31, 2020,

The intarim order grantad Lo not declare accounts 04 NPA stond vacated an March 23, 2021 vide the judgement of the Hon'ble 5C in the matter of Small Scale Industrial
manufacluraers Assoclation vs, UOI & Ors. and other connected mattars, In accordance with the initructions in paragraph 5 of the RAI circular no. RBI/2021-22/17DOR.
STRAEC.A/21.04.048/2021-22 dated Aprll 07, 2021 lssued In this connection, the Group has continued with the asset clissification af barrawsr accounts bs perthe ECL modal
under Ind AS financial staterments for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021,
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Liquidity risk

Liguidity Risk refers to insufficlency of funds to meet the financial obligations. Liquidity Risk Management implies maintenance of sufficient cash and marketable securities and the
avallability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit lines to meet obligations when due.

The Group has formulated an Asset Lability Management Palicy. The Asset Liability Management Committee ("ALCO') is responsible for the management of the Group's short-
term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and by
continuously monitoring farecast and actual cash flows, and by assessing the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Group has access to undrawn borrowing
facilities at the end of each reporting period, as detailed below:
The Group has the following undrawn ¢redit lines available as at the end of the reporting period:

{Rs. in lakhs)
Asat As at
Particulars March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Expiring within ane year 10,090.93 11,038.25
Expiring beyond one year - .
Total 10,090.93 11,038.25

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal

cash flows, To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the rate applicable as of reporting period ends respectively has been considered.

As at March 31, 2021

{Rs. in lakhs)
Contractual cash flows

Panif:ulm foteho Carrying amount hf;:;?:::ﬂ} Less than 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years After 5 years
Maturities of financial liabilities
Other payables 13 23.13 {23.13) (23.13) 2 4
Debt securities 14 73,827.02 (B2,460.46) [54,998.53) (27,461.93) 5 8
Borrowings 15 93,021.85 {1,06,339.41) (54,087 .87) (41,538.58) (10,712.96) =
Other financial liabilities 16 4,272.27 (4,.272.27) {4,272.27) : 3 ¥
Lean commitments 36 8,975.03 (8.975.05) {4,076.74) {4,898.31) - -
Total _1,80,119.30 {2,02,070.32)]  (1,17,458.54) (73,898.82) {10,712.96) -
As at March 31, 2020

{Rs. in lakhs)

Contractual cash flows

Paricilan eote N S o rrying amiune ]m?:u";::} lessthaniyear |  1-3years 3.5 years After 5 years
Maturities of financial liabilities
Other payables 13 58.11 (58.11) {58.11) - - -
Debt securities 14 42,105.62 {45,798.45) (26,433.72) (19,364.73) - -
Borrowings 15 70,321.28 (99,576.75) (41,614.51) (34,684,80) {23,270.90) -
Other financial liabilities 16 3,345.35 (3,345.34) (26.77) {3,318.57) = -
Loan commitments 36 9,880.07 (9,880.07) (5,430.48) (4,420.62) (14.49) {14.48)
Total 1,25,710.43 {1,58,658.72) {73,563.59 {61,788.82) {23,285.39) (14.48)
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

The following table detalls the Group's expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets, The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of
the financial assets including interest that will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the
Group's liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis, Hence, maturities of the relevant assets have been considered below.,

Asg at March 31, 2021
(Rs. in lakhs)
Contractual cash flows

Palrtlculm h!nte 52 Carrying amaunt hg::j?ﬂ:";:::} Less than 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years After s years
Maturities of financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2 1,457.92 1,457.92 1,457.92 = - -
Bank deposits 3 5B8.46 588.46 5BB.46 - -
Trade receivables 4 3.76 3176 376 - . .
Other receivables 5 - - - - . .
Loans 6 2,55,359.84 3,55,624.03 1,51,615.38 97,822.11 39,082.15 67,104.40
Investments 2 8,759.45 9,296.77 8,096.28 1,200.45 - -
Other financial assets 8 1,852 48 - - - = =
Total 2,68,021.91 3,66,970.94 1,61,761.80 99,022.60 39,082.15 67,104.40
As at March 31, 2020

(Rs, in lakhs)
Contractual cash flows

Katgcting flate N Carrying amount I:::;?pm"m' ) Less than 1 year 1.3 years 3-5 years After S years
Maturities of financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2 3,843.63 3,843.63 3,843.63 - - -
Bank deposits 3 735.88 735.88 735.88 = -
Trade recelvables L 141.01 141.01 141.01 - -
Other recelvables 5 4.75 4.75 4.75 - - -
Loans 6 2,04,849.17 2,92,481.19 1,07,760.15 79,892.48 36,729.10 58,099.46
Investments T 1,003.81 1,003.81 1,003.81 - - -
Other financlal assets 8 773.70 773.70 38071 39299 -
[Totel 2,11,351.95 2,98,983.97 1,13,869.94 80,285.47 36,729.10 68,099.46
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

C. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed
to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on Interest-bearing |labilities and assets. The Group manages its interest rate risk by monitoring the movements In
the market interest rates closely. The Group has Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO) and has empowered it to assess the interest rate risk run by it and
provide appropriate guidelines to the Treasury to manage the risk. The ALCO reviews the interest rate risk on periodie basis,

Exposure to interest rate rlsk

Group's Interest rate risk arlses from borrowings and loans. The Interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financlal instruments as reported to the management
of the Group is as follows.

(Rs. in lakhs)
Nominal amount

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Loans
Fixed rate loans 1,30,672.89 1,08,509.0%
Variable rate loans 1,32,493.60 99,181.42
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 586.06 723.06
Investment in debentures 8.533.21 -
Total 2,72AB5.76 2,08,413.57
Debt and Borrowings
Fixed rate Debt and Borrowings (94,222.18) (47,092.03)
Varialle rate Debt and Borrowings (69,420.64) (64,278.82
Total {1,63,642.82) [1,11,!7n.35h

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
The Group does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate
assets and liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liabilities/assets outstanding at the end of the reporting period was cutstanding far the whole
year and the rates are reset as per the applicable reset dates,

If interest rates related to loans and borrowings had been 100 bps higher/ lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's Profit before tax for the year
ended/ Other Equity (pre-tax) as on March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 would Inerease/ (decrease) by the following amounts:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Profit or {loss Equity (before of tax)
100 bp Increase 100 bp decrease 100 bpincrease | 100 bp decrease

March 31, 2021
Variable-rate instruments 382.71 (382.71) 38271 (382.71)
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 382.71 {382.71) 382.711 (382.71)
March 31, 2020
Variable-rate instruments 349.03 {349.03) 349.03 {349.03)
|Cash flow sensitivity (net) 349.03 {349.03) 349,03 {349.03)

The risk estimates pravided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate across all yleld curves. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the
balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The pericd end balances are not necessarily representative of the average

debt outstanding during the period,

D. Prite risk

The Group is exposed to price risk arising from Investment In mutual funds and classified in the balance sheet at fair value through profit & loss. If the NAV of the mutual
fund had been higher/lower by 1% from market price existing as at March 31, 2020, profit or loss{pre-tax) for the year ended March 31, 2020 would increase/decrease by
NIl {Previous Year: Rs. 10.03 lakhs) with a corresponding inerease/decrease in the Tetal Equity of the Company as at March 31, 2020,

The Group is currently not exposed to any equity price risks arising from equity investments classified in the Balance Sheet at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income since the amount outstanding as at March 31, 20208 Nil (Previous year: Nil).
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32. Related party disclosures

A. Names of related parties and nature of relationship:

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Name of the KMP

Designation

Mr. Bhupinder Singh

Mr. Vivek Bansal

Mr. Gajendra Thakur

Mrs. Nikita Hule

Mr. Deepak Narang

Mrs. Rupa Rajul Vora

Mr. Debashish Dutta Gupta
Dr. Parvinder Singh Pasricha
Mr. Antonius Theodorus Maria Bruijninckx
Mr. Girish Dinanath Nadkarni
Mr. Vivek Anand PS

Nominee Director

Nominee Director

Nominee Director (upto June 13, 2021)

Founder and Director (upto May 15, 2019) and Whole-time director and
Whole-time director and Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary (w.e.f. September 1, 2020}
Company Secretary (upto August 31, 2020)
Independent Director (upto June 11, 2021)
Independent Director

Independent Director (w.e.f December 1, 2020)
Independent Director (w.e.f March 3, 2020 upto September 3, 2020)

Enterprises where key management personnel exercises control

1. InCred Capital Financial Services Private Limited (Formerly known as Proud Securities Private Limited)
2. InCred Wealth Private Limited (Formerly known as InCred Capital Inclusion Advisory Private Limited) (w.e.f. May 20, 2019}
3. InCred Asset Management Private Limited (Formerly known as InCred Capital Investment Advisors and Managers Private Limited)

A. Names of related parties and nature of relationship

Halding Company

Country of

Proportion of ownership interest

Incorporation (3 holding)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Bee Finance Limited (Mauritius), Holding Co. Mauritius 59.64% 59.66%
Associate of Booth Fintech Private Limited
Name of subsidiaries Country of Principal place of |Proportion of ownership interest
Incorporation business As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
mValu Technology Services Private Limited India Mumbai 40.96% 40.96%
Transactions with key management personnel
i. Key management personnel compensation (Rs. in lakhs)
!Farl,lcuiars Year ended March | Year ended March
31, 2021 31, 2020
Employee benefit expenses 575.33 570.22
Directors’ sitting fees 13.19 14.55

As the liabilities for gratuity, leave encashment and share based payments are provided on actuarial basis for the group as a whole and hence the
armounts pertaining to the key management personnel are not included in the above.
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33. Employee benefits

1. The Group has recognised the following amounts in the Profit & Loss Account towards contributions to pravident fund and other

funds:
(Rs. in lakhs)
Pardeculars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Provident fund 227.38 235.48
2. Gratuity

Every employee who will complete five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn) for each

completed year of service, subject to ceiling of INR 20,00,000.

Table showing change in the present value of projected benefit obligation

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Gent P8t
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Change in benefit obligations
Present value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 88.90 65.07
Interest cost 4.49 4.41
Current Service cost 39.23 43.46
Liability Transferred In/Acquisition - -
Actuarial (Gains) on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions - (38.03)
Actuarial (Gains) on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions 4,98 2.11
Actuarial Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 21.32 6.88
Liability at the end of the year 158.92 88.90
Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet (Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year (158.92) (88.90)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year -
Funded Status (Deficit) (158.92) (88.90)
Net (Liability) Recognized in the Balance Sheet (158.92) (88.90)
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current service cost 39.23 48.45
Net Interest cost 4.49 4.41
Expenses recognised 43.72 52.86
Expenses recognized in the Other comprehensive income (OCI)
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Actuarial (Gains) on obligation for the year 26.29 {29.03)
Net (Income) for the year recognized in OCI 26.29 (29.03)
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The actuarial assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are as follows:

Particulars o AL
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Discount Rate 4.25% 5.21%
Salary escalation rate 5% for next 1 year
and 7% thereafter 5% - 7%
Expected Rate of return on Plan Assets N.A N.A.
Rate of Employee Turnover 35.00% 35.00%
Indian Assured
Mortality Rate during employment Indian Assured lives| lives mortality
mortality (2006-08) (2006-08)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factars
Balance sheet reconciliation

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Opening net liability 28.590 65.07
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 43.72 52.86
Expenses recognized in OCI 26.29 (29.03)
Net (Asset) Transfer In - -
Net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 158.91 £8.90 |
Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: from the employer
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars faat Az 8t
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting
1st following year 0.73 0.55
2nd following year 32.15 0.41
3rd following year 3822 2052
4th following year 33.79 24.07
5th following year 25.33 2049
Sum of years 6 To 10 47.54 38.84
Sum of years 11 and above 7.87 6.86
Sensitivity analysis
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars A at fsac
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 158,91 88.89
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting (5.20) (3.56)
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting 5,52 3.79
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase 4.96 362
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase (4.83) (3.50)
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover (4.15) (3.44)
Delta effect of -1% change In rate of employee turnover 4.24 3.55
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Qualitative disclosures

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and group is exposed to the Following Risks:

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the prosent value of the liability requiring
higher provision,

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such,
an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Group has to manage pay-out based on pay as
you go basis from own funds,

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any
longevity risk.

3. Compensated absences

The actuarially determined liability for compensated absences of accumulated leaves of the employees of the Group is given below:

Particulars fsat et
March 31, 2021* | March 31, 2020

Total actuarial liability

Assumptions:

Discount rate NA 5.21%

Salary escalation rate NA 5% - 7%

Rate of Employee Turnover NA 35.00%

Indian Assured
Mortality Rate during employment lives mortality
NA {2006-08)

*Nate - As per the revised [eave policy of the Group, the accumulated unaveiled leave lapses os ot March 31, 2021, Thus no liability has been
determined for the current year.
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34, Share-based payment arrangements

A, Description of share-based payment arrangements

i. Share option plans [equity-settled)

The Group has Employee Incentive Plan under which aptions have been granted to eligible employees to be vested from time to time.

The Group has established share option plans that entitle the employees of the Group and its subsidiary companies to purchase the shares of the Group. Under these plans,
holders of the vested options are entitled to purchase shares at the exercise price of the shares determined at the respective date of grant of options.

The key terms and conditions related to the vesting of grants under these plans are continued employment with the Group from the date of grant of option till the date of

vesting (25% each year); all options are to be settled by the del

A. Measurement of fair values

Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements

ivery of shares.

The fair value of the employee share options has been measured using Black-Scholes Option pricing model.

The fair value of the options and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-settied share based payment options granted during the

year are as follows:

The model inputs for options granted during

For the year For the year
ended March 31,|ended March 31,
|Particulars / Grant date 2021 2020

Fair value as on grant date (weighted average) 27.15to 28.64] 27.81to 28.99
Share price as on grant date 55.25 54.4D
Exercise price 40.00 40,00
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 35% to 40% 35%]
Expected life (expected weighted average life) 8.5 years 8.5 years
Risk- free interest rate (based on government bands) 5.04% to 5.97%| 6.49%to 7.08%

Method used to determine expected volatility The expected volatility Is based en

price valatility of listed companies

in same industry.

B. Reconciliation of outstanding share options

Set out below is 2 summary of options granted under the plan:

il Average sikvckes Number of options
price per option | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2021 2020

Opening balance 40.00 1,25,05,584 50,80,781
Add: Options granted during the year 40.00 97,92,875 85,86,300
Less: Options exercised during the year 40,00 (91,209) (6,924)
Less: Options lapsed during the year 40.00 (41,62,312) (11,54,573)
Options outstanding as at the year end 40.00 1,80,44,938 1,25,05,584
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period 8.1 years
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1l. Share option plans (equity-settled) by Bee Finance Limited (Mauritius), Halding Group

On August 1, 2018, Bee Finance Limited (Mauritius), Holding Group of the Group has established share option plans that entitle the emplayees of the Group purchase the
shares of the Holding Group. Under these plans, halders of the vested options are entitled to purchase shares at the exercise price of the shares determined at the

respective date of grant of options.

The key terms and conditions related to the grants under these plans are continued employment with the Group from the date of grant of option till the date of vesting ; all
options are to be settled by the defivery of shares.

a) Share options issued by Bee Finance Limited (Mauritius)

A. Measurement of fair values

The fair value of the employee share options has been measured using Black-5choles Optian pricing model,
The fair value of the options and the inputs used In the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-settled share based payment options granted during the

previous year are as follows:

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended March 31, 2021:
No fresh grants have been given during the year ended March 31, 2021 and year ended March 31, 2020

B. Reconciliation of outstanding share options

Set out below s a summary of options granted under the plan:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
IP ey Average exercise| Numberof |Average exercise| Number of
b price per option options price per option aptions

Opening balance 438,033.52 248.00 53,031.00 549,00
Add: Options granted during the year + - - =
Less: Options lapsed during the year 55,650.73 (7.00) 55,363.75 {301.00)
Options outstanding as at the year end 47,728.27 241.00 48,033.52 248.00
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period 11.2 years

C. Expenses arising from share-based payment transactions

Refer Mote 26 on employee benefit expense, for share based payment expense charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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35. Lease accounting

The Group has entered into leasing arrangements far premises. Right of Use Assets ("ROU") has been included under
‘Property, Plant and Equipment” and Lease Liability has been included under ‘Other Financial Liabilities” in the Balance

Sheet.
i. Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets (ROU) for the year ended March 31, 2021:
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 21, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,760.49 930.97
Addition during the year 392.55 1,197.91
Disposals during the year (131.39) -
Depreciation for the year {281.91) (368.39)
Balance as at the end of the year 1,739.74 1,760.49
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021:
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at Asat
Particulars March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,878.95 930.97
Addition during the year 247.56 1,197.91
Finance cost accrued during the year 156.73 151.78
Payment of Lease liabilities made during the year (325.59) {401.71)
1,957.65 1,878.95

Balance as at the end of the year

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of March 31, 2021 on an

iii. undiscounted basis:

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Less than one year 261.42 42493
Between one and five years 1,302.84 1,456,00
More than five years 221.24 713.46
Total 1,785.50 2,594.39
iv. Expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss
{Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets (Refer Note 10) 28191 368.39
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 24) 156.73 151.78
275.89 275.89

Expense relating to short-term leases (Refer Note 27)
Expense relating to leases of low value assets

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to

meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.,

v. Amount recognised in the statement of Cash flow

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
325.59 401.71

Total cash outflow for leases
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36. Contingent liabilities and commitments
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Commitments

Commitments relating to loan sanctioned but undrawn B,975.03 9,880.07
Total £.975.03 9,880.07

The Group does not have any pending litigations and proceedings and hence does not require any provision or mention under contingent

liability.
The Group has a process whereby periodically all long-term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the

Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

37. Securitisation

Transfer of financial assets that do not result in derecognition

The Group was party to securitisation transaction involving transfer of pool of unsecured loan receivables (monthly instalment loans with
original maturity up to 3 years)

In these transactions, the assets, interests in the assets, or beneficial interest in the cash flows arising from the assets, are transferred to a
special purpose entity, which then issues pass through certificates ('PTC') to third party investors.

The Group has agreed to provide servicing assistance pursuant to the terms of servicing agreement.

In this securitisation where the Group transfers loans and advances to unconsolidated securitisation vehicle, it retains the credit risk
principally by way of credit enhancements placed with the Special Purpose Vehicle ('SPV'). The Group does not transfer substantially all of
the risks and rewards of these assets,

Hence, the Group continues to recognise the securitised loan portfolio in its books of accounts.

The following table shows the carrying amount of the securitised assets that have not resulted in derecognition, together with the associated
liabilities:

(Rs. in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2021 Loan receivables Credit
enhancements

Carrying amount of assets
Carrying amount of associated liabilities

(Rs. in lakhs)

Credit
As at March 31, 2020 Loan receivables
enhancements
421.33 137.00

Carrying amount of assets
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 130.83 -
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39. Foreign Currency Transactions

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particilare Year ended March|Year ended March
31, 2021 31, 2020
Expenditure in foreign currency
Directors' sitting fees 2.07 -
Legal, professional and consultancy charges 27.64 -
Recruitment fees 6.63 3.63
Legal & Technical charges 2.01 2.26
Total 38.35 5.89
40. Corporate social responsibility
(Rs. in lakhs)
paalae Year ended March|Year ended March
31, 2021 31, 2020

Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 19.99 16.05
Amount spent during the year
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset =
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above

In cash 20.05 14.93

Yet to be paid in cash* - 2.00
Total 20.05 16.93

* Paid in the month of April, 2020

41. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

In accordance with the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 ('MSMED Act') the
Company is required to identify the micro, small and medium suppliers and pay them interest on
overdue beyond the specified period irrespective of the terms agreed with the suppliers. Based on the
on the information available with the management, there are no dues outstanding to micro and small
enterprises covered under the MSMED Act. The Auditors have placed reliance on such information.

42, Share issue expenses

In accordance with the provision of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013 the following share issue

expenses have been debited against securities premium account:

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
figteulors March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Stamp duty - 52.87
Legal and professional charges 543.10
Total -
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43. Capital Management
The Group maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business which includes issued equity

capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to equity helders of the Group.

As a NBFC, the RBI requires us to maintain a minimum capital to risk weighted assets ratio ("CRAR") consisting of Tier | and
Tier Il capital of 15% of our aggregate risk weighted assets. Further, the total of our Tier Il capital cannot exceed 100% of our
Tier | capital at any point of time. The capital management process of the Group ensures to maintain a healthy CRAR at all
the times.

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management policy are to ensure that the Group camplies with externally
imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business

and to maximise shareholder value.

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital 1,01,900.06 1,01,648.11
Other Tier 2 capital 1,261.64 1,261.64
Total capital 1,03,161.71 1,02,909.75

Regulatory capital consists of CET 1 capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings including
current year profit and loss. Certain adjustments are made to Ind AS-based results and reserves. The other component of

regulatory capital is other Tier 2 Capital, which alse includes hybrid debt instruments.

44, During the current year, the Parent company has reported frauds to RBI aggregating to Rs. 739.00 lakhs (previous year:
Rs. 72.28 lakhs)
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45. Segment information

1. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of financing. All the activities of the company revolve around the main
business, Further, the company does not have any separate gecgraphic segments other than India.

2. During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has been organised into two operating segments i.e, SME and Retail

based on products and services.

. Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditure, assets and liabilities are either specifically identifiable

with individual segments or have been allocated to segments on a systematic basis. Based on such allocation, segment
disclosures relating to revenue, results, assets and liabilities have been prepared.
Income, Expenditure, assets and liabilities which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments are

disclosed under "unallocable segment”.

Segment results have not been adjusted for the exceptional items and have been included in "unallocable segment”. The
correspending segment assets have been carried under the respective segments without adjusting the exceptional item.

(Rs. in lakhs)
wiiy el Year ended March 31,2021 ! :
‘Particula o — - - Total

DR A e i o “SMEFinance | Retall Finance | Unallocable s EA
Sepment Income from Operations 18952.75 19,307.76 289.01 38,549.52
Other Income 172.79 423.67 101.67 698.13
Total Segment Income 19,125.54 19,731.43 390.68 39,247.65
Segment results 366.10 88.92 {102.55) 352.47
Profit before tax 366.10 88.92 (102.55) 352.47
Tax expenses - - 135.43 135.43
Segment profit for the year 366.10 88.92 (237.98) 217.04
Segment Assets 1,42,978.71 1,27,435.97 10,038.57 2,80,453.26
Segment Liabilities 92,584.99 81,011.31 1,455.77 1,75,052.09
Depreciation and Amortisation 383.66 632.32 - 1,015.98
(Rs. in lakhs)

Pk J i3 : - Year ended March 31,2020 T ] y

. Particulars : : Total
o4 ] ' SME Finance _Retall Finance. | Unallocable.

Segment Income from Operations 12,878.64 15,349.20 38048 32,617.32
Other Income - - 645,24 649.34
Total Segment Income 12,878.64 19,349.20 1,038.82 33,266.66
| Segment results 336.38 143.04 234.33 713,75
Profit before tax 336.38 143.04 234.33 713.75
Tax expenses - - 197.44 197.44
| Segment profit for the year 336.38 143.04 36.90 516.31
Segment Assets 85,044.00 1,25,002.81 13,163.13 2,23,209.94
Segment Liabilities 52,470.07 64,771.57 1,917.88 1,19,159.53
Depreciation and Amortisation 262.89 897.79 - 1,160.68
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47. Investments in associates

The Groups interests in associates are:

Name of associate

Principal
place of
busines

Method of
accounting

Proportion of stake

mValu Technology Services Private Limited

India

Equity Method

40.96%

Summarised financial information in respect of Group’s associates is set out below:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars fsat et
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

A) Summarised Statement of net assets
Financial assets 2,136.84 2,870.62
Non-Financial assets 33231 266.16
Total assets (I) 2,469.15 3,136.78
Financial liabilities 105.32 133.63
Non-Financial liabilities 36.57 92.89
Total liabilities (11) 141.89 226.52
Net assets (1 - 1) 2,327.26 2,910.26
Group's share % 40.96% 40.96%
Group's share in amount §553.24 1,192.04
Carrying amount of Investment 3,697.97 4,047.55

(Rs. in lakhs)
P et For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

B) Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss
Revenue from operation 6.85 14.84
Other income 215.88 251.54
Total income (1) 222.73 266.38
Finance costs 65.69 995
Employee benefits expenses 757.26 1,129.09
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 49.16 46.30
Others expenses 204,07 271.88
Total expenses () 1,076.18 1,457.22
Loss before tax (11l = I-11) (853.45) (1,190.84)
Tax expense .
Loss after tax (V = llI-IV) (853.45) (1,190.84)
Other Comprehensive income -
Total Comprehensive income (853.45) (1,190.84)
Group's share % 40.96% 40.96%
Group share in Amount in Profit and loss (A) (349.57) (487.77)
Group share in Amount in Other Comprehensive Income (B) - -
Total Group share in Amount (A+B) (349.57) (487.77)
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48. Reversal of Compound Interest

As per guidelines issued by RBI on 'Asset Classification and Income Recognition fallowing the expiry of Covid-19 regulatory package'
dated April 7, 2021 and the Indian Banks' Association ('IBA') advisory letter dated April 19, 2021, the Group has put in place a Board
approved policy to refund/ adjust the ‘interest on interest’ charged to borrowers during the moratorium period i.e. March 1, 2020 to
August 31, 2020. The Group has provided for reversal of interest on interest amounting to Rs. 106.64 lakhs on such loans in the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021.

49, Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to correspond with the current year's
classification/disclosure.

The Group's financial statements were approved by the Parent's Board of Directors en 23 luly, 2021.

As per our report of even date

ForBSR& Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants inCred Financial Services Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 CIN: U74899MH1991PLC340312

RS i PHZ
Pranav Gune ' Bhupinder Singh ivek Bansal
Partner Whole Time Director and CEQ Whaole Time Director and CFO
Membership Na: 121058 DIN: 07342318 DIN: 07835456
Place: Mumbai .
Date: 23 July 2021

Gajendra Thakur

Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 July 2021
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